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PROFILE

The Talanx Group is a multi-brand provider in the insurance and
financial services sector. The Group companies operate under a number
of different brands. These include HDI, delivering insurance solutions to
retail customers and industrial clients, Hannover Re, one of the world’s
leading reinsurers, the bancassurance specialists neue leben insurers,
LifeStyle Protection and TARGO insurers as well as Ampega, a funds
provider and asset manager. The Hannover-based Group is active in
more than 175 countries.

INSURANCE REVENUE OPERATING PROFIT (EBIT)

EUR billion EUR billion

4 8 o 1 4 o 9
GROUP NET INCOME PROPOSED DIVIDEND PER SHARE
EUR million EUR

NET RETURN ON INVESTMENT RETURN ON EQUITY

% %

2.8 179



GROUP KEY FIGURES

Unit 2024 20231 20221
Insurance revenue EUR million 48,150 43,237 39,645
Primary Insurance EUR million 22,905 19,722 16,967
Property/casualty primary insurance EUR million 20,316 17,346 14,794
Life primary insurance EUR million 2,590 2,376 2,173
Reinsurance EUR million 26,379 24,456 24,017
Property/casualty reinsurance EUR million 18,665 16,824 16,265
Life/health reinsurance EUR million 7,715 7,633 7,752
Insurance revenue by region
Germany % 15 16 15
United Kingdom % 11 10 11
Central and Eastern Europe (CEE), including Turkiye % 9 9 8
Rest of Europe % 13 13 12
USA % 24 24 26
Rest of North America % 4 4
Latin America % 13 10
Asia and Australia % 11 13 14
Africa % 1 1 2
Insurance service result (net) EUR million 5,114 3,234 2,454
Net investment income for own risk EUR million 3,880 3,235 2,342
Net return on investments for own risk 2 % 2.8 2.5 1.7
Operating profit/loss (EBIT) EUR million 4,913 3,068 2,815
Net income attributable to shareholders of Talanx AG EUR million 1,977 1,581 706
Primary Insurance EUR million 1,113 790 437
Reinsurance EUR million 1,170 917 392
Return on equity? % 17.9 16.6 8.2
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share EUR 7.65 6.21 2.79
Diluted earnings per share EUR 7.65 6.21 2.79
Combined ratio (net/gross)* % 90.3 94.3 95.2
Property/casualty primary insurance (net/gross)* % 91.6 93.4 95.2
Property/casualty reinsurance (net/net)® % 86.6 94.0 94.5
Total assets EUR million 180,419 168,525 158,479
Equity attributable to shareholders of Talanx AG EUR million 11,661 10,447 8,640
Contractual service margin EUR million 11,368 10,720 9,592
Subordinated liabilities (hybrid capital) EUR million 4,487 5,262 5,009
Investments for own risk EUR million 144,302 135,390 127,345
Carrying amount per share EUR 45.16 40.46 34.10
excluding goodwill EUR 39.00 34.22 30.08
Share price EUR 82.15 64.65 44.32
Number of shares outstanding number 258,228,991 258,228,991 253,350,943
as at the reporting
Employees date 29,976 27,863 23,669

* Adjusted in accordance with IAS 8 as well as IFRS 8 in conjunction with IAS 8, see also the “Accounting policies” section of the Notes and adjusted, see “Accounting policies”,
section “Summary of significant accounting policies” of the Notes.
Ratio of net investment income for own risk to average investment portfolio for own risk.

2
* Ratio of net income (after financing costs and taxes) excluding non-controlling interests to average equity excluding non-controlling interests.

4 1-[insurance service result (net) divided by insurance revenue (gross)].

* 1-[insurance service result divided by (insurance revenue —expenses from reinsurance contracts held)].



»Despite geopolitical uncertain-
ties, increasing volatility and
weak economic growth, we
exceeded our ambitious targets,
generated a new record level of
earnings and further increased
our resilience in a challenging
market environment. Together
with our 30,000 or so highly
qualified and committed staff,
we again showed that our
performance-driven culture and
focused strategy are paying off.
Our sustainable growth path
makes us very confident of
reaching our ambitious goals for
the period up to 2027.«

Torsten Leue
(Chairman of the Board
of Management)
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Letter to
our share-
holders

Q!Zou I[Aou—(,c(o((/(lr) ,

Your Talanx Group steadily continued on its extremely positive path
in 2024. Our focused strategy paid off in a challenging global environ-
ment with geopolitical uncertainties, increasing volatility and weak
economic growth, and we not only met but in fact clearly exceeded
our ambitious targets.

Our premium income rose by a double-digit 11 percent to EUR 48.1 bil-
lion, with 8 percentage points of this being attributable to organic
growth. As a result, we again increased the market share for our prop-
erty/casualty business, in line with our strategy. Particularly encour-
aging was the fact that Group net income grew more than twice as fast
as premiums, rising by 25 percent to a record high of EUR 1,977 million
and further enhancing our resilience to absorb potential future risks.
This development reflects our strong operating business, focused
strategic add-on acquisitions in South America in particular, and a
low-risk investment strategy that is focused on bonds with a high
credit quality. Our return on equity was approximately 18 percent.

We want you, our shareholders, to benefit from this success as well,
which is why the Board of Management and Supervisory Board will
be proposing a significant dividend increase of 35 cents to EUR 2.70 to
the General Meeting. This means we have lifted the dividend by more
than 60 percent in the past three financial years. Our Talanx shares
generated a high total shareholder return in a volatile capital market
environment, with a dividend yield of 3.7 percent. The share price in-
creased by almost 30 percent, outperforming our peer indices, the
MDAX (-8%) and the STOXX Europe 600 Insurance (+18%).

Our 30,000 or so highly motivated and committed staff are behind
these successes. Their dedication and enthusiasm day in, day out
help us exceed our ambitious targets and live our Purpose - “Together
we take care of the unexpected and foster entrepreneurship” —in a

results-driven, trust-based culture. Our annual employee engage-
ment survey, which has a participation rate of nearly 9o percent,
shows how deeply our values — transparency, commitment and col-
laboration — are embedded in our Company. I would like to take this
opportunity, on behalf of the entire Board of Management, to warmly
thank all our staff for this. Ilook forward to continuing our extremely
successful work together.

Gratifyingly, all divisions contributed to our record net income by
improving their results. Premium income at our Primary Insurance
operations, which largely focus on the property/casualty business,
rose by 16 percent to EUR 22.9 billion, and Group net income to
EUR 1,113 million. As a result, the Primary Insurance Group increased
its share of Group earnings to almost 50 percent, demonstrating the
Talanx Group’s high degree of diversification. We defended our cost
leadership in almost all of our Group’s divisions —i.e. in the industrial
insurance, reinsurance and retail international businesses — and are
taking a number of other measures in your interests to extend this
cost leadership further.

m  Our Corporate & Specialty Division turned in a strong perfor-
mance, proving its value as a cornerstone for the Group, and is
now the largest business area in our primary insurance seg-
ments. The division recorded a double-digit (10 percent) rise in
insurance revenue to top the EUR 10 billion mark for the first
time. Group net income jumped 43 percent to EUR 501 million
due to growth, fewer large losses and higher investment income.

m  The Retail International business proved to be a profitable
growth engine for our Group. Premium income rose by a double-
digit 31 percent to more than EUR 9.3 billion, with 7 percentage
points of this being attributable to organic growth. Group net
income climbed 62 percent to EUR 449 million. This was helped



by the successful and swift integration of the companies ac-
quired from Liberty Mutual in Brazil, Chile and Colombia, which
accounted for more than EUR 80 million, and the successful
continuation of a large number of banking partnerships in
Turkiye, Poland, Chile and Brazil.

m  The Retail Germany Division increased its premium income by
nearly 2 percent to EUR 3.6 billion and generated stable Group
net income of EUR 163 million (EUR 161 million). In addition, the
division made initial progress towards cutting costs to market
levels and returning to focused profitable growth again in
selected market segments.

= Our Reinsurance Division continued successfully expanding its
market position in a challenging environment on the back of its
efficient, customer-oriented business model. Insurance revenue
rose by 8 percent to EUR 26.4 billion and Group net income
jumped 28 percent to EUR 1,170 million, three times the figure for
premium growth. The division will continue its highly successful
performance of recent years under the new Chairman of its
Board of Management; the appointment of Clemens Jungsthofel
to succeed Jean-Jacques Henchoz was announced in November.
I'would like to wish Jean-Jacques Henchoz all the best for the next
stage in his life and am delighted that we have found an excellent
successor in Clemens Jungsthofel.

Innovations and sustainable transformation are critical success
factors in our strategy. We are enhancing efficiency and customer sat-
isfaction through the targeted use of scalable artificial intelligence
and data-driven technologies. Our Munich-based Best Practice Lab
actively promotes global knowledge sharing so as to transfer these
innovative ideas throughout the Group.
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»Not only did we
meet our ambitious
targets, we clearly
exceeded them.«

B Torsten Leue, Chairman of the Board of Management

Sustainability is an integral part of what we do: in 2024, we increased
our sustainable assets by EUR 2.7 billion to roughly EUR 14 billion and
improved our MSCI ESG rating to AA.

We remain highly optimistic for the coming financial years, based on
the trust-based, results-driven culture that we live, our strong finan-
cial foundations and our focused strategic course. We are expecting
Group net income of more than EUR 2.1 billion for 2025 in a market
environment that will remain challenging. In December, we pub-
lished new, ambitious medium-term goals for your Talanx Group for
the period up to financial year 2027. The goal is to grow Group net
income by more than 30 percent to more than EUR 2.5 billion. You,
our shareholders, should benefit from this, with the dividend expect-
ed to rise to EUR 4.00 by 2027 — an increase of 50 percent.

Our focus remains clear: profitable growth, unwavering customer
orientation, strict capital management and clear cost leadership.

Dear shareholders, we set great store by the trust you place in the
Talanx Group, which is a constant motivation for us.Tam delighted to
know you will continue to be by our side on our successful journey.

%’u 'S Hucm(g ,

o A

3



Talanx Group ] Annual Report2024 W

Board of

Manage-
ment

Torsten Leue

Chairman

Hannover

Chairman of the Board of Management
HDI V.a.G., Hannover

Responsible on the Talanx Board of
Management for:

Audit

Best Practice Lab
Communications

Corporate Development
Governance/Corporate Office
Investor Relations
Sustainability/ESG

Further memberships of other supervisory
boards/comparable supervisory bodies:
Chairman of the Supervisory Board

E+S Ruckversicherung AG

Hannover Ruick SE

HDI AG

HDI Deutschland AG

HDI Global SE

HDI International AG

Member of the Advisory Board

= Commerzbank AG!

Jean-Jacques Henchoz

Hannover

Chairman of the Board of Management
Hannover Ruck SE, Hannover

Responsible on the Talanx Board of
Management for:
= Reinsurance Division

Further memberships of other supervisory

boards/comparable supervisory bodies:

Chairman of the Board of Directors

m  Hannover Re (Bermuda) Ltd.

Member of the Board of Directors

= Hannover Life Reassurance Company of
America (Bermuda) Ltd.

= Hannover Life Re of Australasia Ltd.

Board of Management

Dr Wilm Langenbach

Hannover

Chairman of the Board of Management
HDI International AG, Hannover

Responsible on the Talanx Board of
Management for:
m  Retail International Division

Further memberships of other supervisory

boards/comparable supervisory bodies:

Chairman of the Supervisory Board

m  HDI Seguros S.A. de C.V,, Mexico

m  HDI Seguros S.A., Brazil

m  HDI Seguros do Brasil S. A.

m  Yelum Seguros S.A. & Indiana
Seguros S.A., Brazil

m  Towarzystwo Ubezpieczen Europa
Spolka Akcyjna

= Towarzystwo Ubezpieczen na Zycie
Europa Spolka Akcyjna

= Towarzystwo Ubezpieczen na Zycie
WARTA Spolka Akcyjna

= Towarzystwo Ubezpieczen i Reasekuracji
WARTA Spolka Akcyjn

Chairman of the Administrative Board

m  HDI Assicurazioni S.p.A.

= HDI Sigorta A.S.

Dr Edgar Puls

Hannover

Member of the Board of Management
HDI V.a.G., Hannover

Chairman of the Board of Management
HDI Global SE, Hannover

Responsible on the Talanx Board of
Management for:

m  Corporate & Specialty Division
m  Reinsurance Captive Talanx AG

Seats on other supervisory boards/oversight
committees:

Member of the Supervisory Board

m HDIAG

m Talanx Reinsurance Broker GmbH

Caroline Schlienkamp

Gehrden

Director of Labour Relations
(pursuant to section 33 of the German
Co-determination Act [MitbestG])
Speaker of the Board of Management
HDI AG, Hannover

Responsible on the Talanx Board of
Management for:

m  Business Organisation

Corporate Services

Legal — Law, Compliance, Data Protection
People & Culture

Procurement & Supplier Management

Further memberships of other supervisory
boards/comparable supervisory bodies:
= None



Jens Warkentin

Cologne

Chairman of the Board of Management
HDI Deutschland AG, Hannover

Responsible on the Talanx Board of
Management for:

= Retail Germany Division

= Brand Management

= Information Technology

Further memberships of other supervisory
boards/comparable supervisory bodies:
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
LPV Lebensversicherung AG

LPV Versicherung AG

neue leben Holding AG

TARGO Lebensversicherung AG
TARGO Versicherung AG

Member of the Supervisory Board

= Gerling Versorgungskasse VVaG

n HDIAG

Dr Jan Wicke

Hannover

Member of the Board of Management
HDI V.a.G., Hannover

Responsible on the Talanx Board of
Management for:

Accounting
Collections/Disbursement
Controlling
Finance/Treasury
Investments/Real Estate
IT Security

Reinsurance Procurement
Risk Management

Taxes

Further memberships of other supervisory
boards/comparable supervisory bodies:
Chairman of the Supervisory Board

®  Ampega Asset Management GmbH

= Ampega Investment GmbH

= Talanx Reinsurance Broker GmbH
Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board
= HDIAG

= HDI International AG

Member of the Supervisory Board

m  E+S Ruckversicherung AG

Member of the Exchange Council

m  Frankfurt Stock Exchange!

* Memberships of statutory supervisory boards and
comparable control boards at other domestic and foreign
business enterprises that do not belong to the Group.
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Supervisory
Board

Herbert K. Haas

(since 8 May 2018)

Chairman

Burgwedel

Former Chairman of the Board of
Management

Talanx AG

Further memberships of other supervisory
boards/comparable supervisory bodies:
Chairman of the Supervisory Board

= HDIV.a.G.

Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board
= Hannover Rick SE

Jutta Hammer?

(since 1 February 2011)

Deputy Chairwoman (since 7 May 2024)
Bergisch Gladbach

Employee

HDIAG

Further memberships of other supervisory
boards/comparable supervisory bodies:
Deputy Chairwoman of the Supervisory
Board

n HDIAG

Ralf Rieger*

(until 7 May 2024)
Deputy Chairman
Raesfeld
Employee
HDIAG

Angela Titzrath

(since 8 May 2018)

Deputy Chairwoman (since 4 May 2023)
Hamburg

Chairwoman of the Board of Management,
Hamburger Hafen und Logistik AG

Supervisory Board

Further memberships of other supervisory
boards/comparable supervisory bodies:
Deputy Chairwoman of the Supervisory
Board

s HDIV.a.G.

Member of the Supervisory Board

= Evonik AG?

= Lufthansa AG?

Natalie Bani Ardalan*
(since 7 May 2024)
Springe

Employee

Hannover Riick SE

Further memberships of other supervisory
boards/comparable supervisory bodies:
Member of the Supervisory Board

m  Hannover Riick SE (until 06 May 2024)

Benita Bierstedt*

(until 7 May 2024)
Hannover

Employee

E+S Rickversicherung AG

Further memberships of other supervisory
boards/comparable supervisory bodies:
Member of the Supervisory Board
m  E+S Ruckversicherung AG

(until 30 June 2024)

Rainer-Karl Bock-Wehr*

(since 9 May 2019)

Cologne

Head of Competence Centre Commercial,
HDI AG

Dr Joachim Brenk

(since 4 May 2023)

Liibeck

Chairman of the Board of Management
L. Possehl & Co. mbH

Further memberships of other supervisory

boards/comparable supervisory bodies:

Chairman of the Supervisory Board

m  Hako GmbH? (until 31 December 2024)

m  Harburg-Freudenberger Maschinenbau
GmbH?*

Member of the Supervisory Board

m  HDIGlobal SE

m HDIV.a.G.

Sebastian Gascard?

(since 9 May 2019)
I[sernhagen

In-house Company Lawyer
(Liability Underwriter)
HDI AG

Dr Christof Glinther
(since 4 May 2023)
Merseburg
Managing Director
Infraleuna GmbH

Further memberships of other supervisory

boards/comparable supervisory bodies:

Member of the Supervisory Board

= HDIV.a.G.

= Wohnungsgenossenschaft Aufbau e.G.?

= Institut fir Unternehmensforschung
und Unternehmensfihrung an der
Martin-Luther-Universitdt Halle-
Wittenberg e.V.?



Dr Hermann Jung

(since 6 May 2013)

Heidenheim

Former Member of the Board of Directors
Voith GmbH

Further memberships of other supervisory
boards/comparable supervisory bodies:
Member of the Supervisory Board

= HDIV.a.G.

Member of the Board of Directors

= Dachser Group SE & Co. KG*

Dirk Lohmann

(since 6 May 2013)

Forch, Switzerland

Vice Chairman of the ILS Division of
Schroders Capital,

Schroder Investment Management
(Switzerland) AG

Further memberships of other supervisory

boards/comparable supervisory bodies:

Member of the Administrative Board

m  Schroder Investment Management
(Switzerland) AG?

Member of the Board of Directors

m Zweigelt Holdings Ltd., Guernsey?

Christoph Meister*

(since 8 May 2014)

Hannover

Member of the ver.di National Executive
Board

Further memberships of other supervisory
boards/comparable supervisory bodies:
Chairman of the Supervisory Board

m  ver.diBildung + Beratung gGmbH?*

m  Vermogensverwaltung der Vereinten
Dienstleistungsgewerkschaft (ver.di)
GmbH?

= ver.di GewerkschaftsPolitische
Bildung gGmbH?

Member of the Supervisory Board

= verdiService GmbH?

Member of the Advisory Board

m  BGAG Beteiligungsgesellschaft der
Gewerkschaften GmbH?

Jutta Miick?

(until 7 May 2024)

Diemelstadt

Market Management & Distribution
HDI AG

Dr Sandra Reich

(since 4 May 2023)

Grifelfing

Self-employed Business Consultant
Sustainable Finance

Further memberships of other supervisory
boards/comparable supervisory bodies:
Member of the Supervisory Board

= Aurubis AG?

= GLS Bank?

Matthias Rickel*
(since 7 May 2024)
Hannover
Employee

HDI AG
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Prof Dr Jens Schubert?*

(since 8 May 2014)

Potsdam

Trade Union secretary

ver.di National Administration
(until 31 January 2025)

University professor, Brandenburg
University of Technology Cottbus-
Senftenberg (since 1 February 2025)

Further memberships of other supervisory
boards/comparable supervisory bodies:
Member of the Supervisory Board

m HDIAG

Member of the Creditors’ Committee

= Schleckere.K.?

m  Schlecker XL GmbH?

Patrick Seidel*
(since 7 May 2024)
Hannover
Employee
Hannover Riick SE

Further memberships of other supervisory
boards/comparable supervisory bodies:
Member of the Supervisory Board

m  E+S Rickversicherung AG

Norbert Steiner

(since 6 May 2013)

Baunatal

Former Chairman of the Board of
Management

K+S AG

Further memberships of other supervisory
boards/comparable supervisory bodies:
Member of the Supervisory Board

s HDIV.a.G.

1 Employee representative.

2 Memberships of statutory supervisory boards and
comparable control boards at other domestic and foreign
business enterprises that do not belong to the Group.
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Supervisory
Board
committees

Composition as at 31 December 2024 Tasks of the committees

The Supervisory Board has formed four committees from among its ~ You can find a detailed description of the committees’ tasks in the
ranks. The members of these committees support the work of the full ~ “Supervisory Board” section of the corporate governance report.
Supervisory Board.

Finance and Audit Committee Finance and Audit Committee
Dr Hermann Jung, Chairman m Preparation of financial decisions for the full Supervisory Board
Natalie Bani Ardalan m Decisions in lieu of the full Supervisory Board on certain
Dr Christof Glinther financial matters, including the establishment of companies,
Herbert K. Haas acquisition of participating interests and capital increases at
Jutta Hammer subsidiaries within defined value limits
Angela Titzrath

Personnel Committee
Personnel Committee m  Preparation of personnel matters for the full Supervisory Board
Herbert K. Haas, Chairman m  Decisions in lieu of the full Supervisory Board on certain
Sebastian Gascard personnel matters for which the full Supervisory Board is not
Norbert Steiner required to assume sole responsibility
Angela Titzrath

Standing Committee
Standing Committee m Proposal for the appointment of a Board member if the
Herbert K. Haas, Chairman necessary two-thirds majority is not achieved in the first ballot in
Jutta Hammer accordance with section 31(3) of the German Co-determination
Prof. Dr Jens Schubert Act (MitbestG)
Angela Titzrath

Nomination Committee
Nomination Committee m  Proposal of suitable candidates for the Supervisory Board’s
Herbert K. Haas, Chairman nominations to the Annual General Meeting

Dr Joachim Brenk
Dirk Lohmann
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Report of
the Super-
visory Board

Dear Readers,

In the 2024 financial year, the Supervisory Board once again per-
formed the tasks and duties required of it by law, the Articles of
Association and its Rules of Procedure. We thoroughly reviewed the
economic and risk situation at the level of Talanx AG and its major
subsidiaries in Germany and in the most important foreign markets.
We advised the Board of Management on all issues that were material
to the Company, continuously monitored its management of the
business and were directly involved in decisions of fundamental im-
portance. Business performance, taking into account the impact of
large losses due to natural catastrophes and man-made losses, was
once again a key focus of the reporting to the Supervisory Board this
year.

Overview

In the reporting period, we convened for four ordinary meetings and
one inaugural meeting following the election of the new employee
representatives on the Supervisory Board. The ordinary meetings
and the inaugural meeting were all held in person. Two representa-
tives of the Federal Financial Supervisory Authority (BaFin) took part
in the ordinary meeting on 12 November 2024 in line with routine
practice. The Supervisory Board’s Finance and Audit Committee held
five ordinary meetings, four of which were held in person and one
was held as a video conference. The Personnel Committee held two
meetings, both of which were in person. The Nomination Committee
and the Standing Committee formed in accordance with the provi-
sions of the German Co-determination Act (MitbestG) did not meet
in 2024. The full Supervisory Board was briefed in each case on the
work of the committees at its meetings. An overview of the individu-
al attendance of Supervisory Board members at the meetings can be
found in this report.

The Supervisory Board was briefed by the Board of Management in
written and verbal reports on the course of business and the position
of both the Company and the Group, based on the quarterly state-
ments and the interim report for the first half of the financial year. At
no point during the reporting period did we consider it necessary to
perform audits or examinations pursuant to section 111(2) sentence 1

Annual Report 2024 ] Talanx Group

of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG). The chairmen of the
Supervisory Board and of the Board of Management were in regular
contact regarding material developments and transactions within
the Company and the Talanx Group, and discussed questions relating
to strategy, planning, performance, the risk situation, opportunity
and risk management, and compliance. Overall, we satisfied our-
selves of the lawfulness, appropriateness, regularity and efficiency of
the work of the Board of Management, within the scope of our
responsibilities under the law and the Articles of Association.

The Board of Management provided us with regular, timely and com-
prehensive information on the Company’s business situation and
financial position, on risk management, on major capital expendi-
ture projects and on fundamental corporate policy issues. It reported
in detail on the impact of natural catastrophes and other large losses,
the status of major lawsuits, and other key developments at the Com-
pany and the Group and in the regulatory environment. At our meet-
ings, we intensively discussed the reports provided by the Board of
Management, made suggestions and proposed improvements. The
Supervisory Board also met regularly without the Board of Manage-
ment being present, including to discuss Board of Management
personnel matters and internal Supervisory Board matters.

Following examination and discussion with the Board of Manage-
ment, we passed resolutions on transactions and measures requiring
our approval in accordance with the law, the Articles of Association
and the Rules of Procedure.

Main topics discussed in meetings of the full board

The business performance of the Company and that of'its divisions in
the current financial year, the strategic orientation in individual divi-
sions, possible acquisition projects abroad and the planning for 2025
were the primary focal points of the reporting to the Board and our
discussions, and were addressed in detail during our meetings. The
Supervisory Board also devoted considerable time to discussing and
approving the Group’s strategic targets.

9
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At its meeting on 19 March 2024, the Supervisory Board also dis-
cussed the audited annual and consolidated financial statements
along with the Board of Management’s proposal for the appropria-
tion of the distributable profit in financial year 2023. The auditor
stated that an unqualified audit opinion had been issued for both the
single-entity and the consolidated financial statements. At this meet-
ing, the Supervisory Board also discussed in detail the report of the
Board of Management on the non-financial Group statement for
2023. The engaged auditing firm conducted a limited assurance audit
and issued an unqualified audit opinion. Furthermore, the Supervi-
sory Board approved the agenda and the proposed resolutions for the
Annual General Meeting, which was again held in a virtual format. At
this meeting, the Board discussed in detail the acquisition of the
Liberty Mutual companies in Latin America. The Supervisory Board
also discussed various projects and reportable events and approved
the extension of an external credit line. It also received a detailed re-
port on the Group’s sustainability strategy. In addition, the Supervi-
sory Board regularly discussed the remuneration of the members of
the Board of Management and set the variable remuneration due to
the members of the Board of Management for financial year 2023.
Furthermore, it approved adjustments to the allocation of responsi-
bilities to the members of the Board of Management.

Following the re-election of the employee representatives to the
Supervisory Board, in accordance with the German Co-determina-
tion Act (MitbestG), Ms Hammer was elected as the first deputy chair
of the Supervisory Board at an inaugural meeting on 7 May 2024,
immediately following the Annual General Meeting. This was after
Mr Rieger, who had previously held this position, did not stand for
re-election to the Supervisory Board. At this meeting, the Supervi-
sory Board also held by-elections to fill the positions on the Finance
and Audit Committee and the Personnel Committee. In the second
part of the meeting, the members of the Supervisory Board received
training as regards the Group’s internal risk model from internal
speakers from Talanx Group Risk Management.

At the ordinary Supervisory Board meeting on 14 May 2024, the
Board of Management reported on the results of the first quarter of
2024 and provided an outlook for the remainder of the financial year.
The Supervisory Board discussed the dissolution of an existing joint
venture between Hannover Re and E+S Ruck and Munich Re and
adopted a resolution in this regard. We also received a report on the
current status of the strategic orientation of the Retail Germany Divi-
sion. Furthermore, we were provided with an update on the Talanx
Group’s IT strategy, which we discussed with the Board of Manage-
ment. We also discussed and approved an internal recapitalisation
measure for our Group company LPV Lebensversicherung AG.

The meeting of the Supervisory Board on 2 and 3 September 2024 was
held in Rome at our local Group units, and we received detailed re-
ports on both units’ current and expected business performance. We
also had the local companies’ People & Culture, Agency Manage-
ment, Claims and Fraud Management areas presented to us in detail

Report of the Supervisory Board

in various workshops. At the Supervisory Board meeting, the Board of
Management also reported on the half-yearly results and the expec-
tations for the 2024 annual financial statements of Talanx AG and the
Group. Furthermore, the Supervisory Board received the annual
report on expense ratios compared with competitors and the report
on related party transactions and discussed risk reporting at length.
The results of the annual self-assessments conducted by the mem-
bers of the Supervisory Board in accordance with the requirements of
the insurance supervisory authority with regard to their knowledge
in the areas of material importance to the Group were discussed as
scheduled; according to the results, the Supervisory Board as a whole
continues to possess the knowledge, skills and experience required to
monitor the Board of Management.

At the Supervisory Board meeting on 12 November 2024, the Board of
Management reported on the third-quarter results and gave an out-
look for the 2024 annual financial statements for Talanx AG and the
Group. The Supervisory Board discussed the planning for the 2025
financial year at length and reviewed a status update on the integra-
tion of the Liberty Mutual companies in Latin America. In addition,
the Supervisory Board again discussed the current status of the strat-
egy of the Retail Germany Division. The Supervisory Board was also
briefed on a range of projects and reportable events and received the
regularly scheduled risk management report (“ORSA report”) and
report on pending litigation. Furthermore, it discussed the topic of
artificial intelligence and thoroughly debated its significance for and
impact on the Group. It also discussed the strategic partnership
between Talanx AG and Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company and
decided to terminate said partnership effective as at the end of 2025.
The Supervisory Board also approved the declaration of compliance
with the German Corporate Governance Code and discussed the
results of the Engagement Survey introduced in 2024, which has re-
placed the annual Organizational Health Check employee survey.
Finally, the meeting dealt with a detailed update on the Group’s CSRD
programme (Corporate Sustainability Reporting Directive) and a train-
ing session on the CSRD was held by internal and external speakers.

Work of the committees

The Supervisory Board has established a number of committees to
enable it to perform its duties efficiently. These are the Finance and
Audit Committee, which has six members, the Personnel Committee
and the Standing Committee, each of which has four members, and
the Nomination Committee, which has three members. The commit-
tees prepare the discussions in, and the resolutions to be adopted by,
the full Supervisory Board. They have also been delegated with the
authority to pass resolutions themselves in specific areas. The
minutes of Finance and Audit Committee meetings are also made
available to those members of the Supervisory Board who are not
members of this committee. The members of the different commit-
tees are listed on page 8 of the annual report.



Along with preparing the discussions and resolutions by the full
Supervisory Board, the Finance and Audit Committee examined in
depth the Company’s and the Group’s annual financial statements,
the report for the first six months of the year and quarterly state-
ments, together with the individual components of the financial
statements and the key performance indicators, as well as the results
ofthe auditors’ review of the interim report. Additionally, the Finance
and Audit Committee discussed the findings of the annual internal
and external actuarial audit of the gross and net claims reserves for
the Group’s non-life insurance business. The Committee devoted
considerable time to the planning for the coming financial year and
discussed strategic decisions in individual divisions of the Group.
Furthermore, we examined the risk reports and received an audit
planning report from the auditors. The Committee listened to re-
ports on non-audit services provided by the auditors in accordance
with the whitelist and also looked in detail at the current implemen-
tation status of the introduction of the new IFRS 17/9 accounting
standard. The Committee also received the annual reports from the
four key functions (Risk Controlling, Actuarial, Auditing and Compli-
ance), which were presented to us by the heads of these functions and
explained in more detail where committee members had any ques-
tions. The Finance and Audit Committee regularly examined matters
related to accounting, auditing and the internal control system. It
discussed the assessment of audit risk, the audit strategy, audit plan-
ning and audit findings with the auditor. The Chairman of the Audit
Committee regularly discussed the progress of the audit with the
auditor and reported on this to the Committee. The Finance and
Audit Committee also met to discuss individual agenda items with-
out the members of the Board of Management in attendance.

As well as preparing the discussions and resolutions by the full
Supervisory Board, the Personnel Committee also again closely
addressed succession planning for the Company’s Board of Manage-
ment in 2024. It also addressed the issue of how suitable the amount
of remuneration paid to members of the Board of Management is on
the basis of horizontal and vertical remuneration comparisons. Rec-
ommendations were also made to the full Supervisory Board in con-
nection with the regular forthcoming review of Board of Manage-
ment remuneration, determining variable Board of Management
remuneration components and setting targets for Board of Manage-
ment members for financial year 2025.
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The following table provides an overview of individual meeting
attendance by members of the Supervisory Board and the commit-
tees in 2024.

INDIVIDUALISED DISCLOSURE OF MEETING ATTENDANCE

Attendance rate

Number of

meetings %
Full Supervisory Board attendance
Herbert K. Haas 5/5 100
Ralf Rieger (until 7 May 2024) 1/1 100
Jutta Hammer 5/5 100
Angela Titzrath 5/5 100
Natalie Bani Ardalan (since 7 May 2024) 4/4 100
Benita Bierstedt (until 7 May 2024) 1/1 100
Rainer-Karl Bock-Wehr 5/5 100
Dr Joachim Brenk 5/5 100
Sebastian L. Gascard 5/5 100
Dr Christof Glinther 5/5 100
Dr Hermann Jung 5/5 100
Dirk Lohmann 5/5 100
Christoph Meister 5/5 100
Jutta Miick (until 7 May 2024) 1/1 100
Dr Sandra Reich 5/5 100
Matthias Rickel (since 7 May 2024) 4/4 100
Prof. Dr Jens Schubert 5/5 100
Patrick Seidel (since 7 May 2024) 4/4 100
Norbert Steiner 5/5 100
Finance and Audit Committee attendance
Dr Hermann Jung 5/5 100
Natalie Bani Ardalan (since 7 May 2024) 4/4 100
Dr Christof Glinther 5/5 100
Herbert K. Haas 5/5 100
Jutta Hammer 5/5 100
Ralf Rieger (until 7 May 2024) 1/1 100
Angela Titzrath 5/5 100
Personnel Committee attendance
Herbert K. Haas 2/2 100
Sebastian Gascard (since 7 May 2024) 1/1 100
Jutta Miick (until 7 May 2024) 1/1 100
Norbert Steiner 2/2 100

Angela Titzrath 2/2 100

11
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Work of our sustainability experts

At the beginning of the financial year, the Supervisory Board’s
sustainability experts, Dr Reich, Prof. Schubert and Mr Steiner, took a
close look at the drafts of the non-financial statement, which forms
part of the Group’s annual report, and the subsequent sustainability
report. Further activities then focused on preparing the first report in
accordance with the Corporate Sustainability Reporting Directive for
the 2024 financial year. For this purpose, the sustainability experts
held four meetings with the Talanx team responsible for its introduc-
tion. The first item of business was the implementation of the newly
devised materiality analysis. This was followed by a discussion of the
procedure for introducing the new reporting system and evaluating
the results of the materiality analysis. Accordingly, the sustainability
experts were involved in preparing the content of the CSRD training
for the full Supervisory Board, among other activities, and ensured
the flow of information from the expert group to the full Board.

Declaration of compliance

The declaration of compliance with the German Corporate Govern-
ance Code (GCGC) was adopted on 12 November 2024. The current
declaration of compliance issued by Talanx AG does not contain any
deviations from the Code’s recommendations because the company
is in compliance with all of the Code’s recommendations. Further in-
formation on corporate governance can be found on Talanx AG’s
website.

Audit of the annual and consolidated
financial statements

The annual financial statements for Talanx AG submitted by the
Board of Management, the consolidated financial statements for the
Talanx Group, which were prepared in accordance with the Inter-
national Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted by the
European Union, and the corresponding management reports were
audited together with the bookkeeping by PricewaterhouseCoopers
(PwC) GmbH, Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft, Hannover. The audi-
tors were appointed by the company’s Annual General Meeting on
7 May 2024; the Finance and Audit Committee issued the detailed
audit engagement and specified that, in addition to the usual audit
tasks, the audit of the financial statements should give special atten-
tion to audit support for the implementation of IFRS 17/9. The
enforcement priorities set out by the German Financial Reporting
Enforcement Panel (FREP) were also included in the audit activities
performed by the auditors.

The audits performed by the auditors did not give rise to any grounds
for objection. The auditors issued unqualified audit reports stating
that the bookkeeping and the annual and consolidated financial
statements give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and financial performance, and that the management
reports are consistent with the annual and consolidated financial
statements.

Report of the Supervisory Board

The financial statements documents and PwC'’s audit reports were
circulated to all members of the Supervisory Board well in advance.
They were examined in detail at the Finance and Audit Committee
meeting on 17 March 2025 and at the Supervisory Board meeting on
18 March 2025. The auditors took part in the discussions of the annu-
al and consolidated financial statements by both the Finance and
Audit Committee and the full Supervisory Board, reported on the
performance of the audits and were available to provide us with addi-
tional information. On the basis of the final results of our own review
of the annual financial statements, the consolidated financial state-
ments, the corresponding management reports, including the
sustainability statement that also fulfils the requirements for the
Group non-financial statement, which also meets the requirements
for the non-financial Group statement, and the audit reports pre-
pared by the auditors, we concurred with their assessment in each
case and approved the annual and consolidated financial statements
prepared by the Board of Management.

The annual financial statements have therefore been adopted. We
agree with the statements made in the management reports regard-
ing the Company’s future development. After examining all relevant
considerations, we concur with the Board of Management'’s proposal
for the appropriation of the distributable profit.

The report on the Company’s relationships with affiliated companies
that was drawn up by the Board of Management in accordance with
section 312 of the AktG was also audited by PwC GmbH and was
issued with the following unqualified audit opinion:

“Following the completion of our audit, which was carried out in
accordance with professional standards, we confirm that

1. The information contained in the report is correct,

2. The compensation paid by the Company with respect to the trans-
actions listed in the report was not inappropriately high.”

We examined the report on relationships with affiliated companies
and reached the same conclusion as the auditors. We have no objec-
tions to the statement that is reproduced in this report.

Sustainability statement

The Finance and Audit Committee and the Supervisory Board dis-
cussed the Board of Management’s report on the sustainability state-
ment in detail (see page 86 ff. of the Group management report). The
Board of Management presented the report at the Finance and Audit
Committee meeting on 17 March 2025 and the Supervisory Board
meeting on 18 March 2025. Auditor representatives were present at
both meetings and reported the material findings of their audit. The
engaged auditing firm PwC GmbH conducted a limited assurance au-
dit and issued an unqualified audit opinion. No objections were
raised following the Supervisory Board’s own review of the sustaina-
bility statement, and the result of the audit by PwC GmbH was noted
and approved.



Composition of the Supervisory Board and
the Board of Management

The term of office of the Supervisory Board’s employee representa-
tives ended at the close of the Annual General Meeting on 7 May
2024. Ms Hammer, Mr Bock-Wehr, Mr Gascard, Mr Meister and
Prof. Schubert were re-elected by the employees. Ms Bani Ardalan,
Mr Rickel and Mr Seidel were newly elected as employee representa-
tives to the Supervisory Board, while the terms of office of Mr Rieger,
Ms Bierstedt and Ms Miick ended at the close of the Annual General
Meeting on 7 May 2024. The Supervisory Board thanked Mr Rieger, as
the first deputy chairman, as well as Ms Bierstedt and Ms Miick for
their outstanding work and valuable co-operation.

There were no changes to the composition of the Company’s Board of
Management in the reporting period. At the Supervisory Board
meeting on 12 November 2024, the decision was taken not to extend
Jean-Jacques Henchoz’s expiring contract at his personal request;
Mr. Henchoz will leave the Board of Management of Talanx AG on
31 March 2025. Clemens Jungsthofel, currently Chief Financial Officer
and designated Chief Executive Officer of Hannover Riick SE, has
been appointed to succeed Mr. Henchoz as a member of the Board of
Management of Talanx AG with effect from 1 April 2025, where he will
be responsible for the Reinsurance Division. The Supervisory Board
would like to thank Mr Henchoz for his extremely successful work on
the Company’s Board of Management.

Our thanks to the Board of Management
and employees

We again generated extraordinarily Group net income for financial
year 2024. This achievement is thanks to the dedication and tireless
commitment shown by our employees. We would like to express our
sincere thanks to them and to the Board of Management.

Hannover, 18 March 2025

On behalf of the Supervisory Board

i Lo

Herbert Haas
(Chairman)

Annual Report 2024

Talanx Group
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Talanx
shares

Talanx shares perform extremely well in the
reporting period

= Driven by the company’s excellent performance, the share price
rose to a new all-time high of EUR 85.40 during the year, closing
2024 up 27% on the previous year-end price

= Talanx shares outperformed the MDAX and STOXX Europe 600
Insurance indices

m  Strategy of diversification and decentralisation proves a success

The insurance industry and the market environment continue to be
shaped by the increasing number of geopolitical crises and persistent

PERFORMANCE OF TALANX SHARES COMPARED TO PEER INDICES

inflation. In this environment, Talanx's strategy of diversification and
decentralisation paid off, with Talanx demonstrating resilience and
exceeding its financial targets. This, in turn, drove the share price
higher over the course of the year.

The share price initially remained stable at between EUR 63.00 and
EUR 67.00 at the beginning of the year and experienced a noticeable
upturn in March around the publication of the 2023 annual report.
The positive news regarding the company’s performance in the first
quarter of 2024, which was published in May, further boosted this up-
ward trend. During the summer months, the share price experienced
a brief downturn, resulting in the year’s low of EUR 63.45.

01.01.2024=100

11 December

2024 Capital Markets
Day and increase of
the dividend for 2024

140 21 March
Publication of the 2023 15 May
Annual Report Publication of the
130 Quarterly Statement
for Q12024
120

. A

e AT

[
14 November
Publication of the Quarterly
Statement for Q3 2024

) W %\// Mj

80

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
2024
— Talanx AG — MDAX — STOXX Europe 600 Insurance Peer average®

Source: EQS; the values for Talanx and the peer average correspond to price index data, while the values for the MDAX and STOXX Europe 600 Insurance are what are

known as performance indices, which include a reinvested dividend.
* Peers: Allianz, Axa, Generali, Mapfre, Munich Re, Swiss Re, VIG, Zurich.



Upon presentation of the half-yearly figures for 2024, however, the
share price again experienced noticeable upward momentum, before
uncertainties surrounding a hurricane season forecast to be particu-
larly destructive once again reversed this trend in the third quarter.
Despite an increase in large loss claims compared to the same period
last year and a high number of severe natural catastrophes, large loss-
es remained within the scope of expectations and the loss budget set
aside for this purpose. The capital market’s positive response to the
nine-month reporting and the associated increase in earnings tar-
gets for the 2024 financial year caused the share price to rise to over
EUR 80.00 at the end of November. Driven by the new medium-term
financial targets for the period 2025-2027 and the dividend increase,
which were announced at the Capital Markets Day event on 11 Decem-
ber 2024, the share price climbed to a new all-time high of EUR 85.40
and ended the year at a closing price of EUR 82.15.

In relation to the market as a whole, Talanx shares significantly out-
performed the relevant indices MDAX (-8%) and STOXX Europe 600
Insurance (+18%) with a total shareholder return of 31%. The total
shareholder return of the shares we selected as peer group compa-
nies!was on average 33%, slightly higher than that of Talanx, which is
mainly due to the higher average dividend payments of this group. In
terms of share price performance alone, Talanx shares slightly out-
performed the average price increase of the peer group by 0.6 per-
centage points with a gain of 27.1%.

Index membership and shareholder structure
Talanx remains a top performer in the MDAX

Talanx shares have been listed on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange
(Prime Standard) and on the Hannover Stock Exchange since October
2012. They have been included in the MDAX since September 2021.
Based on the free-float market capitalisation as at the end of Decem-
ber 2024, Talanx shares ranked seventh (ranked tenth) out of the 50
total stocks and remained one of the top equities in the MDAX index.

Analyst recommendations
Bank analysts are important observers for a listed company, because
they analyse and evaluate a company’s shares and publish investment

recommendations which many institutional and private investors
base their investment decisions on.

* Allianz, Axa, Generali, Mapfre, Munich Re, Swiss Re, VIG, Zurich.
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ANALYST RECOMMENDATIONS

%

17
Sell
33
Buy
50
Hold
31 December 2024

In the 2024 financial year, six analysts monitored Talanx AG and pub-
lished reports at regular intervals. As at 31 December 2024, 33% of
analysts rated Talanx shares as a “Buy” and 50% of analyst recommen-
dations were “Hold”. On the other hand, 17% of analysts gave a rating
of “Underperform”, which is the same as a “Sell” recommendation. At
the end of the financial year, the analysts’ average target price was
EUR 83.43, with a target price range of between EUR 76 and EUR 95.

Shareholder structure remains stable

Talanx AG regularly analyses the shares held in free float in order to
communicate specifically with its institutional investors. With the
help of these analyses, almost 100% of Talanx shares can be identified
and assigned to a shareholder group. Holding roughly 77% of the
shares, HDI V.a.G. is the largest individual shareholder of Talanx AG.
Accordingly, the free float amounts to around 23%. There are no indi-
vidual shareholders among Talanx AG’s shareholders who hold more
than 5% of the share capital.

At the end of the 2024 financial year, there were only slight regional
shifts in the free float compared to the previous year. A total of 55%
(57%) of shares — the majority — continue to be held by European in-
vestors. The percentage of shares held in Europe fell slightly, while
North American investors added this 2% of shares to their portfolios,
now accounting for 28% (26%) of the shares in free float. The percent-
age of shares held by Asian investors increased slightly by one per-
centage point to 17% (16%). A further 1% of the free float was spread
across the rest of the world. Private shareholders accounted for
around a quarter of the free float. As at 31 December 2024, a total of
42,376 shareholders were entered in the share register, continuing
the trend of previous years, and the number of registered sharehold-
ers has increased slightly compared to the previous year (41,698).
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SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024

%

23
Free float (including employee shares)

77
HDIV.a.GC.

28
North America

17
Asia

12

Europe

(excluding Germany
and the UK)

9
United Kingdom

1
Rest of world

Employee share programme

Employees of Talanx Group’s Primary Insurance Group were again
able to purchase discounted Talanx shares in the reporting period.
The model, which was successfully introduced in 2021, was again used
in 2024, with employees being able to choose from two different
share packages of either 30 or 120 shares, each offered at a different
discount. The number of employees participating in the programme
remained at the same high level as in previous years, with 36% (39%)
of employees purchasing subsidised shares in the reporting period.
The shares subscribed by the employees were acquired on the market
under a share buyback programme. The shares have to be held for at
least two years.

Capital market communication
Significant increase in targeted investor activity

The Talanx investor relations team is committed to open, ongoing
dialogue with private shareholders, institutional investors and equity
and credit analysts. This dialogue takes place mainly at investor con-
ferences in Germany and abroad, as well as at roadshows. At these
events, capital market participants have the opportunity to meet and
talk to experts from the investor relations team and management.
This year, Talanx also attended a number of events where not only
the Chairman of the Board of Management and the Chief Financial
Officer, but also the members of the Board of Management responsi-
ble for the individual segments were available to discuss matters with
investors. In the 2024 financial year, Talanx took part in 24 investor
conferences and organised nine roadshows. The number of meetings
more than doubled year on year, with the preferred format in this
financial year being in-person investor conferences.

At the Capital Markets Day event in December 2024, where the Group
presented its new medium-term financial targets for the 2025 to 2027
period, financial analysts and institutional investors also had the
opportunity to meet with the entire Board of Management of
Talanx AG in person.

Dialogue and communication with private shareholders is highly im-
portant to Talanx AG as well. In order to enhance visibility in these
circles and to enable private investors to engage in a direct dialogue
with the investor relations team, company presentations at various
shareholder associations were a firm fixture of capital market com-
munications in the reporting period. Moreover, private shareholders
as well as analysts and investors can find a wealth of information on
the website.

Annual General Meeting held as a virtual event

For the fifth time in a row, Talanx AG held its Annual General Meeting
as a purely online event on 7 May 2024. As usual, shareholders had
the opportunity to ask questions online via the shareholder portal
during the AGM and directly interact with the Board of Management
and Supervisory Board. In order to make the event even more
user-friendly, in 2024 Talanx worked on improving both the usability
of the shareholder portal and the live connection. The shareholder
portal was updated with a new, modern design that was also signifi-
cantly more user-friendly, intuitive and made use of the latest tech-
nology. With the support of experienced service providers, the com-
pany was able to successfully hold its 2024 Annual General Meeting
without any technical issues. The proposed resolutions were all
passed with the required majority of votes cast and share capital re-
presented. A total of 2,915 shareholders had registered for the Annual
General Meeting, corresponding to 92.14% of the share capital with
voting rights. For future Annual General Meetings, Talanx AG will
choose freely between the different meeting formats, taking into
account the respective circumstances and the agenda items to be
decided upon, and thereby ensure an appropriate dialogue with its
shareholders.



New medium-term financial targets for 2025-2027

The Group's strategy, which is based on decentralisation, diversifica-
tion and cost leadership, has paid off, leading to an increase in the
level of ambition for the coming years due to the early overachieve-
ment of the previously valid targets.

For the cycle through 2027, the Group is now aiming for a 30% in-
crease in Group net income to more than EUR 2.5 billion in the 2027
financial year. Furthermore, the Group plans to increase the dividend
by roughly 50% to EUR 4.00 per share by 2027.

NEW FINANCIAL TARGETS THROUGH 2027*

Group net income Dividend

% @ %
A

Increase
2024-2027 2024-2027

+30 +50

The targets will apply from the 2024 financial year onwards; they are subject to large losses
remaining within the respective large loss budgets and to there being no major disruptions
on the currency and/or capital markets; target for Group net income growth by 2027 based
on 2024 Group net income of >EUR 1,900 million; target for dividend growth by 2027 based
on a divided of EUR 2.70 in 2024; dividend per share for the 2027 financial year will be paid
in 2028, subject to the approval of the Supervisory Board and the Annual General Meeting.

Increase

Dividend policy and dividends

Talanx AG seeks to achieve a balance between attractive, sustainable
and steadily rising dividends on the one hand and profitable growth
of the Group on the other. The Group’s current dividend policy sets
forth that the proposed dividend for a given financial year should
always exceed the previous year’s level. Having already increased the
dividend for the 2023 financial year by EUR 0.35 to EUR 2.35 per share,
the Board of Management of Talanx AG will propose to the Annual
General Meeting for the 2024 financial year to further raise the divi-
dend by EUR 0.35 per share to EUR 2.70. Originally, shareholders had
been promised a dividend of EUR 2.50 for the 2024 financial year. This
would translate into a dividend yield of 3.7% (4.4%) for the 2024 finan-
cial year, based on an average share price for the year of EUR 72.27.

DIVIDEND PER SHARE, 2018-2027

EUR
+50%Zq/
4.0 4.00*
|
+86% V
3.0
270
235
20 2.00
145 150 150 160
1.0
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024E 2027E

* Subject to the approval of the Supervisory Board and the Annual General Meeting.
? Rounded.
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A review of how the dividend has developed in the years 2018 -2024
shows a remarkable increase of 86% based on the proposed dividend
for 2024 of EUR 2.:70. For the financial years 2025 to 2027, Talanx AG is
aiming to increase the dividend by a further nearly 50% to EUR 4.00
per share. The dividend should therefore increase by a higher per-
centage than earnings.

GENERAL INFORMATION ON TALANX SHARES

German securities TLX100

identification number

(WKN)

ISIN DEOOOTLX1005

Ticker symbol (XETRA) TLX

Share class No-par value ordinary registered shares

Number of shares at
year-end

258,228,991

Year-end closing price EUR 82.15 (30 December 2024)

Annual high EUR 85.40 (11 December 2024)

Annual low EUR 63.45 (6 August 2024)

Stock exchanges XETRA, Frankfurt, Hannover

Trading segment Prime Standard of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange

Share prices based on XETRA daily closing prices.
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Remuneration report

Introduction

This remuneration report presents the remuneration structure and
system for Talanx AG’s Board of Management and Supervisory Board,
and provides detailed information on the individual remuneration
and other benefits awarded and due to current and former members
of Talanx AG’s Board of Management and Supervisory Board for their
activities in financial year 2024.

The report was prepared by the Company’s Board of Management
and Supervisory Board in accordance with the requirements of sec-
tion 162 of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG) and complies
with the recommendations and suggestions contained in the version
of the German Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) published on
28 April 2022 and takes into account the relevant regulatory
provisions. In addition to the sustainability statement, this report
contains information on the integration of sustainability-related
performance in incentive schemes (GOV-3) in line with the European
Sustainability Reporting Standards (ESRS).

PricewaterhouseCoopers GmbH Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft
performed a formal and content audit of the remuneration report
that went above and beyond the requirements set out in section
162(3) of the AktG. The remuneration report and the auditor’s opinion
on the audit of the remuneration report have been made available on
Talanx AG's website (https://www.talanx.com/en/investor relations/
reporting/financial reports).

Remuneration of the Board of
Management

Overview of the remuneration system

The current remuneration system for the Board of Management has
been in place since 1January 2021. It meets the statutory and regula-
tory requirements of the Code and was approved by the Annual Gen-
eral Meeting of Talanx AG on 6 May 2021 with a majority of 96.5%.
However, if material changes are made to the remuneration system,
it is submitted to the Annual General Meeting for approval at least
every four years. Given the approval of the remuneration report
granted by the Annual General Meeting in 2024 with a majority of
98.2%, there was no need to examine or amend the remuneration
system, its implementation or the nature of reporting. Spurred on by
comments in investor meetings, in the previous year’s remuneration
report we took the opportunity to describe in more detail the applica-
tion of the remuneration system in relation to variable remunera-
tion. In addition to payouts relating to multi-year variable remunera-
tion components in 2024, in this year's remuneration report we again
also show the current status which is to be paid from multi-year vari-
able remuneration in the next few years.

The structure of the remuneration system takes the expectations of
investors and other key stakeholders into account. Remuneration
comprises fixed (non-performance-related) and variable (perfor-
mance- related) components. The focus here continues to be on the
high degree of relevance of the variable remuneration and on
strengthening the “pay for performance” principle. Variable remu-
neration is based on financial and non-financial performance criteria
taken from the Talanx Group strategy. The Board of Management can
influence these. Sustainability criteria are also taken into account
when measuring performance and support the Company’s sustaina-
ble, long-term development. Furthermore, the Board of Manage-
ment’s remuneration has been aligned closely with our investors’ in-
terests by increasing its equity-related aspects; this has been achieved
using a performance share plan and by measuring Talanx’s relative
share price performance in comparison to our competitors. Malus
and clawback rules allow the variable remuneration components
paid to be reduced or reclaimed in the event of severe breaches of
compliance. The main features of the remuneration system are
shown below.

REMUNERATION SYSTEM STRUCTURE

Fixed Fixed remuneration Maximum
remuneration - remunera-
Fringe benefits tion

Pension scheme

40% Malus and

clawback

Variable Short-term incentive

remuneration

Long-term incentive
(Talanx performance
shares)

60%

Principles governing Board of Management
remuneration

The Talanx Group’s strategy aims to sustainably enhance the Group’s
value for its stakeholders, and particularly its investors, customers
and employees. In line with this, our Board of Management remuner-
ation focuses on the principles of continuity, financial strength and
profitability. Board of Management remuneration is a key means of
advancing our Group strategy and the Talanx Group’s long-term,
sustainable development. Remuneration ensures a transparent, per-
formance- driven incentive effect that is strongly aligned with the
Company’s long-term success and that is based in particular on per-
formance criteria that are derived from the Group’s strategy, as well
as on Talanx AG’s share price performance, including in a peer com-
parison. This aims to prevent excessive risk appetite.



The members of the Board of Management are remunerated in line
with their performance and their areas of activity and responsibility,
while taking the Company’s situation into account. The regulatory
framework for this is supplied by the provisions of the German Stock
Corporation Act, the provisions of Article 275 of Delegated Regulation
(EU) 2015/35 as amended by Delegated Regulation (EU) 2016/2283,
and of the Insurance Supervision Act (VAG) in conjunction with the
German Remuneration Regulation for Insurance Companies
(VersVergV), plus the recommendations on the remuneration of
members of the Board of Management contained in section G of the
German Corporate Governance Code.

The Supervisory Board focuses on the following basic principles
when establishing the remuneration for Talanx AG’s Board of
Management:

PRINCIPLES GOVERNING TALANX’S BOARD OF MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION
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Advancement of corporate strategy m Performance criteria derived from corporate strategy

Long-term approach and sustainability m Variable remuneration predominantly share-based and with a multi-year focus
m Sustainability risks and targets (ESG) included in the calculation of variable remuneration

Pay for performance m Majority of the total target direct remuneration consists of variable remuneration components
m Adequate, ambitious performance criteria
m Variable remuneration can range between zero and a cap

Appropriateness of remuneration m Remuneration paid to members of the Board of Management appropriately reflects both the
members’ responsibilities and performance and the Company’s situation
m |nternal and external pay ratios taken into account
m Caps on the individual variable remuneration components and total remuneration

Alignment with shareholder interests m Harmonisation of interests of members of the Board of Management and our shareholders
m Malus and clawback rules apply to entire variable remuneration
® Measuring relative performance creates incentives to ensure that we outperform our competitors on
the capital markets in the long term

Market practice and regulatory compliance both taken ~ m Board of Management remuneration takes current market practices on the part of relevant insurers

into account into account

m Compliance with key statutory and regulatory requirements applicable to Talanx is ensured

Transparency m Ex-post publication of targets and target achievement
m Ex-post publication of individual premiums/discounts per member of the Board of Management

Remuneration structure

The key ideas behind Talanx’s remuneration system for its Board of
Management are pay for performance and a long-term approach.

The principle of pay for performance is underscored by the fact that
the target direct remuneration (which comprises the total of the
fixed remuneration and the target amounts for the variable remu-
neration components) consists of 40% fixed remuneration and 60%
variable remuneration components. Variable remuneration is made
up of a short-term incentive (STI) and a long-term incentive (LTI) that
has a four-year performance period.

The remuneration structure is geared towards the Talanx Group'’s
sustainable long-term development. The STI accounts for 40% of the
variable remuneration components and hence for 24% of the target
direct remuneration. The LTI accounts for 60% of the variable remu-
neration components and hence for 36% of the target direct remu-
neration.

STRUCTURE OF TARGET DIRECT REMUNERATION
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Reviewing the appropriateness of Board of
Management remuneration

The Supervisory Board determines the remuneration of the mem-
bers of the Board of Management on the basis of the remuneration
system, building on the recommendations made by the Personnel
Committee. When establishing the remuneration, the Supervisory
Board takes the individual members’ responsibilities and tasks, their
individual performance, the economic situation, and the Company’s
success and future prospects into account.

The question of whether the remuneration is customary in relation
to other, comparable companies (horizontal comparison) and with
respect to the amount and structure of remuneration within the
Company (vertical comparison) was reviewed by the Supervisory
Board at its meeting on 10 November 2024. The companies included
in the MDAX as at 1 July 2024 (with the exception of Talanx AG) were
used as the peer group for this horizontal comparison. As an addi-
tional indicator, the Board of Management’s remuneration was also
subject to a comparison with an individual peer group of relevant
competitors. This peer group is also used in the multi-year variable
remuneration to measure relative total shareholder return. The verti-
cal comparison is based on the ratio between the remuneration paid
to the Board of Management and the remuneration paid to Talanx’s
entire workforce in Germany. The process took both the status quo
and the development of the remuneration ratios over time into
account. To assess the appropriateness of Board of Management re-
muneration, the Supervisory Board took the opportunity open to it
to engage an external remuneration consultant who is independent
of the Board of Management and the Company.

TARGET REMUNERATION

Determining target remuneration

The contracts of service for all members of the Board of Management
guarantee that they will be paid target remuneration in line with
market conditions. This remuneration is based on their areas of re-
sponsibility and the skills and experience that are relevant to their
work.

There is a good balance between fixed and variable remuneration
components. The fixed component accounts for a sufficiently high
share of target total remuneration, allowing the company to apply a
flexible bonus policy, including the option of not paying any variable
remuneration at all. Accordingly, there is no incentive for members
of the Board of Management to take inappropriately high risks in ex-
change for higher bonus payments.

As part of its regular review of the target remuneration of the mem-
bers of the Board of Management, the Supervisory Board decided to
increase the total target remuneration effective 1 January 2024. The
following table shows the target remuneration for all members of the
Board of Management for financial year 2024. The target remunera-
tion comprises the remuneration that will be awarded for the finan-
cial year if the target achievement is 100%.

Torsten Leue
(Chairman of the Board of

Management)
Chairman since Jean-Jacques
8 May 2018, Henchoz* Dr Wilm Langenbach
member since Head of Division Head of Division
1 September 2010 since 1 April 2019 since 1 December 2020
EUR thousand 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Base remuneration 1,156 40% 1,020 1,048 40% 960 696 40% 540
Fringe benefits 6 — 8 22 1% 12 6 — 6
Other — — — — — — — — —
Fixed remuneration components 1,162 1,028 1,070 972 702 546
One-year
variable remuneration (STI) 694 24% 612 629 24% 576 418 24% 324
Multi-year
variable remuneration (LTI) —
(Performance Shares 2024/2023) 1,040 36% 918 943 36% 864 626 36% 486
Variable
remuneration components 1,734 1,530 1,572 1,440 1,044 810
Total target remuneration 2,896 100% 2,558 2,642 100% 2,412 1,746 100% 1,356
Pension expense? 742 646 143 118 123 84

* Including target remuneration for Hannover Riick SE in the amount of EUR 2,322 thousand in 2024 and EUR 2,112 thousand in 2023.
2 The figure shown represents the service cost recognised in the reporting period for pensions and other post-retirement benefits.



Pay ratios

Total remuneration for the Chairman of the Board of Management in
the reporting period was 33 times the average target total remunera-
tion for all employees (excluding the Board of Management). Target
total remuneration for the average of all members of the Board of
Management was 22 times the average target total remuneration for
all employees (excluding the Board of Management). The target total
remuneration of the average of all employees refers to the workforce
of Talanx in Germany.

Compliance with the maximum remuneration

The Supervisory Board has defined a maximum amount of remuner-
ation for each member of the Board of Management, comprising the
sum of the fixed remuneration, fringe benefits, the STI and LTI, and
the pension expense (“maximum remuneration”), in accordance
with section 87a(1) sentence 2 no. 1 of the AktG. The maximum remu-
neration sets a limit on all payouts resulting from awards made for a
specific financial year, regardless of when they actually accrue. For
the financial year 2024, the maximum remuneration for the Chair-
man of the Board of Management is EUR 6,000,000, that for the
Head of the Reinsurance Division is EUR 5,000,000 and that for all
other members of the Board of Management is EUR 4,000,000.

A final report on compliance with the maximum remuneration for
financial year 2024 can only be made once the tranche of the LTI
granted for 2024 has been paid out in 2029. Should the LTI payout
lead to the maximum remuneration being exceeded, the payout will
be reduced so as to ensure compliance with the cap.
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Adjustment of the Board of Management remuneration
system from financial year 2025

Pursuant to section 120a(1) sentence 1 of the German Stock Corpora-
tion Act (AktG), the general meeting of a listed company is required to
adopt a resolution approving the remuneration system presented by
the supervisory board for the members of the board of management
at least every four years and whenever there is a material change. The
Annual General Meeting last passed such a resolution on 6 May 2021,
meaning that in accordance with this requirement, a new resolution
will need to be passed at the Annual General Meeting in 2025. In light
of this, the Supervisory Board reviewed the existing remuneration
system, taking into account Talanx’s strategic objectives with respect
to market conditions and competitiveness. At its meeting on 12 No-
vember 2024, the Supervisory Board approved a slightly adjusted re-
muneration system based on the recommendation of the Personnel
Committee. This system will be applied with effect from 1 January
2025. The current remuneration system has proven itself and will
therefore be retained as far as possible, which is why fundamental ad-
justments were not necessary. The new remuneration system will in-
clude an explicit provision for the inclusion of a severance pay cap in
the employment contracts of members of the Board of Management,
according to which any severance pay stipulated in the contract may
not exceed a maximum of two years’ total remuneration or the remu-
neration for the remaining term of the contract, whichever is lower.
This change will thus reflect the corresponding recommendation in G
13 of the Code in said employment contracts. Furthermore, an in-
crease in the maximum remuneration in accordance with section 87a
of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG) was adopted in order to
reflect the increase in the target remuneration of the members of the
Management Board that took effect on 1January 2024. From the finan-
cial year 2025 onward, the maximum remuneration for the Chairman
of the Board of Management will be EUR 7,000,000, that for the Head
of the Reinsurance Division will be EUR 6,000,000 and that for all
other members of the Board of Management will be EUR 5,000,000.

Dr Edgar Puls Caroline Schlienkamp

DrJan Wicke
(Chief Financial Officer)

Jens Warkentin Chief Financial Officer since

Head of Division Member of the Board of Management Head of Division 1 September 2020,

since 9 May 2019 since 1 May 2022 since 1 January 2023 member since 1 May 2014

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

557 40% 512 588 40% 400 588 40% 400 704 40% 646
4 — 6 12 — 12 5 — 11 6 — 6
561 518 600 412 593 411 710 652
334 24% 307 353 24% 240 353 24% 240 422 24% 388
501 36% 461 529 36% 360 529 36% 360 633 36% 581
835 768 882 600 882 600 1,056 969
1,396 100% 1,286 1,482 100% 1,012 1,475 100% 1,011 1,766 100% 1,621
113 91 100 48 103 43 139 142
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Application of the remuneration system in

financial year 2024

The following table provides an overview of the components of
Talanx’s remuneration system in financial year 2024 and the

associated targets:

OVERVIEW OF REMUNERATION COMPONENTS

Component Basis of assessment/parameters Objective
FIXED Fixed remuneration The fixed remuneration is paid in cash in 12 equal monthly instalments
REMUNERATION - - - - - - -
COMPONENTS Fringe benefits Company vehicle for business and private use; appropriate levels of accident, ~ ® Recruitment and retention
luggage and D&O insurance of the best-suited
members of the Board of
Management
m Remuneration reflecting
the responsibilities, skills
and experience of the
individual members of the
Board of Management
concerned
Pension scheme Defined contribution commitments: annual contribution to the plan in the m Fringe benefits granted in
amount of 25% of defined basis of assessment line with normal market
conditions/pension
Chairman of the Board of Management: Defined benefit pension commit- schemes in order to recruit
ment: contribution to pension plan calculated as percentage of the fixed and retain the best-suited
annual pensionable salary members of the Board of
Management
VARIABLE Short-term incentive (STI)  Target bonus model m [ncentivises to achieve or
REMUNERATION surpass the annual
COMPONENTS Performance criteria: corporate and divisional
m Talanx Group RoE targets, and remuneration
m |ndividual performance criteria (financial and non-financial, reflecting members’
including ESG goals) individual contribution to
earnings and sustainability
Cap: 200% of STl target amount
Long-term incentive (LTI) Performance share plan (Talanx Performance Shares) m Recognition of success
achieved in previous year
Four-year performance period m [ncentive to create
LTI award amount depends on target achievement levels determined for: long-term shareholder
m Talanx Group RoE for previous financial year value
m Individual performance criteria for previous financial year m Motivation to outperform
competitors
Performance criteria:
m Talanx’s share price performance (plus dividends)
m Relative total shareholder return (compared to relevant competitors)
Cap: 400% of LTI target amount
For the STl and the LTI a retroactive adjustment of the targets/comparative
parameters is excluded.
OTHER Maximum remuneration  Chairman of the Board of Management: EUR 6,000,000 m Cap on the total
ARRANGEMENTS Head of Reinsurance Division: EUR 5,000,000 remuneration awarded for

Other members of the Board of Management: EUR 4,000,000

afinancial year

m Compliance with the
regulatory requirements
set out in the AktG

Malus and clawback

Ability of the Supervisory Board not to pay out (“malus”) or to reclaim (“claw
back”) variable remuneration in whole or in part in cases of gross misconduct
or errors in the consolidated financial reporting.

Reduction or cancellation of variable remuneration also possible where
required for regulatory reasons

® Improvement to the
Supervisory Board’s
position in the case of
severe compliance
breaches




Fixed remuneration components
Fixed remuneration

The fixed remuneration is paid in cash in 12 equal monthly instal-
ments. It is primarily based on the range of tasks performed by, and
professional experience of, the member of the Board of Management
concerned.

Fringe benefits

In addition, the members of the Board of Management receive cer-
tain non-performance-related fringe benefits; these are in line with
normal market conditions and are reviewed at regular intervals. The
members of the Board of Management are provided with a vehicle for
their business and private use for the duration of their appointment.
The tax on the non-cash benefit resulting from the private use of this
company vehicle shall be paid by the member of the Board of Man-
agement concerned. In addition, the Company provides members of
the Board of Management with an appropriate level of insurance cov-
er under Group contracts (accident, luggage and D&O insurance).

Sign-on/recruitment bonuses are paid only in exceptional cases if a
new member of the Board of Management loses out on a bonus from
his/her previous employer. Compensation for remuneration compo-
nents not received from the previous employer is generally paid in
several instalments and is subject to conditions.

VARIABLE REMUNERATION COMPONENTS
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Pension scheme

With the exception of the Chairman of the Board of Management,
Mr Leue, for whom a commitment to pay a final salary-based annual
retirement pension has been made, the members of the Board of
Management have been given defined contribution pension com-
mitments. Additional information can be found in the section
entitled “Termination benefits”.

Variable remuneration components

The variable remuneration components comprise a short-term in-
centive (STI), which is calculated on the basis of the financial year in
question, and a long-term incentive (LTI) with a four-year perfor-
mance period.

The performance criteria used to measure and assess target achieve-
ment are derived from Talanx’s corporate strategy. The variable re-
muneration components are designed to promote the Talanx Group’s
long-term development. The following overview shows the close
links between the performance criteria and other aspects of the vari-
able remuneration on the one hand and Talanx’s corporate strategy
on the other, and explains how the variable remuneration promotes
Talanx’s long-term development.

As a general rule, the Company does not grant members of the Board
of Management guaranteed variable remuneration.

Remuneration component Performance criterion/aspect

Alignment with strategy/promotion of long-term development

SHORT-TERM INCENTIVE (STI) Group RoE

m RoE is one of Talanx’s strategic management metrics
m Target aligned with the objective of long-term value creation

Individual premium/discount

m Takes the contribution made by individual members of the Board of
Management and the results of the divisions for which they are responsible
into account

m Consideration of sustainability risks and targets in Board of Management
remuneration

LONG-TERM INCENTIVE (LTI) Award amount depends on STl target

achievement levels

m |ncreases incentive to achieve STl target
m Underscores idea of pay for performance

Share price performance

m Ties share price performance to Board of Management remuneration
m Aligns interests of members of the Board of Management and shareholders

Four-year performance period

m Focus on long-term success and ensuring Talanx’s long-term development

Relative TSR

m |ncentivises to ensure that Talanx outperforms relevant competitors on the
capital markets in the long term

Short-term incentive (STI)

a) Basic information

The STI is geared towards Talanx AG’s business performance in a par-
ticular financial year. In addition to the financial performance criteri-
on of the Talanx Group’s return on equity (RoE) as stated in Talanx’s
consolidated financial statements (“Group RoE”), an individual pre-
mium or discount is applied when determining the amount to be
paid out. This includes both financial and non-financial performance
criteria (especially sustainability targets and risks) and takes into ac-
count both the overall responsibility of the Board of Management
and the divisional responsibilities of its individual members. As a
result, the STI helps achieve the objective of ensuring a high, stable
return on equity for the Talanx Group, promotes the implementa-
tion of strategic focus topics assigned specifically to the Board of
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Management or individual areas, and reflects the interests of our
investors, clients, employees and other key stakeholders.

The STI payout is based on the contractually stipulated STI target
amount, which assumes an overall target achievement of 100%. The
overall target achievement (including individual premiums and dis-
counts) can range between 0% and 200% of the STI target amount. As
a result, the payout under the STI is capped at 200% of the target
amount.

SHORT-TERM INCENTIVE

GROUP ROE

Possible target achievement
0-200%

STI TARGET AMOUNT

EUR

MEASUREMENT PERIOD = FINANCIAL YEAR

Possible target achievement: 0-200%

PREMIUM/DISCOUNT BASED
ON INDIVIDUAL
PERFORMANCE

PAYOUT

(cap: 200% of the
STl target amount)

b) Financial performance criterion

The main financial performance criterion for the STI (which has a
weighting of 100%) is Group RoE as compared to a strategic target
return; this is determined using the five-year average risk-free rate
for ten-year German government bonds plus an ambitious spread.
Group RoE is one of the key performance indicators in Talanx’s man-
agement system and as such has also been implemented in the Board
of Management’s remuneration. Talanx aims to achieve a high return
on equity. The Group is focused on a long-term increase in value.
Using Group RoE as a key performance criterion for the STI creates
incentives to achieve this target.

TARGET ACHIEVEMENT FOR GROUP ROE IN FINANCIAL YEAR 2024

200%
-
c
v
£
v
>
2
£ 100%
]
k1
2
=
0%
1.23% 10.73% 20.23%
Risk-free rate 950 basis points above 1,900 basis points above
the risk-free rate the risk-free rate
Group RoE
Group RoE 17.88%
Risk-free rate 1.23%
Target RoE 10.73%
Target achievement 175.27%

The Supervisory Board sets the target for Group RoE and the target
corridor complete with a ceiling and floor in advance for the coming
financial year. The target is aligned with the strategic target return for
the Talanx Group that applies at the time it is established.

The target (100% target achievement) for Group RoE set by the Super-
visory Board for financial year 2024 was 950 basis points above the
risk-free rate. The five-year average risk-free rate for ten-year German
government bonds at the end of 2024 was 1.23%. This puts target RoE
for financial year 2024 at 1,073 basis points. Group RoE in financial
year 2024 was 17.88% (1,788 basis points). This corresponds to a target
achievement for the Group RoE performance criterion of 175.27%.



At its meeting on 12 November 2024, the Supervisory Board agreed to
leave the target for Group RoE (strategic target return) for financial
year 2025 unchanged at 950 basis points above the risk-free interest
rate.

¢) Individual premium/discount

In addition to the Talanx Group’s financial performance, the Supervi-
sory Board can use individual premiums or discounts on the target
achievement for the Group RoE performance criterion within the STI
to take into account the individual contributions to earnings and to
achieving sustainability targets made by members of the Board of
Management and, where appropriate, the divisions for which they
are responsible. The Supervisory Board establishes the size of the pre-
mium or discount, which can range between —25percentage points
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and +25 percentage points, at its reasonable discretion. The Supervi-
sory Board specifies the various criteria and indicators used to deter-
mine the individual premium/discount in advance for the coming
year, and informs the members of the Board of Management of
them.

The Supervisory Board had specified the following criteria and indi-
cators for financial year 2024 for the individual members of the
Board of Management and, based on this, applied the following indi-
vidual premiums/discounts after the end of the financial year:

The information disclosed in the contribution to the sustainability
strategy column fulfils the requirements of ESRS 2 GOV-3, paragraph
29b and ESRS 2 E1 GOV-3 of the ESRS.

Individual contribution to result

Sustainability

Board of Individual
Management Ability to pay dividends/ Leadership/ Contribution to premium/
member Performance distribute profits Strategic objective Engagement (ES)* sustainability strategy discount
Torsten Leue m Covered by Group RoE  m Ability of Talanx AGto ® Scheduled implemen- ® Group engagement ~ m Further development +15 ppts
performance criterion pay dividends tation of the strategy score above peer level and implementation
in 2024 according to (financial services of the sustainability
the 2023-2025 benchmark) strategy to position
strategy cycle Talanx as a sustainable
m Successful completion group in the areas of
of Liberty integration underwriting,
in accordance with investment and
medium-term emissions reduction
planning (operations)
Jean-Jacques m Reinsurance segment ® Ability of Hannover Re ® Sustainable outper- ~ ® Reinsurance segment ® Further development +10 ppts
Henchoz RoE to distribute profitsto ~ formance versus peer engagement score and implementation
Talanx AG group in the Reinsur- above peer level of the sustainability
ance segment in the (financial services strategy to position
strategy cycle 2024 to benchmark) Talanx as a sustainable
2026 group in the areas of
underwriting,
investment and
emissions reduction
(operations)
Dr Wilm m Retail International m Ability of the Retail m |[mplementation of the ® Retail International ® Further development +15 ppts
Langenbach segment RoE International Division HINexT 2025 strategy, ~ segment engagement ~ and implementation
to distribute profitsto  in particular achieving  score above peer level of the sustainability
Talanx AG and reducing the gap (financial services strategy to position
to a top-five position benchmark) Talanx as a sustainable
in core markets group in the areas of
through profitable underwriting,
organic and inorganic investment and
growth emissions reduction
m Realisation of medi- (operations)
um-term planning as
regards Liberty
Dr Edgar Puls m Corporate & Specialty m Ability of the Corpo- ~ ®m Further implementa- ® Corporate & Specialty ® Further development +15 ppts

segment RoE

rate & Specialty
Division to distribute
profits to Talanx AG

tion of the HDI 4.0
project according to
plan, with a focus on
underwriting excel-
lence, becoming a
global player and
becoming a leading
specialty player

segment engagement
score above peer level
(financial services
benchmark)

and implementation
of the sustainability
strategy to position
Talanx as a sustainable
group in the areas of
underwriting,
investment and
emissions reduction
(operations)
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Individual contribution to result Sustainability
Board of Individual
Management Ability to pay dividends/ Leadership/ Contribution to premium/
member Performance distribute profits Strategic objective Engagement (ES) * sustainability strategy discount
Caroline m Cost developmentin  m Ability of Talanx AG to ® Internationalisation of m Group engagement m Further development +5 ppts
Schlienkamp her areas of responsi- pay dividends governance duties in score above peer level and implementation
bility in line with plans Compliance and Data (financial services of the sustainability
Protection benchmark) strategy through
m Further development consultation on
of Group Procurement sustainability issues
into a scalable unit and carbon emissions
with strong customer reduction in German
focus and a high level operations
of service
m Further implementa-

tion of the People &
Culture strategy,
increase in customer
satisfaction through
new organisational

structure
Jens Warkentin ~ m Retail Germany m Ability of the Retail m Optimisation of m Retail Germany m Further development +10 ppts
segment RoE Germany Division to operations and segment engagement  and implementation
distribute profits to underwriting in P&C score above peer level of the sustainability
Talanx AG operations and claims  (financial services strategy to position
m Completion of benchmark) Talanx as a sustainable
migration and IT path group in the areas of
in the period until underwriting,
2026 in accordance investment and
with milestone emissions reduction
planning (operations)
m Development of

Group-wide position-
ing on generative
artificial intelligence

DrJan Wicke m Covered by Group RoE  m Ability of Talanx AGto ® Ampega Asset m Group engagement ~ ® Ensuring CSRD-com- +5 ppts
performance criterion pay dividends Management score above peer level pliant reporting for
cost-income ratio Il in (financial services financial year 2024
peer comparison benchmark)
m ntegration of the

Liberty companies into
the Talanx Re target
operating model

* The engagement score refers to the result of the annual employee survey on employee engagement (“Engagement Survey”) conducted within the Talanx organisation.
In financial year 2024, the previous Organisational Health Check Survey was replaced by the Engagement Survey.

d) Overall target achievement and payouts for the 2024 STI In addition, Jean-Jacques Henchoz receives payouts under the STI for
The following table shows the overall target achievement and the the Hannover Riick SE remuneration system due, since he is Chair-
resulting payouts to be made to the individual members of the Board ~ man of Hannover Riick SE’s Board of Management. Hannover Rick

of Management: SE's STI system is structured in a similar manner to Talanx’s STI. Tar-
get achievement for the Group RoE performance criterion is based on
PAYOUTS UNDER TALANX AG’S 2024 STI the RoE achieved by Hannover Rick SE. The target (100% target
EUR thousand achievement) for Hannover Re’s Group RoE set by Hannover Re’s
Overall Supervisory Board for financial year 2024 was 1,050 basis points
Group RoE Individual target . . .
Board of Management Target  target  premium/  achieve- above the risk-free rate. The five-year average risk-free rate for ten-
member amount  achieved discount ment  Payout year German government bonds at the end of 2024 was 1.23%. This
Torsten Leue 694 1753% +15ppts 190.3% 1,320 Puts Hannover Re’s target RoE for financial year 2024 at 1,173 basis
oints. Hannover Re generated Group RoE of 21.25% in financial year
Jean-Jacques Henchoz 77 1753% +10ppts 185.3% 142 p . R § K p 5% . y
2024 (2,125 basis points). This corresponds to a target achievement for
Dr Wilm Langenbach 418 1753% +15ppts 190.3% 795 I o
the Group RoE performance criterion of 190.67%.
Dr Edgar Puls 334 1753%  +15ppts 190.3% 636
Caroline Schlienkamp 353 1753% +5 ppts  180.3% 636
Jens Warkentin 353 1753% +10ppts 185.3% 654

DrJan Wicke 422 1753% +5 ppts  180.3% 761




The individual premiums/discounts are determined by Hannover
Re’s Supervisory Board on the basis of predefined criteria.

The following table provides a detailed overview of the payouts made
to Mr Henchoz under Hannover Riick SE’s STI.

PAYOUTS UNDER HANNOVER RUCK SE’S 2024 STI

EUR thousand
Overall
Group RoE  Individual target
Board of Management Target target  premium/  achieve-
member amount  achieved discount ment Payout
Jean-Jacques Henchoz 552 190.7% +5 ppts  195.7% 1,080

LONG-TERM INCENTIVE
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Long-term incentive (LTI)

a) Basic information

The LTI plays a key role in aligning the interests of the Board of Man-
agement with those of our shareholders. Measuring the relative per-
formance of the Talanx shares creates incentives to ensure that we
outperform our competitors on the capital markets in the long term.

The LTI takes the form of a performance share plan, offering an incen-
tive to increase the value of Talanx's shares in the interests of our in-
vestors. The amount awarded under the LTI (LTI award amount) is
based on the contractually agreed LTI target amount and depends on
the target achievement for the Group RoE financial performance crite-
rion that was established in the context of the STI for the financial year
in question, plus the individual premium or discount specified by the
Supervisory Board for the financial year (overall target achievement).

GROUP ROE

LTI TARGET AMOUNT

Possible target achievement
0-200%

MEASUREMENT PERIOD = FINANCIAL YEAR

Possible target achievement: 0-200%

EUR

PREMIUM/DISCOUNT BASED
ON INDIVIDUAL
PERFORMANCE
LTI AWARD AMOUNT

(cap: 200% of the
LTl target amount)

The 2024 LTI tranche (Talanx 2024 Performance Shares) will be award-
ed in financial year 2025 on the basis of the overall target achieve-
ment for the 2024 STI. The number of Talanx Performance Shares
awarded is determined by the LTI award amount plus Talanx’s aver-
age share price in the period between the 15 exchange trading days
before and the 15 exchange trading days after the Supervisory Board
meeting that considers the consolidated financial statements in the
year in which the award is made. The total term of the Talanx Perfor-
mance Shares (“performance period”) is four years. The 2024 LTI
tranche will be paid out at the end of the four-year performance peri-
od in calendar year 2029.

The following table shows the award amounts of the LTI tranche.

AWARDS UNDER TALANX AG’S 2024 LTI TRANCHE

EUR thousand
Overall target

Board of Management achievement for

member Target amount the 2024 STI  Award amount
Torsten Leue 1,040 190.3% 1,980
Jean-Jacques Henchoz 115 185.3% 213
Dr Wilm Langenbach 626 190.3% 1,192
Dr Edgar Puls 501 190.3% 953
Caroline Schlienkamp 529 180.3% 954
Jens Warkentin 529 185.3% 980
DrJan Wicke 633 180.3% 1,142
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At the end of the four-year performance period, the basic payout is
calculated in a first step based on the basis of Talanx's share price per-
formance. This payout is the product of the number of Talanx perfor-
mance shares awarded and Talanx AG’s average share price in the
period between the 15 trading days before and the 15 trading days af-
ter the Supervisory Board meeting that considers the consolidated
financial statements in the year in which the four-year performance
period ends, plus the dividends paid during the performance period.
The change in performance thus reflects the total shareholder return
in full.

In addition, Jean-Jacques Henchoz receives payouts under the LTI for
the Hannover Riick SE remuneration system due, since he is Chair-
man of Hannover Riick SE’s Board of Management. Hannover Rick
SE's LTI system is structured in a similar manner to Talanx’s LTL

AWARDS UNDER HANNOVER RUCK SE’S 2024 LTI TRANCHE

EUR thousand
Overall target
Board of Management achievement for
member Target amount the 2024 STI  Award amount
Jean-Jacques Henchoz 828 195.7% 1,620

LTI = INCLUSION OF SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE IN CALCULATION

LTI AWARD AMOUNT
(cap: 200% of the
LTI target amount)

BASE PAYOUT AMOUNT
EUR

AVERAGE SHARE PRICE PLUS
DIVIDENDS
(at the end of
the performance period)

AVERAGE SHARE PRICE
(at the beginning of
the performance period)

The final payout is the product of the basic payout and the target
achievement for the relative total shareholder return (“relative TSR”)
compared to a peer group. The payout for the LTI is capped at 200% of
the LTI award amount and can therefore amount to a maximum of
400% of the LTI target amount overall — provided that the sum of all
remuneration components does not exceed the maximum remuner-
ation set out in section 87a(1) sentence 2 no. 1 of the AktG.

LTI — INCLUSION OF PERFORMANCE PEER GROUP IN CALCULATION

(measured against relevant peer group) PAYOUT AMOUNT

BASE PAYOUT AMOUNT EUR

EUR Possible target achievement 0-200%

(cap: 400% of the
LTl target amount)




b) Financial performance criterion

The main performance criterion for the final LTI payout is the relative
TSR. The use of this measure incorporates an external, capital market-
driven performance criterion into the variable remuneration, thus
permitting relative performance measurement and the alignment of
Board of Management and shareholder interests. The relative TSR
represents Talanx’s share price performance over the four-year per-
formance period, including the gross dividends paid, in comparison
to a peer group comprising relevant competitors in the insurance
sector. The LTI thus incentivises the achievement of a strong, long-
term and sustainable performance of Talanx shares on the capital
market.

The target achievement for the relative TSR is determined by compar-
ing the TSR for Talanx AG’s shares with the shares of its peer group
companies during the four-year performance period. This is done by
comparing the TSR of Talanx’s shares during the performance period
in question with the unweighted average TSR for the peer group. The
Supervisory Board reviews the peer group before the start of each
performance period for a new LTI tranche. In the case of the 2024 LTI
tranche it consists of the following companies:

PEER GROUP COMPANIES

Allianz SE Miinchener Rickversicherungs Gesellschaft AG

AXAS.A. Swiss Re AG

GeneraliS.p.a. Vienna Insurance Group AG

Mapfre S.A. Zurich Insurance Group AG

If the TSR for Talanx’s shares corresponds to the unweighted average
TSR for the peer group, the target achievement for the relative TSR is
100%. Every percentage point by which the TSR for Talanx’s shares
exceeds or fails to reach the unweighted average TSR for the peer
group results in a corresponding increase or decrease of the target
achievement (linear scaling). If the TSR for Talanx’s shares exceeds
the unweighted average TSR for the peer group by 100 percentage
points or more, the target achievement for the relative TSR is 200%.
Any further increase in the relative TSR does not lead to a further in-
crease in the target achievement. If the TSR for Talanx’s shares is be-
low the unweighted average TSR for the peer group by 100 percentage
points or more, the target achievement for the relative TSR is 0%.
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RELATIVE TSR

200%

100%

Target achievement

0%
-100 percentage
points

O percentage points +100 percentage points

TSR outperformance

The target achievement for the 2024 LTI tranche is published in the
remuneration report for the 2029 financial year after the end of the
performance period.

Payouts relating to multi-year variable remuneration
components

Payouts relating to multi-year variable remuneration components
under the old remuneration system, which was used up to the end of
financial year 2020, were made in financial year 2024. Under the old
system, the variable remuneration for a financial year consisted of a
Group bonus, an individual personal bonus and —in the case of Board
Members responsible for a specific division — a divisional bonus. A
total of 60% of the amount determined for each member of the
Board of Management was paid out after the end of the financial year
concerned, while 20% was added to a bonus bank and a further 20%
was awarded in the form of virtual shares (Talanx share awards). The
Talanx share awards made in financial year 2020 on the basis of the
target achievements for the variable remuneration for financial year
2019 (Talanx share awards 2019) and the amount added to the bonus
bank in financial year 2021 on the basis of the target achievement for
the variable remuneration for financial year 2020 (bonus bank 2020)
were paid out in 2024.
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a) 2019 Talanx share awards

Under the previous remuneration system, the equivalent of 20% of
the variable remuneration determined was awarded automatically as
Talanx share awards once the variable remuneration had been deter-
mined for a financial year. The share price at the time the award was
made was determined using the unweighted arithmetic mean of the
XETRA closing prices in the period between the five trading days be-
fore to the five trading days after the Supervisory Board meeting con-
sidering the consolidated financial statements. After a lock-up period
of four years, the value of the Talanx share awards as determined at
the payout date is paid out. Once again, the value of the shares is de-
termined using the unweighted arithmetic mean of the XETRA clos-
ing prices in the period between the five trading days before to the
five trading days after the Supervisory Board meeting considering
the consolidated financial statements. In addition, the aggregate div-
idends per share distributed during the lock-up period are paid out.

The lock-up period for the Talanx share awards awarded in financial
year 2020 on the basis of the variable remuneration for 2019 expired

in financial year 2024 and the value determined was paid out.

The following table provides an overview of the payments under the
Talanx 2019 share awards:

PAYMENTS UNDER THE TALANX 2019 SHARE AWARDS

Award amount

Average share

(20% of 2019 price Total dividends

variable at end of per share Payment
Board of Management  remuneration) lock-up period distributed amount
member EUR thousand EUR EUR  EUR thousand
Torsten Leue 318 70.66 6.60 840
DrJan Wicke 210 70.66 6.60 556
Dr Edgar Puls 69 70.66 6.60 183
Jean-Jacques
Henchoz 45 70.66 6.60 120

The following table provides an overview of the payments under the

Hannover Re 2019 share awards:

PAYMENTS UNDER THE HANNOVER RE 2019 SHARE AWARDS

Award amount

Average share

(20% of 2019 price  Total dividends
variable at end of per share Payment
Board of Management  remuneration) lock-up period distributed amount
member EUR thousand EUR EUR  EUR thousand
Jean-Jacques
Henchoz 207 24519 21.75 397

b) 2020 bonus bank

Additionally, the amount added to the bonus bank in financial year
2021 on the basis of the variable remuneration for 2020 was paid out
in financial year 2024.

The payout in each case is the positive amount that was added to the
bonus bank three years before the payout date, provided that it does
not exceed the balance available in the bonus bank after taking cred-
its/ debits into account (up to and including credits/debits for the
most recent past financial year). Any upcoming payouts that are not
covered by a positive bonus bank balance lapse.

The following table provides an overview of the payments from 2020
bonus bank:

2020 BONUS BANK PAYMENTS

EUR thousand
Amount added
(20% of 2020
Board of Management variable

member remuneration) Payout
Torsten Leue 301 301
Jean-Jacques Henchoz 64 64
Dr Edgar Puls 112 112
Dr Jan Wicke 198 198

The following table provides an overview of the payments from 2020
bonus bank of Hannover Rick SE:

2020 BONUS BANK PAYMENTS OF HANNOVER RUCK SE

EUR thousand
Amount added
(20% of 2020
Board of Management variable

member remuneration) Payout

Jean-Jacques Henchoz 269 269




Overview of multi-year variable remuneration

components

The following table provides an overview of the multi-year variable

remuneration components:

MULTI-YEAR VARIABLE REMUNERATION COMPONENTS
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2019 2020 2021

2022 2

023 2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

2029

- I 2019 bonus bank

- I 2019 Talanx share awards

- I 2020 bonus bank

- I 2020 Talanx share awards

STI

2021

%

2021 LTl tranche
2021 Talanx Performance Shares

2022 LTl tranche

2022 Talanx Performance Shares

2023 LTl tranche

2023 Talanx Performance Shares

2024

STI

2024 LTl tranche
2024 Talanx Performance Shares

The following tables give an overview of what is to be paid from

multi-year variable remuneration in the next few years:

TALANX SHARE AWARDS FOR ACTIVE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT MEMBERS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024 (REMUNERATION SYSTEM UP TO 2020)

No. of shares

awarded

for FY 2020

Average

share price

at award:
Board of Management member EUR 36.38 Total
Torsten Leue 8,271 8,271
Jean-Jacques Henchoz 1,765 1,765
Dr Wilm Langenbach — -
Dr Edgar Puls 3,066 3,066
Caroline Schlienkamp — -
Jens Warkentin — -
DrJan Wicke 5438 5,438

TALANX PERFORMANCE SHARES FOR BOARD OF MANAGEMENT MEMBERS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024 (REMUNERATION SYSTEM AS FROM 2021)

Board of Management

No. of shares
awarded
for FY 2023

No. of shares
awarded
for FY 2022

No. of shares
awarded
for FY 2021

Average share
price at award:

Average share
price at award:

Average share
price at award:

member EUR 69,65 EUR 43.27 EUR 39.31 Total
Torsten Leue 26,361 34,692 32,835 93,888
Jean-Jacques

Henchoz 2,809 3,906 3,726 10,441
Dr Wilm Langenbach 13,956 18,374 16,765 49,095
Dr Edgar Puls 12,316 17,417 17,068 46,801
Caroline Schlienkamp 9,364 8,736 — 18,100
Jens Warkentin 9,364 — — 9,364
Dr Jan Wicke 15121 21,020 20,056 56,197
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The following tables provide an overview of the amounts due to be
paid to Mr Henchoz in the next few years from the multi-year varia-
ble remuneration of Hannover Ruick SE:

HANNOVER RUCK SHARE AWARDS FOR MR HENCHOZ
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024 (REMUNERATION SYSTEM UP TO 2020)

No. of shares

awarded
for FY 2020
Average
share price
at award:
Board of Management member EUR 150,42 Total
Jean-Jacques Henchoz 1,786 1,786
HANNOVER RE PERFORMANCE SHARES FOR MR HENCHOZ
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024 (REMUNERATION SYSTEM AS FROM 2021)
No. of shares No. of shares No. of shares
awarded awarded awarded
for FY 2023 for FY 2022 for FY 2021 Total
Average share  Average share  Average share
Board of Management price ataward:  price ataward: price at award:
member EUR 242,71 EUR 176.66 EUR 156.31
Jean-Jacques
Henchoz 5,850 6,441 6,554 18,845

Malus and clawback policy, risk adjustment

If a member of the Board of Management intentionally infringes one
of their fundamental duties of care in accordance with section 93 of
the AktG, a material duty under their contract of service, or other
material principles of conduct set out by the Company (e.g. in the
Code of Conduct or the Compliance Guidelines), the Supervisory
Board can, at its reasonable discretion, reduce the as yet unpaid vari-
able remuneration either in part or to zero (“malus”) or reclaim the
gross amount of the variable remuneration that has already been
paid in whole or in part (“clawback”). No clawback is possible if the
infringement in question took place more than five years ago.

When reaching its discretionary decision, the Supervisory Board will
take into account the severity of the infringement, the degree of cul-
pability exhibited by the member of the Board of Management, and
the pecuniary and non-pecuniary damage caused to the Company.

Furthermore, members of the Board of Management must repay var-
iable remuneration that has already been paid if and to the extent
that it transpires following the payout that the audited and adopted
consolidated financial statements on which the calculation of the
payout was based were incorrect and that they therefore have to be
corrected in line with the relevant accounting standards and, based
on the corrected audited consolidated financial statements and the
applicable remuneration system, a lower or no payout of variable re-
muneration would have been due.

Furthermore, the payout of variable remuneration components can
be restricted or cancelled in full if the Bundesanstalt fiir Finanzdienst-
leistungsaufsicht (BaFin — the Federal Financial Supervisory Authori-
ty) has issued a non-appealable or immediately enforceable order
prohibiting or restricting the payout (for example if the Company’s
own funds are lower, or in danger of becoming lower, than the Sol-
vency 2 capital requirement), or if this is required under Article 275(2)
letter e of Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/35 of 10 Octo-
ber 2014.

No clawback or reduction was made in financial year 2024; nor was
the payout of variable remuneration components restricted or
cancelled.



Termination benefits
Pension scheme

The Chairman of the Board of Management, Mr Leue, has been grant-
ed a pension commitment in the form of a life-long retirement pen-
sion, which can be paid out in part as a one-off retirement lump sum
upon request, as well as a surviving dependants’ pension. The size of
his post-retirement benefits are calculated using a length-of-service-
based percentage of between 20% and a maximum of 50% of his pen-
sionable income (the last monthly salary that he received). If he
draws his pension before turning 65, 50% of any other income re-
ceived is offset against the retirement pension. Current pension pay-
ments are adjusted annually in line with the changes in Germany’s
consumer price index.

The other members of the Board of Management have been granted
defined contribution commitments to pay retirement, surviving
dependants and occupational disability pensions. The retirement
pension can be paid out as a one-time capital payment on application
by the member of the Board of Management. The retirement benefits
will be granted by HDI Untersttitzungskasse e.V. The company takes
out appropriate reinsurance policies to finance the benefits. The size
of the post-retirement benefits corresponds to the benefits under the
reinsurance policies, based on the annual financing contributions
made by the Company in the amount of 25% of the members’ pen-
sionable income (annual fixed remuneration). Current pensions are
increased annually by at least 1% of their last gross amount.

The following table shows the accrued pension rights under IAS 19 for
the current members of the Board of Management.

ACCRUED PENSION RIGHTS

EUR thousand
IAS 19

Present value
of the pension

Service cost* obligation
Board of Management
member 2024 2023 2024 2023
Torsten Leue 742 646 9,422 9,302
Jean-Jacques
Henchoz? 143 118 785 618
Dr Wilm
Langenbach 123 84 382 277
Dr Edgar Puls 113 91 1,106 1,057
Caroline
Schlienkamp 100 48 331 247
Jens Warkentin 103 43 330 251
DrJan Wicke 139 142 1,404 1,299

* The figure shown represents the service cost recognised in the reporting
period for pensions and other post-retirement benefits.
2 This relates to the personnel expenses recognised by Hannover Riick SE.
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Variable remuneration in the event of the premature
termination of contracts of service

Short-term incentive (STI)

If the contract of service with a member of the Board of Management
ends in the course of a financial year for a reason other than cause as
defined by section 626(1) of the German Civil Code (BGB) for which
the member of the Board of Management is responsible, the plan
participant is entitled to a pro rata STI for that financial year. If the
contract of service ends before the end of the financial year as a result
of extraordinary termination by the Company for cause as defined by
section 626(1) BGB for which the member of the Board of Manage-
ment is responsible, the claim to the STI for that financial year shall
lapse without substitution or compensation.

Long-term incentive (LTI)

If the contract of service or Board of Management appointment ends
before the end of a performance period for a reason other than those
stated below and prior to the end of the financial year, the plan par-
ticipant is entitled to a pro rata LTI for that financial year. In this case,
the variable remuneration components are determined and paid out
in the normal manner as set out in the terms and conditions for the
LTI plan. The premature payout of the LTI before the end of the per-
formance period is not provided for in such cases.

If the contract of service or Board of Management appointment ends
in the course of a financial year due to them stepping down or resign-
ing (exception: resignation or termination by the member of the
Board of Management for cause), if the member of the Board of
Management refuses to accept an extension offering at least equal
contractual conditions (exception: the member of the Board of Man-
agement has turned 60 and has been a member of the Board of Man-
agement for two terms of office), if the Company extraordinarily ter-
minates the member of the Board of Management's contract of
service without notice for cause or if the member of the Board of
Management’s appointment is terminated for cause within the
meaning of section 84(4) of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG)
(exception: a vote of no confidence by the General Meeting), all con-
ditionally granted Talanx performance shares shall lapse without
substitution or compensation.

Severance pay

The service contracts of the members of the Board of Management
have not previously included any provisions regarding claims to sev-
erance pay. With effect from 1January 2025, the service contracts in-
clude a provision regarding a severance cap under which any sever-
ance payments may not exceed the value of two years’ total
remuneration or the remuneration for the remaining term of the
contract, whichever is lower. Similarly, the service contracts of the
members of the Board of Management do not provide for any entitle-
ments in the event of premature termination of their service on the
Board as a result of a change of control.
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Remuneration awarded and due in
financial year 2024

Current members of the Board of Management

The following table shows the remuneration awarded and due to the
individual members of the Board of Management in accordance with
section 162 of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG). The remu-
neration disclosed as “remuneration awarded” is the remuneration
for which the relevant work had been performed in full by the report-
ing date. "Remuneration due” is remuneration that is due but has not
yet actually been paid. The amounts disclosed for financial year 2024
comprise the following:

The fixed remuneration paid out in financial year 2024

The fringe benefits accrued in financial year 2024

The STI determined for financial year 2024, to be paid out in 2025
The amount added to the bonus bank for financial year 2020 that
was paid out in financial year 2024

m  The share awards granted for financial year 2019, which were paid
out in financial year 2024

Furthermore, the pension expense for the pension plan commit-
ments for financial year 2024 is disclosed in the table as part of the
Board of Management remuneration.

In addition, the table shows the relative shares of the overall remu-
neration awarded and due that are accounted for by the individual

remuneration components.

REMUNERATION AWARDED AND DUE

Torsten Leue

(Chairman of the Board of Management)
Chairman since 8 May 2018,

member since 1 September 2010

Jean-Jacques Henchoz®
Head of Division
since 1 April 2019

Dr Wilm Langenbach
Head of Division
since 1 December 2020

EUR thousand 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Base remuneration 1,156 1,020 1,048 960 696 540
Fringe benefits 6 8 22 12 6 6
Other — — — — — —
Fixed remuneration components 1,162 32% 1,028 1,070 34% 972 702 47% 546
One-year variable remuneration
(2024 sTI) 2 1,320 1,224 1,222 1,077 795 648
Multi-year variable remuneration 1,141 646 850 252 — —
2020 bonus bank (3 years)? 301 318 333 252 - -
2019 share awards (4 years)* 840 328 517 - - —
Variable
remuneration components 2,460 68% 1,870 2,073 66% 1,329 795 53% 648
Total remuneration (as defined by
section 162 of the AktG) 3,622 100% 2,898 3,142 100% 2,301 1,497 100% 1,194
Pension expense 742 646 143 118 123 84

* Of which Supervisory Board remuneration by Group companies: Mr Leue EUR 363 (363) thousand, Dr Wicke EUR 60 (60) thousand, Mr Warkentin 14 (0) thousand.
2 The amounts disclosed for financial year 2023 comprise payments from the 2023 one-year variable remuneration.

* The amounts disclosed for financial year 2023 comprise payments from the 2019 bonus bank.

4 The amounts disclosed for financial year 2023 comprise payments from the 2018 share awards.
° Including remuneration awarded and due from Hannover Riick SE in the amount of EUR 2,688 (2,006) thousand, of which EUR 920 thousand was base remuneration,

EUR 1,746 thousand variable remuneration and EUR 22 thousand fringe benefits.
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Dr Edgar Puls
Head of Division
since 9 May 2019

Caroline Schlienkamp
Member of the Board of Management
since 1 May 2022

Jens Warkentin
Head of Division
since 1 January 2023

DrJan Wicke

(Chief Financial Officer)
Chief Financial Officer
since 1 September 2020,
member since 1 May 2014

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

557 512 588 400 588 400 704 646
4 6 12 12 5 11 6 6
561 38% 518 600 49% 412 593 48% 411 710 32% 652
636 572 636 435 654 435 761 702
295 69 — — — - 754 471
112 69 — — — — 198 210
183 — — — — — 556 261
930 62% 641 636 51% 435 654 52% 435 1,515 68% 1,173
1,491 100% 1,159 1,236 100% 847 1,247 100% 846 2,225 100% 1,825
113 91 100 48 103 43 139 — 142
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Former members of the Board of Management

The following table shows the remuneration awarded and due to the
former members of Talanx’s Board of Management in accordance
with section 162 of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG) in

financial year 2024:

REMUNERATION AWARDED AND DUE

Sven Fokkema Herbert Haas Dr Christopher Lohmann DrImmo Querner Ulrich Wallin
(until 31 December 2020) (until 8 May 2018)  (until 31 December 2022) (until 31 August 2020) (until 9 May 2019)
EUR thousand 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Base remuneration — - - - - - - — — - - - - -
One-year variable remuneration
(2024 5T1) - — — — — — - — — —
Multi-year variable remuneration 477 258 — 131 71 — 624 401 239 578
2020 bonus bank (3 years) 119 136 — — 71 — 175 170 — 115
2019 share awards (4 years) 358 122 — 131 — — 449 231 239 463
Variable remuneration 477 100% 258 - - 131 71 100% - 624  98% 401 239  43% 578
Pension payments — — — 597 100% 596 — — 15 2% 217 314 57% 313
Total remuneration (as defined by
section 162 of the AktG) 477 100% 258 597 100% 727 71 100% - 639 100% 618 553 100% 891

Total remuneration paid to former members of the Board of Manage-
ment and their surviving dependants, for whom there were 10 (10)
pension liabilities, came to EUR 2 (2) million in the year under review.
Atotal of EUR 35 (36) million was set aside for pension liabilities.



Supervisory Board remuneration
Principles governing Supervisory Board remuneration

The remuneration for Supervisory Board members resolved by the
Annual General Meeting is set out in Article 12 of the Company’s Arti-
cles of Association. The remuneration system for the Supervisory
Board was approved by the Annual General Meeting of Talanx on
6 May 2021 with 99.9% of the votes in favour and has been in force
since 1January 2021.

Members of the Supervisory Board receive purely fixed remunera-
tion so as to reinforce the Supervisory Board’s independence and en-
sure it is not subject to influence when performing its advisory and
oversight functions. The fixed remuneration for all members of the
Supervisory Board is EUR 100,000. In line with the recommenda-
tions set out in the German Corporate Governance Code, the Chair-
man of the Supervisory Board and his or her Deputies, and the chairs
and members of committees, receive additional remuneration to
appropriately reflect the greater time commitment involved. The
Chairman of the Supervisory Board receives two-and-a-half times the
base remuneration of a simple member of the Supervisory Board,
while each of his or her deputies receives one-and-a-half times the

REMUNERATION AWARDED AND DUE TO THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
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base remuneration. The members of the Finance and Audit Commit-
tee and of the Personnel Committee receive additional remuneration
of EUR 25,000 per annum each. The chairs of these committees re-
ceive double this amount. The attendance fee is EUR 1,000 per meet-
ing and is paid only once where multiple meetings are held on the
same day. Members are also entitled to receive the attendance fee if
they participate in meetings by phone or via video conferences. All
attendance fees are paid on the date of the meeting. Additionally,
Supervisory Board members are included in D&O insurance for gov-
erning body members and certain Talanx Group employees that is
taken out in an appropriate amount and paid for by the Company in
the Company’s interests. Furthermore, the Company reimburses all
members of the Supervisory Board for any expenses incurred by
them.

Remuneration awarded and due to
Supervisory Board members

The following table shows the remuneration awarded and due to
Supervisory Board members in financial year 2024, broken down by
the individual remuneration components. In addition, the table
shows the relative shares of the total remuneration accounted for by
the remuneration components.

Remuneration for

Remuneration for work on

Supervisory Board
payments by Group

Supervisory Board activity committees Attendance allowance companies Total remuneration
EUR thousand 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Herbert K. Haas 250  50% 250 75  15% 75 11 2% 13 163  33% 162 499 500
Jutta Hammer 133 75% 100 25 14% 25 9 5% 11 10 6% 5 177 141
Ralf Rieger (until 7 May 2024) 53 83% 150 9  14% 25 2 3% 11 — — — 64 186
Angela Titzrath 150  71% 133 50  24% 33 11 5% 9 — — — 211 175
Natalie Bani Ardalan
(since 7 May 2024) 65 57% — 16 14% — 7 6% — 27 23% — 115 —
Benita Bierstedt (until 7 May 2024) 35 63% 100 — — — 1 2% 6 20 36% 40 56 146
Rainer-Karl Bock-Wehr 100  95% 100 — — — 5 5% 6 — — — 105 106
DrJoachim Brenk (since 4 May 2023) 100  85% 66 - — — 5 4% 5 12 10% 11 117 82
Sebastian L. Gascard 100  82% 100 16 13% — 6 5% 6 — — — 122 106
Dr Christof Guinther
(since 4 May 2023) 100  75% 66 25 19% 16 9 7% 9 — — — 134 91
Dr Hermann Jung 100  63% 100 50 31% 44 9 6% 11 — — — 159 155
Dirk Lohmann 100  95% 100 — — — 5 5% 6 — — — 105 106
Christoph Meister 100  95% 100 — — — 5 5% 6 — — — 105 106
Jutta Mick (until 7 May 2024) 35 76% 100 9  20% 25 2 4% 9 — — — 46 134
Dr Sandra Reich (since 4 May 2023) 100  95% 66 - - — 5 5% 5 — — — 105 71
Matthias Rickel (since 7 May 2024) 65  94% — - - - 4 6% — — — — 69 —
Prof. DrJens Schubert 100 87% 100 — — — 5 4% 6 10 9% 10 115 116
Patrick Seidel (since 7 May 2024) 65  60% — — - - 4 4% — 40  37% — 109 -
Norbert Steiner 100 76% 100 25 19% 25 7 5% 8 — — — 132 133
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Comparison of changes in
remuneration and earnings

In line with the requirements of section 162(1) sentence 2 no. 2 of the
AktG, the following table compares the changes in the remuneration
paid to members of the Board of Management, members of the
Supervisory Board and employees, plus changes in the Company’s
earnings.

COMPARATIVE INFORMATION ON CHANGES IN THE REMUNERATION

The remuneration shown for the Board of Management and Supervi-
sory Board is the awarded and due remuneration in accordance with
section 162 of the AktG.

The Talanx Group’s workforce in Germany is used as the basis for the
average employee remuneration shown. The employee remunera-
tion shown comprises personnel expenses (not including the ex-
penses for Board of Management remuneration) for wages and sala-
ries, fringe benefits, employer contributions to social security funds,
variable remuneration components attributable to the financial year
and, in the case of share-based remuneration, the amounts paid in
the financial year.

Change Change Change Change
EUR thousand 2024 2023 2024v.2023  2023v.2022  2022v.2021  2021v.2020
Current members of the Board of Management
Torsten Leue 3,622 2,898 +25.0% +16.5% +6.4% +5.5%
Jean-Jacques Henchoz 3,142 2,301 +36.6% -19.1% +50.9% -1.3%
Dr Wilm Langenbach 1,497 1,194 +25.3% +11.0% +8.9% +767.0%
Dr Edgar Puls 1,491 1,159 +28.6% +13.3% +5.7% +37.5%
Caroline Schlienkamp 1,236 847 +45.9% +60.7% — —
Jens Warkentin 1,247 846 +47.4% — — —
DrJan Wicke 2,225 1,825 +21.9% +9.4% +5.6% -3.9%
Former members of the Board of Management
Sven Fokkema (until 31 December 2020) 477 258 +85.0% +203.5% -78.8% —51.6%
Herbert Haas (until 8 May 2018) 597 727 -17.9% —23.4% -13.1% +1.9%
Dr Christopher Lohmann (until 31 December 2022) 71 — — -100.0% +130.3% +36.9%
Dr Immo Querner (until 31 August 2020) 639 618 +3.4% -3.1% —39.5% —37.0%
Ulrich Wallin (until 9 May 2019) 553 891 —37.9% -11.2% —0.9% —2.2%
Current members of the Supervisory Board
Herbert K. Haas 499 500 -0.2% —2.0% —7.4% +13.6%
Jutta Hammer 177 141 +25.5% +3.7% —5.6% +4.3%
Angela Titzrath 211 175 +20.6% +66.7% — +6.1%
Natalie Bani Ardalan (since 7 May 2024) 115 — —
Rainer-Karl Bock-Wehr 105 106 -0.9% +1.0% — —2.8%
DrJoachim Brenk (since 4 May 2023) 117 82 +42.7% — — —
Sebastian L. Gascard 122 106 +15.1% -0.9% -10.1% +5.3%
Dr Christof Guinther (since 4 May 2023) 134 91 +47.3% — — —
DrHermannJung 159 155 +2.6% +1.3% +14.2% +3.1%
Dirk Lohmann 105 106 -0.9% +1.0% — +5.0%
Christoph Meister 105 106 -0.9% +1.0% — +5.0%
Prof. Dr Jens Schubert 115 116 -0.9% +9.4% +1.0% +5.0%
Dr Sandra Reich (since 4 May 2023) 105 71 +47.9% — — —
Matthias Rickel (since 7 May 2024) 69 - - —
Patrick Seidel (since 7 May 2024) 109 — — —
Norbert Steiner 132 133 -0.8% — -0.7% +3.9%
Former members of the Supervisory Board
Antonia Aschendorf (until 4 May 2023) 30 65 -53.8% -49.6% —4.4% +3.8%
Benita Bierstedt (until 7 May 2024) 56 146 —61.6% +0.7% — +4.3%
DrThomas Lindner (until 4 May 2023) — 72 — —65.9% -0.9% +2.9%
Jutta Mick (until 7 May 2024) 46 134 —65.7% -0.7% —8.8% +4.2%
Ralf Rieger (until 7 May 2024) 64 186 —65.6% +0.5% —2.1% +3.3%
Dr Erhard Schipporeit (until 4 May 2023) 34 141 -75.9% —387% —0.4% +14.4%
Employees in Germany
Average 102 99 +3.2% +5.3% +5.6% +3.5%
Change Change Change Change
EUR million 2024 2023 2024v.2023  2023v.2022  2022v.2021  2021v.2020!
Earnings
Talanx AG net income (HGB) 840 743 +13.0% +28.3% +17.0% -10.5%
Group netincome 1,977 1,581 +25.0% +123.8% +15.9% +50.6%




Auditor’s Report
To Talanx AG, Hanover

We have audited the remuneration report of Talanx AG, Hannover,
for the financial year from January 1 to December 31, 2024, including
the related disclosures, which was prepared to comply with § 162
AktG [Aktiengesetz: German Stock Corporation Act].

Responsibilities of the Executive Directors and the
Supervisory Board

The executive directors and the supervisory board of Talanx AG are
responsible for the preparation of the remuneration report, includ-
ing the related disclosures, that complies with the requirements of
§ 162 AktG. The executive directors and the supervisory board are
also responsible for such internal control as they determine is neces-
sary to enable the preparation of a remuneration report, including
the related disclosures, that is free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibilities

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on this remuneration
report, including the related disclosures, based on our audit. We con-
ducted our audit in accordance with German generally accepted
standards for the audit of financial statements promulgated by the
Institut der Wirtschaftspriifer (Institute of Public Auditors in Germany)
(IDW). Those standards require that we comply with ethical require-
ments and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the remuneration report, including the related dis-
closures, is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts including the related disclosures stated in the re-
muneration report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment. This includes the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the remuneration report including the related dis-
closures, whether due to fraud or error.

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal con-
trol relevant to the preparation of the remuneration report including
the related disclosures. The objective of this is to plan and perform
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
company'’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the executive directors and the
supervisory board, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
remuneration report including the related disclosures.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Audit Opinion

In our opinion, based on the findings of our audit, the remuneration
report for the financial year from January 1 to December 31, 2024, in-
cluding the related disclosures, complies in all material respects with
the accounting provisions of § 162 AktG.

Reference to an Other Matter — Formal Audit of the
Remuneration Report according to § 162 AktG

The audit of the content of the remuneration report described in this
auditor’s report includes the formal audit of the remuneration report
required by § 162 Abs. [paragraph] 3 AktG, including the issuance of a
report on this audit. As we express an unqualified audit opinion on
the content of the remuneration report, this audit opinion includes
that the information required by § 162 Abs. 1 and 2 AktG has been
disclosed in all material respects in the remuneration report.

Restriction on use

We issue this auditor’s report on the basis of the engagement agreed
with Talanx AG. The audit has been performed only for purposes of
the company and the auditor’s report is solely intended to inform the
company as to the results of the audit. Our responsibility for the
audit and for our auditor’s report is only towards the company in
accordance with this engagement. The auditor’s report is not intend-
ed for any third parties to base any (financial) decisions thereon. We
do not assume any responsibility, duty of care or liability towards
third parties; no third parties are included in the scope of protection
of the underlying engagement. § 334 BGB [BiirgerlichesGesetzbuch:
German Civil Code], according to which objections arising from a
contract may also be raised against third parties, is not waived.

Hannover, 17 March 2025
PricewaterhouseCoopers GmbH

Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft

Martin Eibl
Wirtschaftsprifer
(German Public Auditor)

ppa. Philipp Ritter
Wirtschaftsprifer
(German Public Auditor)
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Fundamental information

about the Group

The Talanx Group
Business model

The Talanx Group is a multi-brand provider in the insurance and
financial services sector. At the end of 2024, it employed 29,976
people worldwide. The Group parent is the listed company Talanx AG,
which is domiciled in Hannover. Talanx AG’s majority shareholder
(76.74%) is HDI V.a.G., a mutual insurance undertaking formed more

CLASSES OF INSURANCE WRITTEN BY THE GROUP

than 120 years ago. The free float including employee shares amount-
ed to 23.26%.

Group companies write business in the classes of insurance specified
in the Regulation on Reporting by Insurance Undertakings (BerVersV);
in some cases the business is directly written, while in others it takes
the form of reinsurance with a different geographical focus (see the
graphic).

TALANX GROUP

LIFE

LEGAL PROTECTION

CASUALTY
COMPREHENSIVE HOUSE-
HOLDERS

STORM DAMAGE

BUSINESS INTERRUPTION

LIABILITY

BURGLARY AND THEFT

COMPREHENSIVE
HOME-OWNERS

AVIATION AND SPACE
TRAVEL ASSISTANCE LIABILITY

AVIATION?

TAP WATER PLATE GLASS
LIVESTOCK
CREDIT AND SURETY? EXTENDED COVERAGE?

OTHER PROPERTY OTHER NON-LIFE

* Including space insurance.
2 Reinsurance only.
* For fire and fire business interruption insurance (extended coverage insurance).

Talanx has its own companies or branch offices throughout the world
and does business with primary insurance and reinsurance custom-
ers in more than 175 countries in all. Its retail business is focussed on
Germany and, at an international level, primarily on the growth
regions of Central and Eastern Europe (including Tiirkiye) and Latin
America.

The Talanx Group’s divisions operate their core processes inde-
pendently. The main core processes in the Corporate & Specialty
Division, which has an international focus, and in the Reinsurance
segments are product development, sales and underwriting, includ-
ing the relevant technical supervision. The core processes in the
Retail segments comprise product development, rate setting, sales,
product management and product marketing. The Group Operations
segment is responsible for asset management, corporate develop-
ment, risk management, human resources, other services and intra-
group reinsurance of the primary insurance segments.

Information on key intangible resources

Intangible resources such as employees, customer capital/customer
satisfaction as well as software and technologies play a key role and
are of considerable importance to Talanx AG. These resources repre-
sent fundamental prerequisites for our business model. They are key
value drivers and crucial to the Company’s competitiveness and its
long-term and above-average success in the industry.

Employees: As a global multi-brand provider in the insurance and
financial services industry, motivated and well-trained employees
are essential to Talanx AG’s ability to operate successfully and effec-
tively over the long term. In its specialised and customer-oriented
fields of activity, professional expertise and effective collaboration
are essential. That is why the satisfaction and well-being of its
employees are of central importance to the Group. The key issues
here include improving working conditions, enabling co-determina-
tion and promoting equal opportunities. Appropriate wages and
advanced training opportunities also foster a positive working envi-
ronment and help both individuals and the Company to achieve their



goals. To better understand the needs of the workforce, the Group
conducts internal employee surveys worldwide. The insights gained
from these efforts are incorporated into the country-specific HR
strategies and help to ensure their continuous improvement.

Customer capital/customer satisfaction: As an insurer, the Talanx
Group depends on the trust of its customers. Trust is the basis for
purchasing insurance solutions and therefore for doing business
with our Group. Trust is created by always giving due consideration
to the interests and rights of customers in the value chain.

Insurance solutions that are tailored to meet customers’ needs, fair
and appropriate advice and clear explanations of the recommended
insurance solutions are designed to ensure that this is the case and
are a prerequisite for achieving a high level of customer satisfaction.
In addition, the Group has further measures in place to boost cus-
tomer trust and satisfaction. For example, a code of conduct serves as
a binding guideline for all employees, defining the fundamental legal
and ethical requirements governing interactions with customers.
Other measures include specific product approval procedures, occa-
sional internal customer surveys at contact points, and external eval-
uation tools and studies.

Legal and regulatory environment

Insurance companies (primary insurers and reinsurance companies)
and asset management companies are subject to comprehensive
legal and financial supervision by supervisory authorities around the
world. In the Federal Republic of Germany, this is the responsibility of
the Federal Financial Supervisory Authority (BaFin). In addition, busi-
ness activities are subject to extensive legal requirements. In recent
years, the regulatory framework has become more stringent, which
has led to increasing complexity. This trend continued in 2024.

The sale of insurance products is subject to extensive legal require-
ments. When cooperating with intermediaries, primary insurers
must comply with the statutory requirements as well as the require-
ments of BaFin Circular 11/2018 Insurance Distributions governing
cooperation with insurance intermediaries as well as regarding risk
management relating to distribution. Product oversight and the gov-
ernance requirements for insurance products are specified, among
other things, by Delegated Regulation (EU) 2017/2358 of the European
Commission. For the area of residual debt insurance, the Crowdfund-
ing Accompanying Act (Schwarmfinanzierungs-Begleitgesetz) legally
established a commission cap that came into force on 1July 2022. In
addition, Germany'’s Financing for the Future Act (ZuFinG), which
came into force on 1 January 2025, introduced a seven-day waiting
period for the conclusion of residual debt insurance policies for gen-
eral consumer credit agreements. Furthermore, Germany’s Improv-
ing Accessibility Act (Barrierefreiheitsstarkungsgesetz) and the corre-
sponding ordinance will come into force on 28 June 2025, according
to which certain products and services for consumers must be ren-
dered accessible and accompanied by accessibility information. The
services specified in the above-mentioned act include e-commerce
services, which means that the online sale of insurance products
must comply with the accessibility requirements that will then apply.
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Overarching aspects of business organisation (“system of govern-
ance”) as well as key terms such as “proportionality”, “management
boards” and “supervisory boards” are explained from the perspective
of the supervisory authority in BaFin Circular 2/2017 (VA) regarding
the regulatory interpretation of the Minimum Requirements under
Supervisory Law on the System of Governance of Insurance Under-
takings (MaGo). Irrespective of the fact that this document is not
directly legally binding, the HDI Group will also take the MaGo into
account when structuring its business organisation, particularly in
the areas of general governance, key functions, the risk management
system, equity requirements, the internal control system, outsourc-
ing and emergency management. The BaFin has published a revised
version of the MaGo for public consultation. The changes are not
expected to have a significant impact on the Group.

On the basis of the German Money Laundering Act (Geldwiasche-
gesetz — GwG), HDI V.a.G,, as the “parent company of the Group”,
must ensure that all Group companies subject to anti-money laun-
dering requirements implement defined minimum standards. The
Group Money Laundering function rolled out a Group-wide risk anal-
ysis in all divisions driven by events or at least annually in the fourth
quarter of the year based on the requirements of the German Money
Laundering Act (GwG) and documents the risk-based measures taken
by Group companies obligated to prevent money laundering. In addi-
tion, Group-wide reporting on a quarterly basis ensures the exchange
of information within the Group. The Group’s risk of being misused
for money laundering and terrorist financing is categorised as low
overall.

In recent years, digitalisation has become increasingly important.
This is accompanied by a transition to digital, data-based business
models; the resulting legal questions and challenges, with a focus on
IT security, are also playing an increasingly important role for the
companies of the HDI Group. In Circular 10/2018 regarding Supervi-
sory Requirements for IT in Insurance Undertakings (VAIT), the BaFin
provided instructions for interpreting the provisions governing busi-
ness organisation in the Insurance Supervision Act (VAG) insofar as
they relate to the companies’ technical/organisational provisioning.
The same applies with respect to Circular 11/2019 (WA) regarding
Supervisory Requirements for IT in German Asset Managers (KAIT).
The Authority also published guidance on outsourcing to cloud
providers. Furthermore, the EU issued the Regulation on Artificial
Intelligence (Regulation (EU) 2024/1689) in 2024, which also applies
to the insurance industry and will have a tangible impact on the
Talanx Group.

The EU’s Digital Operational Resilience Act (DORA) has introduced
new requirements in this regard, which insurance companies, among
many others, will have to meet beginning in January 2025. This is in-
tended to strengthen the European financial market against cyber
risks as well as information and communication technology incidents.
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The Talanx Group processes substantial volumes of personal data, for
example during application and contract management and when
making payments. In order to ensure compliance with data protec-
tion requirements, such as the EU General Data Protection Regula-
tion (GDPR) and the German Federal Data Protection Act (BDSG), the
data protection management system is designed to observe and
monitor the requirements. Employees are sensitised to the careful
handling of data (via dedicated training seminars) and are bound in
writing to comply with data protection requirements. As regards data
protection requirements that are independent of specific processes,
such as the commissioning of service providers, centralised proce-
dures must be observed. The same applies to the data protection
rights of customers, shareholders and employees.

Adherence to applicable law is a prerequisite for the long-term busi-
ness success of the companies that make up the Talanx Group. The
Group pays close attention to adapting its business and products to
the applicable legal, regulatory and taxation frameworks. The mecha-
nisms installed for this purpose ensure that we can promptly identify
and assess future legal developments and their impact on our busi-
ness activities, so that we can make the necessary adjustments in a
timely manner.

As securities issuers, Talanx AG and other Group companies are sub-
ject to capital market supervision in Germany and Luxembourg,
among other countries.

Combined management report

Group structure

The Group’s business is divided into Insurance — which has five
reportable segments —and a sixth segment, Group Operations.

In the primary insurance sector, we operate through three divisions:
Corporate & Specialty, Retail International and Retail Germany.
The two segments Retail Germany — Property/Casualty and Retail
Germany - Life were combined into a single Retail Germany segment
for the purpose of standardised control based on the resolution of
the Board of Management dated 7 October 2024. A separate member
of the Board of Management is responsible for each of the divisions.

The Corporate & Specialty Division operates worldwide; it is largely
independent of third companies and is capable of leading interna-
tional consortia. The Retail International Division focuses on the
strategic core markets of Latin America and Central and Eastern
Europe (including Turkiye). The Retail Germany Division encompass-
es the companies that offer insurance products to private clients and
small and medium-sized enterprises in Germany.

Our Reinsurance operations comprise the Property/Casualty Rein-
surance and Life/Health Reinsurance segments, which are operated
by Hannover Riick SE. The target markets for Property/Casualty Rein-
surance are Europe, the Middle East and Africa, America as well as
Asia-Pacific; in addition, the segment runs a number of global rein-
surance lines worldwide. Life/Health Reinsurance is divided into the
financial solutions and risk solutions units, which comprises longev-
ity solutions, and mortality and morbidity insurance.

The Group Operations segment includes Talanx AG, which primarily
performs strategic tasks and acts as the Group’s internal reinsurer. In
addition, the segment includes HDI AG as the employer company for
the German Primary Insurance Group and the reinsurance broker
Talanx Reinsurance Broker GmbH, Ampega Asset Management
GmbH and Ampega Investment GmbH; the Ampega companies pri-
marily manage the Group’s investments and offer financial and other
services.
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GESCHAFTSBEREICH
PRIVAT- UND FIRMEN-
VERSICHERUNG
INTERNATIONAL

GESCHAFTSBEREICH
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CORPORATE & RETAIL
SPECIALTY DIVISION INTERNATIONAL
DIVISION

GESCHAFTSBEREICH
PRIVAT- UND FIRMEN-
VERSICHERUNG
DEUTSCHLAND

RETAIL GERMANY
DIVISION
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RUCKVERSICHERUNG

REINSURANCE DIVISION

SCHADEN-

VERSICHERUNG

PROPERTY/
CASUALTY
REINSURANCE

RUCK- RUCK-

PERSONEN-

VERSICHERUNG

LIFE/HEALTH
REINSURANCE

KONZERNFUNKTIONEN

GROUP
OPERATIONS

HDI Global SE HDI International AG

HDI Deutschland AG

Hannover Riick SE

HDI AG

HDI Global Specialty SE HDI Seguros S.A.

(Brazil)

HDI
Lebensversicherung AG

E+S Riickversicherung AG

Ampega Asset
Management GmbH

HDI Versicherung AG Yelum Seguros S.A.
(Austria) (Brazil)

HDI
Pensionsfonds AG

Argenta Holdings
Limited

Ampega Investment GmbH

HDI Global Seguros S.A. HDI Seguros S.A.
(Brazil) (Chile)

HDI
Pensionskasse AG

Hannover ReTakaful B.S.C. (c)
(Bahrain)

Talanx Reinsurance Broker
GmbH

HDI Global Seguros S.A.
(Mexico)

HDI Seguros S.A.
(Colombia)

HDI
Pensionsmanagement AG

Hannover Re
(Bermuda) Ltd.

HDI Global SA Ltd.
(South Africa)

HDI Seguros S.A. de C.V.
(Mexico)

HDI
Versicherung AG

Hannover Life Re
of Australasia Ltd.

TUIR WARTA S.A.
(Poland)

HDI Global Insurance
Company (USA)

Lifestyle Protection
Lebensversicherung AG

Hannover Re
(Ireland) DAC

HDI Global Network AG TU na Zycie WARTA S.A.

(Poland)

Lifestyle Protection AG

Hannover Re
South Africa Limited

TU na Zycie Europa S.A.
(Poland)

HDI Reinsurance
(Ireland) SE

LPV Lebensversicherung AG

Hannover Life Reassurance
Company of America

TU Europa S.A.
(Poland)

LPV Versicherung AG

HDI Assicurazioni S.p.A.

(Italy)

neue leben
Lebensversicherung AG

HDI Sigorta A.S.
(Turkiye)

neue leben
Unfallversicherung AG

TARGO Lebens-
versicherung AG

TARGO
Versicherung AG

Nur die wesentlichen Beteiligungen
Main participations only

Stand/As at: 31.12.2024
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Strategy

The Talanx Group is active in primary insurance and reinsurance
around the world in both the property/casualty and life insurance
businesses. In the more than 120 years of our history, we have devel-
oped from a pure-play liability insurer for industry into a leading
global insurance group — with a focus on the areas of Corporate &
Specialty, Retail, and Reinsurance. We attach particular importance to
close collaboration with our industrial partners and retail clients,
many of whom have worked with us for many years, in order to pro-
vide them with the best possible service. The Talanx Group optimises
the relationship between insurance and reinsurance as an integral
component of our business model with the aim of consistently en-
hancing our opportunity/risk profile and improving capital efficien-
cy. The composition of the Group’s portfolio ensures that we have
sufficient independent risk capacities in different market phases to
support our customers reliably and over the long term and to tap into
promising markets. This diversification approach bolsters our inde-
pendence, minimises our exposure to risk and enables us to sustain-
ably grow the Group’s success to the benefit of clients, investors and
employees.

The Group parent is Talanx AG, a financial and management holding
company. It ensures that the Group achieves its primary objective —
sustainable, profitable growth and long-term value creation. This is
also the guiding principle for all divisional strategies, which are based
on the Group strategy. The Talanx Group’s organisation centralises
Group management and service functions while delegating responsi-
bility for earnings to the divisions. This organisational structure,
which offers the individual divisions a high level of operational free-
dom and responsibility for earnings, is key to the Talanx Group’s suc-
cess as it enables the individual divisions to take maximum advan-
tage of their growth and profit opportunities.

While the Talanx brand is oriented towards the capital market, the
high level of national and international product expertise, forward-
looking underwriting policy and strong distribution resources of our
operational divisions are reflected in a multi-brand strategy. This
enables us to align ourselves optimally to the needs of different client
groups, regions and cooperation partners. It also ensures that new
companies and/or business sectors can be efficiently integrated into
the Group. This structure also creates a good basis for cooperation, in
particular with a wide range of partners and business models.

The Group as a whole aims for a return on equity (in accordance with
IFRS) of more than 12% by 2027 in order to ensure long-term value
creation. Our objective is to increase Group net income by 30% by
2027 compared to 2024, underpinned by our focused divisional strat-
egies and strategic growth initiatives. We want to steadily increase the
dividend per share to EUR 4.00 by 2027 (+50% compared to 2024). As
strategic subsidiary conditions, we have also set ourselves the goal of
achieving limited market risk (< 50%) and a high regulatory solvency
ratio (150%—200%).

Combined management report

Our strengths, and by that measure the basis of our success, include
the Group’s distinctive entrepreneurial corporate culture with clear
local responsibilities, the focus on B2B business — the source of over
80% of our insurance revenue —and strong regional diversification in
terms of business and product mix.

Ongoing capital management optimisation is also an integral part of
the 2025 strategy. The main focus here is on boosting profit and loss
transfers from primary insurance in order to maximise financial flex-
ibility within the Group, provide solid capital resources at all times
and being able to pay dividends in the long term. Capital for expand-
ing business is used only where the strategic and profitability criteria
have been met. Business decisions are managed in such a way that
capital and liquidity are transferred to the holding company whenever
possible. For this purpose, both the Group capital structure and local
capital resources of our subsidiaries are optimised on an ongoing ba-
sis. In addition, we pool the reinsurance requirements for primary in-
surance on an intra-group basis at the holding company in order to
take advantage of capital and diversification effects throughout the
Group.

People management is another key focus of our strategy. With our
people strategy, we think about recruiting holistically and in terms of
target groups (“hire”). We offer our employees targeted, attractive
development pathways (“develop”). We inspire our employees to
actively work to develop our culture and encourage entrepreneurship
(“inspire”). To do so, we provide the freedom and scope necessary and
bring our culture to life (“xperience”). One particular focus area here is
diversity, a way of drawing on our differences as a strength for the
Group’s long-term development. Further details on our people man-
agement strategy are provided in the sustainability statement section.

The strategies of the individual divisions were further refined and
focussed. The HDI Global 4.0 strategy positions us as a leading part-
ner to international insurance programmes and service provider for
captives in the Corporate & Specialty Division. Our profitability-
driven underwriting policy is combined with an efficient cost struc-
ture. Specialty insurance remains a key growth area. In the Corporate
& Specialty Division, we believe there is particular growth potential
in North America, Europe, Australia and selected emerging markets.
In the Retail International Division, we aim to continue our strong
growth through the “HINexT 2025” strategy while also further ad-
vancing diversification. Our goal is to position ourselves as a leader in
the five defined core markets in Latin America and in central and
Eastern Europe, i.e. to be one of the top five providers in property/
casualty insurance. This is to be achieved by means of profitable or-
ganic and non-organic growth. The Retail Germany Division is con-
tinuing to focus on its “Go25" strategy. As well as substantial growth
in business with small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs), its
main aim here is to establish additional cooperation and organic
growth in the area of banking partnerships. The Reinsurance Division
is focusing on achieving industry-leading performance in terms of
profitability and profit growth with its strategy “Staying Focused.
Thinking Ahead.” The key elements are (1) a focus on reinsurance with
a lean and capital-efficient business model, (2) ensuring profitable



growth and (3) accelerating operational efficiency, automation and
data utilisation, as well as firmly establishing diversity, equality and
inclusion in the division’s operations. Furthermore, as a long-term
majority shareholder in Hannover Riick SE, we support the goal of
further strengthening that company’s position as a global player.

As an international insurance group and long-term investor, the
Talanx Group has long been committed to responsible corporate
governance designed to ensure sustainable value creation. The sus-
tainability strategy is therefore an integral component of Group
strategy. It is based on the effective implementation of ESG (environ-
mental, social and governance) aspects in asset management and
underwriting, in the Group’s own operations, and in its corporate

TALANX GROUP STRATEGY
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social commitment activities. We have set ourselves the target of
achieving net zero emissions by 2050 for our investments and insur-
ance business.' At our own locations worldwide, we are systematically
pursuing our goal of achieving GHG neutrality by 2030 (including
offsetting any remaining emissions). The focus of our decentralised
social and societal engagement is particularly on the areas of diversi-
ty, equity and inclusion, as well as (employee) education. Further in-
formation on our sustainability strategy can be found in the sustain-
ability statement section.

The risk strategy is explained in the risk report section and is there-
fore not described in further detail here.

GROUP

A. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

B. PEOPLE MANAGEMENT

C. FOCUSED DIVISIONAL STRATEGIES

PRIMARY INSURANCE

REINSURANCE

CORPORATE & SPECIALTY RETAIL

INTERNATIONAL

HINexT

2025
-Together-

RETAIL GERMANY

Staying Focused. Thinking Ahead.

STRONGER. TOGETHER.

D. SUSTAINABILITY/ESG

* The Talanx Group always makes decisions on the basis of current data and the applicable
regulatory framework. Should conditions change, the Talanx Group reserves the right to
update the corresponding decisions.
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Enterprise management

The Talanx Group’s strategy is geared towards long-term value crea-
tion for all Group stakeholders (and in particular investors, clients
and employees). To achieve this, we focus on continuity, financial
strength and profitability. At the same time, we also take the regulato-
ry demands placed on insurance undertakings and rating agencies’
expectations into account. Our system of targets is based on four
pillars:

Financial strength
Sustainable growth
Long-term value creation
Optimal capital efficiency

Our end-to-end, integrated management system is designed to help
us achieve these goals. It focuses primarily on four fundamental
management processes that govern the interactions between
Talanx AG and the divisions:

Capital management
Performance management
Risk management

Mergers & acquisitions

Combined management report

This interplay between Talanx AG and the divisions is underpinned
by the Talanx Group’s guiding organisational principle, which cen-
tralises Group management functions while delegating responsibili-
ty for earnings to the divisions.

We measure our Group’s financial position using our Solvency 2
ratios and the S&P rating model.

We use our economic performance measurement (EPM) concept and
the metric of economic profit to manage long-term value added and
to enhance the Group’s capital efficiency. This metric enables us to
compare different business models. Economic profit measures eco-
nomic net income (adjusted comprehensive income) net of the cost
of capital. In addition to IFRS net income for the financial year, adjust-
ed comprehensive income takes into account other components of
the IFRS balance sheet and off-balance-sheet positions (see figure be-
low for calculation). The cost of capital is derived from the capital
asset pricing model (CAPM) and is broken down among the segments
consistently using the internal model.

ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT: RECONCILIATION FROM IFRS NET INCOME TO ECONOMIC PROFIT

Conversion to value added
by deducting cost of capital

Transformation of IFRS net income to

adjusted comprehensive income

ADJUSTED
COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

NET INCOME FOR
THE YEAR (IFRS)

ECONOMIC
PROFIT

* Adjustments, e.g. change in CMS and risk adjustment.



Performance management

Performance management is at the core of our central management
system. It ensures efficient, systematic Group management and links
business activities at Group and division level with our strategic
goals.

The performance management cycle combines our strategic and
operational planning and is closely integrated with our Group

strategy. It took the following form in the reporting period:

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT CYCLE
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STRATEGY
REVIEW

GROUP
STRATEGY

IMPLEMENTATION/
ACHIEVEMENT

DEFINITION OF
INDICATIVE
A TARGETS

VALIDATION OF
THE TOP-
DOWN GOALS
ON THE BASIS
OF THE
INDICATIVE
TARGETS

N 4

OPERATIONAL
PLANNING
PROCESS

PERFORMANCE
REVIEWS

PERFORMANCE
MANAGEMENT
CYCLE

At the start of the annual performance management cycle,
Talanx AG’s Board of Management gives the divisions indicative
objectives in order to enable them to align their business activities
with the strategy. These objectives are derived from the Group’s stra-
tegic management metrics and initiatives. The strategic manage-
ment metrics include the return on equity (RoE) and the dividend. A
risk budget and a minimum capital adequacy figure are also defined,
providing the accompanying framework for these management met-
rics. Taken together, the indicative objectives formulated by the hold-
ing company’s Board of Management therefore clearly define its ex-
pectations as to profitability, the ability to pay dividends, risk appetite
and the level of security for each planning year.

After the indicative objectives have been set, the objectives defined
are validated by the divisions in terms of their feasibility and then set
by the Talanx Board of Management in the operational planning
process.

The Group and the divisions use the management dashboard for
business management. The management dashboard displays all the
key strategic and operational management metrics, thereby provid-
ing an overview of whether the objectives of the Group and the divi-
sions can be achieved sustainably. Running through the performance
management process using the management dashboard allows us to
ensure end-to-end, uniform management for the entire Group. All
areas of the Group are aligned with the strategic objectives and
presented in a transparent and balanced manner with the help of
measurable metrics. For operational management, we translate our
strategic objectives into operational value drivers that are consistent
with the strategy.
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Currently, the Group is only managed by financial performance
indicators. Non-financial management metrics are not relevant for
managing the Group. The operational management metrics at Group
and division level shown in the following table therefore are purely
financial performance indicators.

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT METRICS USED IN THE GROUP

CORPORATE & RETAIL RETAIL REINSURANCE DIVISION? GROUP
SPECIALTY DIVISION INTERNATIONAL GERMANY DIVISION*
DIVISION
PROPERTY/CASUALTY LIFE/HEALTH
REINSURANCE? REINSURANCE?

Growth of insurance Growth of insurance Growth of insurance Growth of insurance revenue Growth of insurance
revenue (adjusted for revenue (adjusted for revenue (adjusted for currency effects) revenue (adjusted for
currency effects) currency effects) currency effects)
— — New business value (net, — Insurance service result ~ Group netincome
life insurance only)
Combined ratio Combined ratio (net/ Combined ratio (net/ Combined ratio (net/net) — -
(net/gross) gross, property/casualty  gross, property/casualty
insurance only) insurance only)
Return on equity Return on equity Return on equity Return on equity Return on equity

* The two segments Retail Germany — Property/Casualty and Retail Germany — Life were combined into a single Retail Germany segment for the purpose of
standardised control based on the resolution of the Board of Management dated 7 October 2024.

2 The management metrics are being adjusted for the forecast for financial year 2025: for the Reinsurance Division, we will now only forecast the return on equity and
no longer the growth in insurance revenue (adjusted for currency effects). For the Property/Casualty Reinsurance segment, we will continue to forecast not only the
combined ratio (net/net) but also insurance revenue growth (adjusted for currency effects). For the Life/Health Reinsurance segment, we will forecast net contractual
service margin (CSM) growth in addition to the net technical result.
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Definitions of management metrics

Combined ratio (property/casualty insurance)

Net/gross: 1 — [insurance service result (net) divided by insurance
revenue (gross)].

Net/net: 1 — [insurance service result (net) divided by insurance
revenue (net)].!

Group net income
Consolidated net income for the period (after financing costs and
taxes) excluding non-controlling interests

Growth of insurance revenue (adjusted for currency effects)

The growth of insurance revenue is the nominal growth adjusted for
currency effects: insurance revenue for the current year at the prior-
year (PY) exchange rate less insurance revenue (PY), divided by
insurance revenue (PY).

Insurance service result
Insurance revenue less insurance service expenses and the result
from reinsurance contracts held

Net contractual service margin (CSM) growth

Current-year CSM less prior-year CSM, divided by prior-year CSM. The
CSM is a component of the carrying amount of the asset or liability
for a group of insurance contracts issued. It represents the unrealised
profit that the Group will recognise in the future when services are
provided in accordance with the insurance contract.

New business value (life insurance)
Net: contractual service margin (CSM) for new business (net) less loss
component of new business (net)

Return on equity

Ratio of net income (after financing costs and taxes) excluding
non-controlling interests to average equity excluding non-controlling
interests.

*Insurance revenue (gross) less expenses from reinsurance contracts held.
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Combined management report

Report on economic position

Markets and business climate
Macroeconomic development

In 2024, the global economic landscape was characterised by geopo-
litical tensions such as the conflict in the Middle East, political uncer-
tainty in the face of new elections and changes of government in
numerous countries, as well as the restrictive monetary policy of
many central banks for long periods of the year. Against this backdrop,
the global economy grew by 3.2%, which, after a further slowdown, was
slightly below its average since the turn of the millennium.

In Germany, the economy shrank for the second year in a row in 2024,
contracting by 0.2%. Within this context, gross value added fell signif-
icantly in both the manufacturing and construction industries, while
it increased slightly in the services sector. In particular, persistently
high energy costs, increased interest rates and the uncertain eco-
nomic and political outlook proved to be negative factors. On the
expenditure side, the increase in private and public consumption
was unable to fully compensate for the sharp decline in gross fixed
capital expenditure, particularly as regards investments in equip-
ment. At the same time, the headwind increased in the foreign
markets. In 2024, Germany was thus among the laggards in the euro-
zone in terms of economic performance, as it was in 2023, with the
eurozone’s economic output increasing by 0.7% overall compared to
the prior year.

Despite the higher interest rates and all the fears of a recession, the
US economy continued to perform well in 2024, growing by 2.8% year
on year. This growth was supported by public-sector consumption
and capital spending (including on equipment) while foreign trade
proved to be a burden in view of the strong growth in imports. In
particular, consumer spending again lived up to its reputation as the
most important driver of growth in the US economy, benefiting from
rising purchasing power thanks to strong wage growth combined
with stable inflation and a robust labour market. Although the unem-
ployment rate rose slightly from 3.8% to 4.1% over the course of the
year, it remained at a low level by historical standards.

In 2024, economic growth in China slowed from 5.2% year on year to
5.0%. In the face of ongoing turmoil in the property sector, high levels
of debt among local governments, limited consumer spending by
private households and investment driven exclusively by the state,
additional stimulus ultimately ensured a strong fourth quarter,
meaning that the country only narrowly achieved the official growth
target of 5%.

Growth in Latin America accelerated slightly from 1.9% to 2.2% last
year. The fact that many central banks in the region had already be-
gun to lower their key interest rates again in 2023, after they had risen
sharply in the wake of the post-COVID-19 inflation shock, proved to
have a supportive effect. Nevertheless, growth remained below the
average since the turn of the millennium.

REAL GDP

% change year-on-year 2024* 2023
Germany -0,2 -0.3
Eurozone +0.7 +0.4
USA +2.8 +2.9
China +5.0 +5.2

* Source: Bloomberg; provisional figures as at 12 February 2025.

Global inflationary pressure continued to ease last year, although in-
flation rates did not return to their pre-COVID-19 levels. In the euro-
zone, the inflation rate still stood at 2.5% in the middle of last year.
However, the sharp decline of around eight percentage points from
the 2022 high gave the ECB sufficient confidence to initiate a cycle of
interest rate cuts from June onwards in the face of weak economic
activity in the eurozone, and to subsequently lower the deposit rate
from 4.00% to 3.00% by year-end. After price pressure in the United
States initially increased again in the first quarter of 2024, inflation in
the country stabilised between 2.5% and 3%. In this context, the Fed
remained comparatively cautious and only began lowering interest
rates in September, although it also reduced the base rate by a full
percentage point to 4.50% by the end of the year.

Capital markets

The prospect of interest rate cuts by the central banks, the stable eco-
nomic environment in the United States and positive earnings trends
drove the stock markets to ever new record highs in 2024. The US S&P
500 ended the year up 23.3% (all performance figures calculated in
USD), thereby posting growth of more than 20% for the second year
in a row. As in the prior year, the US stock market benefited from the
well above-average performance of the major technology companies,
not least in the face of the euphoria surrounding the topic of artificial
intelligence, whereas the temporary “Trump rally” after the US presi-
dential elections at the beginning of November proved to be short-
lived. Equities in the developed markets (MSCI World: +17.0%), Asia
(MSCI Asia ex Japan: +9.8%) and China (MSCI China: +16.3%) lagged
behind. In US dollar terms, the Euro Stoxx index even ended the year
with a small loss of 0.3%, while the DAX rose above the 20,000-point
mark for the first time in its history. Due to the prospect of interest



rate cuts by the Fed, the yield on 10-year US Treasuries fell from its
high of 5% in autumn 2023 to 3.62% by September 2024. However,
concerns about the United States’ high national debt and the future
US president’s potentially inflationary (tariff) policy, as well as doubts
about further interest rate cuts by the Fed, pushed yields back up to
4.57% by the end of the year (2024: +0.69 percentage points). The
yield on 10-year German government bonds rose from 2.02% to 2.37%
overall over the course of 2024. The price of Brent crude oil reached
its annual high of USD 91 per barrel in April, as the conflict in the
Middle East escalated. However, by the end of the year, it had fallen to
USD 74, a year-on-year decline of 3.1%. After the euro had gained
ground to USD 1.12 by August, the sharp rise in interest rates in the
United States in the autumn triggered a significant downward trend
towards parity. At the end of the year, the EUR was trading at USD 1.04,
down 6.2% on its opening price at the start of the year.

German insurance industry
Property/Casualty Insurance

The development of property/casualty insurance in the German
insurance industry was again characterised by inflation-related pre-
mium adjustments in 2024 due to catch-up effects. Due to these
catch-up effects, motor insurance was able to record a significant in-
crease in premiums despite only a small increase in the portfolio.
Claims expenses were again higher than in the prior year due to ris-
ing repair costs and a slight increase in the frequency of claims. In
2024, losses due to natural catastrophes decreased slightly compared
to the prior year, but remained at a high level. In particular, severe
natural hazard losses occurred at a rate well above the long-term
average. The most severe natural hazard losses were caused by the
floods in May and June of the reporting period.

Life Insurance

Premium income in the German life insurance business continued
to decline in 2024, albeit at a slower rate than in previous years. The
main reason for this was that the single premium business has stabi-
lised due to falling short-term interest rates. The regular premium
business recorded increased new business due to the rise in nominal
wages. However, due to a higher number of terminations in absolute
terms, there was a slight decline in the portfolios overall.
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International insurance markets

The Talanx Group has defined the regions of Europe and Latin Amer-
ica as target regions for expanding its international retail business. In
the Corporate & Speciality Division, the group is further expanding
its global presence. This section focuses primarily on developments
in the above-mentioned international target regions.

Property/Casualty Insurance

International property/casualty insurance recorded real premium
growth in 2024 due to the ongoing hard market phase, particularly in
the field of private insurance. Growth in the developed insurance
markets was slightly below the level of emerging markets (excluding
China) and was mainly characterised by inflation-related price ad-
justments. In this context, North America showed the strongest real
premium growth, followed by Europe and the Asia-Pacific region.
The positive real premium growth in emerging markets was primari-
ly driven by volume effects.

The losses caused by natural catastrophes in the reporting period
were above the level of the prior year and significantly above the ten-
year average. Once again, a large share of the losses was due to a mul-
titude of events with low to moderate impact, in particular severe
thunderstorms, floods and hurricanes. In Europe and the Middle
East, severe flooding caused extensive damage, while the United
States was affected by hurricanes Helene and Milton and severe
thunderstorms. International property/casualty reinsurance re-
corded positive premium growth in the reporting period, which was
also primarily due to price adjustments.

Life Insurance

Premium income in international life insurance markets in 2024
was well above the long-term trend, mainly due to stronger demand
for savings products. The increase in total premiums was again pri-
marily driven by the emerging markets, particularly China and India.
Due to improved macroeconomic conditions, however, even the
developed insurance markets, especially North America and Europe,
saw growth in premium income well above the long-term trend. Sim-
ilarly, international life/health reinsurance recorded positive
premium growth in 2024, favoured by strong economic growth in
emerging markets and government insurance reforms.
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Business performance

The Group continues to enhance profitability in primary insurance
both in Germany and abroad. The Corporate & Specialty Division
focuses on being a leading partner for international insurance pro-
grammes and a service provider for captives. The Division intends to
generate growth in specialty insurance and particularly in North
America, Europe and Australia, as well as in selected emerging
markets. The Retail International Division looks set to see its strong
growth continue and further advance diversification with the aim of
being one of the top five in property/ casualty insurance in our core
markets. The Retail Germany Division is continuing to focus on its
strategy. It aims to generate further growth in business with small
and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) and organic growth in the area
of banking partnerships. The Reinsurance Division’s strategy is
focused on achieving industry-leading performance in terms of
profitability and earnings growth.

Despite challenging conditions, insurance revenue (EUR 48.1 billion)
and operating profit (EUR 4,913 million) were up 11.4% and 60.1% re-
spectively on the prior year. Group net income (EUR 1,977 million)
rose by 25.0%.

INSURANCE REVENUE

EUR billion
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Talanx diversifies reinsurance coverage

The Talanx Group has issued a catastrophe bond (“cat bond”) for the
first time and purchased multi-year coverage for earthquake risks in
Chile. The bond, issued by Maschpark Re Ltd. a special purpose
vehicle established in Bermuda, in collaboration with Talanx subsidi-
ary Hannover Re, has a total value of USD 100 million.

Talanx finalises purchase price financing for Liberty
Mutual acquisition

Talanx AG issued a senior unsecured bond with a value of EUR 750
million as part of a private placement. The bond’s sole subscriber was
HDI V.a.G., the majority shareholder of Talanx AG. The bond pro-
ceeds were used to partially finance the acquisition of Liberty Mutual
in Brazil, Chile, Colombia and Ecuador.



Group’s course of business
= [nsurance revenue up 13.0% adjusted for currency effects
= Group net income up 25.0%

= Combined ratio falls by 3.9 percentage points

GROUP KEY FIGURES

EUR million 2024 2023 +/—
Insurance revenue 48,150 43,237 +11.4%
Insurance service result 5114 3,234 +58.1%
Net insurance financial and
investment result
before currency effects 1,278 1,130 +13.1%
of which investment result 5,772 4,649 +24.2%
of which net insurance
financial result
before currency effects —4,494 —3,519 —27.7%
Operating profit/loss (EBIT) 4,913 3,068 +60.1%
Combined ratio (property/casualty
only, net/gross) in % 90.3 94.3 —3.9 ppts
GROUP MANAGEMENT METRICS
% 2024 2023 +/—
Growth of insurance revenue
(adjusted for currency effects) 13.0 122 +0.8ppts
Group net income in EUR million 1,977 1,581 +25.0%
Return on equity 17.9 16.6 +1.3ppts

Insurance revenue

The Talanx Group increased its insurance revenue by 11.4% to
EUR 48.1 (43.2) billion in the reporting period, with 46.5% of this total
coming from primary insurance. Adjusted for currency effects, insur-
ance revenue increased by 13.0%. The Corporate & Specialty and
Retail International segments contributed significantly to the growth
in insurance revenue, with increases of 10.4% and 30.7%, respectively.

Insurance service result

The insurance service result improved by 58.1% to EUR 5.1 (3.2) billion,
due mainly to the improved profitability of business in all divisions.
At EUR 2,199 million, large losses remained within the expected large
loss budget for the financial year (EUR 2,435 million). The largest
single losses were Hurricane Milton at EUR 290 million, the floods in
Eastern Europe at EUR 254 million and the flooding in Brazil at
EUR 148 million. The Life/Health Reinsurance segment contributed
to the result with strong performance in its longevity and mortality
business.

The combined ratio improved by 3.9 percentage points to 90.3%
(94.3%) due to improved combined ratios in all divisions, but particu-
larly in the Retail International and Property/Casualty Reinsurance
divisions.
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Net insurance financial and investment result
(before currency effects)

Investment income in the reporting period totalled EUR 5,772 (4,649)
million. Net investment income for own risk improved to EUR 3,880
(3,235) million. Ordinary investment income increased by 15%, main-
ly due to higher interest income. In addition, we were able to generate
higher recurring income from alternative investments. Compared to
the prior year, the result from the disposal of investments also
improved, more than offsetting the increase in other investment ex-
penses, which was mainly due to payments on challenged additional
tax assessment notices related to investment risks. The financial
result adjusted for currency effects, which includes the unwinding of
discounted technical provisions and policyholder participation in
the net investment result, including income from unit-linked insur-
ance contracts, was EUR —4,494 (-3,519) million. Overall, the net in-
surance financial and investment result before currency effects rose
by 13.1% to EUR 1,278 (1,130) million.

Operating profit and Group net income

Operating profit (EBIT) rose by 60.1% to EUR 4.913 (3,068) million. The
declines in the currency result and in the other result were more than
offset by the improvements in the net insurance service result and
the net insurance financial and investment result (before currency
effects). The increase was primarily driven by the growth in EBIT in
the Corporate & Specialty (+57.4%), Retail International (+64.7%) and
Property/Casualty Reinsurance (+114.2%) segments. Tax expenses in-
creased to EUR -1,402 (—289) million. Tax expenses in the prior year
were very low due to a one-time effect in connection with the intro-
duction of a corporate tax regime in Bermuda and as a result of differ-
ent regional earnings contributions. Group net income of EUR 1,977
(1,581) million was 25.0% higher than in the same period of the prior
year. Return on equity in the reporting period was 17.9% (16.6%).

The net contractual service margin (CSM) rose to EUR 11.4 (10.7) bil-
lion. The increase was mainly due to the Retail Germany and Life/
Health Reinsurance segments.
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Comparison of actual business performance
with the 2024 forecast

GROUP MANAGEMENT METRICS

Forecast for

2024 from the

2023 Annual

% 2024 Report
high

Growth of insurance revenue (adjusted for curren- single-digit
cy effects) 13.0  percentage
Group net income in EUR billion* 2.0 >1.7
Return on equity 179 ~15

* The forecast was adjusted to “>EUR 1.9 billion” during 2024.

Adjusted for exchange rates, insurance revenue grew by 13.0% in the
reporting period, which was above the upper single-digit percentage
range forecast. At EUR 2.0 billion, Group net income also exceeded
the guidance for the reporting period (revised during the year), which
anticipated Group net income of more than EUR 1.9 billion. The fore-
cast for the return on equity was given in the annual report as around
15%. The actual return on equity of 17.9% significantly exceeded the
forecast.

Combined management report

Performance of the Group’s Divisions

At a strategic level, Talanx divides its business into six reportable seg-
ments: Corporate & Specialty, Retail International, Retail Germany,
Property/Casualty Reinsurance, Life/Health Reinsurance and Group
Operations. Please refer to the “Segment reporting” section of the
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for details of these
segments’ structure and scope of business.

INSURANCE REVENUE BY SEGMENT

%
7/8
21/21 Retail Germany

Corporate & Specialty

16/17
Life/Health Reinsurance

N

37/37
Property/Casualty Reinsurance

19/16
Retail International

0/0
Group Operations

2024/2023



Corporate & Specialty

= Significant increase in operating profit, driven by underwriting
and investment performance

= Double-digit revenue growth due to rate increases and new
business

= Underwriting benefitted from low frequency and large losses

KEY FIGURES FOR THE CORPORATE & SPECIALTY DIVISION

EUR million 2024 2023 +/—
Insurance revenue 10,006 9,065 +10.4%
Insurance service result 1,004 770 +30.4%
Net insurance financial and
investment result
before currency effects 83 11 +660.5%
of which investment result 368 196 +87.5%
of which netinsurance
financial result
before currency effects —285 -185 -53.6%
Operating profit/loss (EBIT) 702 446 +57.4%

MANAGEMENT METRICS FOR THE CORPORATE & SPECIALTY DIVISION

% 2024 2023 +/—-
Growth of insurance revenue

(adjusted for currency effects) 10.7 123 —1.6ppts
Combined ratio (net/gross) 90.0 91.5 —1.5ppts
Return on equity 176 143 +3.3ppts

The division brings together the Talanx Group’s global activities in
the area of corporate and specialty insurance and is active in more
than 175 countries with its companies and branches, as well as
through network partners.

Insurance revenue

The division’s insurance revenue rose sharply by 10.4% to EUR 10.0
(9.1) billion (10.7% after adjustment for currency effects). The growth
resulted from new business in property, liability and specialty busi-
ness and inflation-related price adjustments.

Insurance service result

At EUR 1,004 (770) million, the net insurance service result in the
division was up significantly on the prior year. The loss ratio im-
proved from approximately EUR 60 million to 73.5% (74.5%) due to
lower frequency losses and the underutilisation of the large loss
budget. The expense ratio also decreased to 16.5% (17.0%). This result-
ed in a combined ratio (net/gross) of 90.0% (91.5%).
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Net insurance financial and investment result

(before currency effects)

Investment income was well up on the previous year at EUR 368 (196)
million due to higher regular interest income and an increased in-
vestment volume. The decline of the net insurance financial result to
EUR —285 (-185) million was to be expected in the current inter-
est-rate environment.

Operating profit and Group net income

The 57.4% increase in operating profit to EUR 702 (446) million was
driven by favourable developments in both underwriting and
investment. The contribution to Group net income totalled EUR 501
(351) million.

Comparison of actual business performance
with the 2024 forecast

MANAGEMENT METRICS FOR THE CORPORATE & SPECIALTY DIVISION

Forecast for

2024 from the

2023 Annual

% 2024 Report
high

Growth of insurance revenue single-digit
(adjusted for currency effects) 10.7  percentage
Combined ratio (net/gross) 90.0 <93
Return on equity 17.6 ~13

At 10.7%, growth in insurance revenue (adjusted for currency effects)
was slightly higher than expected. The property, liability and special-
ty lines contributed to this, both through new business and through
rate increases. At 90.0%, the combined ratio (net/gross) remained
below the expected <93%; it benefited from low frequency loss ratios
and an underutilisation of the large loss budget.

Strong underwriting and investment performance resulted in a
return on equity of 17.6%, significantly above the expected level of
approximately 13%.
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Retail International

= [nsurance revenue up 39.9% (adjusted for exchange rates),
particularly as a result of the contribution of the acquired
Liberty companies in Latin America and WARTA

= Combined ratio falls to 92.5%, largely influenced by the
Liberty companies, Chile and Turkiye

m  Operating profit up 64.7% to EUR 836 million, an even sharper
increase than insurance revenue

KEY FIGURES FOR THE RETAIL INTERNATIONAL DIVISION

EUR million 2024 2023 +/—
Insurance revenue 9,281 7,099 +30.7%
Insurance service result 778 426 +82.7%
Net insurance financial and
investment result
before currency effects 448 368 +21.9%
of which investment result 784 628 +24.9%
of which netinsurance
financial result before currency
effects -336 —261 -29.0%
Operating profit/loss (EBIT) 836 507 +64.7%

MANAGEMENT METRICS FOR THE RETAIL INTERNATIONAL DIVISION

% 2024 2023 +/-
Growth of insurance revenue

(adjusted for currency effects) 39.9 40.8 —0.9 ppts
Combined ratio (net/gross,

Property/Casualty Insurance only) 92.5 95.0 —2.5 ppts
Return on equity 153 112 +4.1 ppts

This Division bundles the Talanx Group’s international retail busi-
ness activities and is active in both Europe and Latin America. Follow-
ing the signing of the contract for the acquisition of the Liberty
Mutual companies in Brazil, Chile, Colombia and Ecuador in May
2023, the transaction in Brazil was completed in November 2023. The
acquisition of the other Liberty Mutual companies in Chile, Colombia
and Ecuador was finally successfully completed on 1 March 2024. As a
result, HDI has strengthened its market position and is now ranked
number 1in Chile, number 7 in Colombia and number 17 in Ecuador
in the property and casualty insurance business. The operating com-
panies of Liberty Seguros in Chile and the Chilean HDI Seguros S.A.
merged on 1 November 2024, with the Colombian operating compa-
nies following suit on 2 January 2025.

In addition, an agreement was reached in December 2024 that the
strategic partnership between the Division and Meiji Yasuda Life In-
surance Company will expire on 31 December 2025. In this context,
the Division plans to take over the shares of the Polish subsidiaries
Towarzystwo Ubezpieczen i Reasekuracji WARTA S.A. (24.3%) and
Towarzystwo Ubezpieczenn Europa S.A. (50.0% minus one share)
starting in 2026.

Combined management report

Insurance revenue

Insurance revenue generated by the Division increased by 30.7%
(39.9% when adjusted for currency effects) over the previous year to
EUR 9.3 (7.1) billion. This strong performance was driven by both or-
ganic growth (approximately 15% after adjusting for currency effects)
and the inclusion of the Liberty companies acquired in Latin America.
The organic growth was driven primarily by the motor, building and life
insurance business of the Polish companies Towarzystwo Ubezpieczen
i Reasekuracji WARTA S.A. and Towarzystwo Ubezpieczenn na Zycie
WARTA S.A. Accordingly, the segment generated an equal share of its
insurance revenue in Latin America and Europe for the first time.

Insurance service result

The combined ratio improved to 92.5% (95.0%) and also benefited
from the acquired Liberty companies, which had a better combined
ratio than the segment average. In addition, the motor business writ-
ten by the Chilean company HDI Seguros S. A. delivered a thoroughly
favourable underwriting performance, while the Turkish company
HDI Sigorta A.$. achieved operational improvements. These drivers
and the continued strong business performance in Italy and Poland
more than offset the large losses from natural disasters, particularly
in Eastern Europe and Chile. The insurance service result increased
accordingly to EUR 778 (426) million.

Net insurance financial and investment result

(before currency effects)

Net insurance financial and investment result rose compared to the
2023 financial year to EUR 448 (368) million. In particular, higher vol-
umes from the Liberty acquisition and in Turkiye led to an increase in
ordinary investment income, more than offsetting negative ex-
change rate effects, mainly in Turkiye. The result from unit-linked
insurance policies reduced the net investment result by EUR 14 mil-
lion. However, this effect was offset in the net insurance financial
result by policyholder participation. In the net insurance financial
result of property insurance companies, expenses from unwinding
discounts on technical provisions increased by EUR 80 million.

Operating profit and Group net income

In the 2024 financial year, the Retail International Division generated
an operating profit (EBIT) of EUR 836 million, an increase of 65% over
the previous year (EUR 507 million). This operational improvement
resulted from the inclusion of the acquired Liberty companies and
the strong underwriting performance in Chile as regards the Latin
America region. Overall, operating profit (EBIT) in the Latin America
region rose by EUR 132 million to EUR 275 million. Operating profit
(EBIT) in the Europe region increased to EUR 592 (408) million. The
main drivers here were the Polish WARTA companies and
HDI Sigorta A.$. in Turkiye, thanks to operational improvements.
Group net income after minority interests increased accordingly to
EUR 449 (277) million with a return on equity of 15.3% (11.2%)



Comparison of actual business performance
with the 2024 forecast

Annual Report 2024

RETAIL INTERNATIONAL DIVISION BY REGION AT A GLANCE

Talanx Group

EUR million 2024 2023 +/—
MANAGEMENT METRICS FOR THE RETAIL INTERNATIONAL DIVISION Insurance revenue 9,281 7,099 30.7%
Forecast for of which Europe 4,812 4,353 10.5%
2024 from the of which Latin America 4,469 2,746 62.7%
2023 Annual
% 2024 Report  Insurance service result 778 426 82.7%
Growth of insurance revenue of which Europe 439 263 67.2%
(adjusted for currency effects)* 39.9 na. ) ) }
of which Latin America 339 163 107.7%
Combined ratio (net/gross, Property/Casualt
Insuralnce Om)ll) (net/gross, Property/Casualty 925 <95  Net insurance financial and
: investment result
Return on equity 15.3 >8.5  before currency effects 448 368 21.9%
of which Europe 297 270 10.0%
* In the forecast from the 2023 annual report, growth of insurance revenue was forecast
separately for property/casualty insurance with “low double-digit growth” and for life of which Latin America 155 102 50.8%
insurance with “mid single-digit growth”.
Operating profit/loss (EBIT) 836 507 64.7%
of which Europe 592 408 45.3%
The Retail International Division recorded a 39.9% increase in insur- - ; )
of which Latin America 275 142 92.9%

ance revenue (adjusted for currency effects) in the 2024 financial
year. In the guidance from the 2023 annual report, growth in insur-
ance revenue was only forecast separately for property/casualty (“low
double-digit growth”) and life insurance (“mid single-digit growth”).
The combined ratio (net/gross) for international property/casualty
insurance was also significantly better than forecast at 92.5%. At
15.3%, the return on equity significantly exceeded the most recent
guidance of more than 10% for 2024.

Overview of key figures

RETAIL INTERNATIONAL DIVISION BY LINE OF BUSINESS AT A GLANCE

EUR million 2024 2023 +/—

Insurance revenue 9,281 7,099 30.7%
Property/Casualty 8,510 6,516 30.6%
Life 771 583 32.2%

Insurance service result 778 426 82.7%
Property/Casualty 642 328 95.7%
Life 136 98 39.3%

Net insurance financial and

investment result

before currency effects 448 368 21.9%
Property/Casualty 419 351 19.6%

Life 32 21 52.4%
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Retail Germany

The two segments Retail Germany — Property/Casualty and Retail
Germany — Life were combined into a single Retail Germany segment
for the purpose of standardised control based on the resolution of
the Board of Management dated 7 October 2024.

Insurance revenue continues to rise
Improvement in insurance service result, in particular due to
lower large loss burden

m  Stable EBIT slightly above prior-year level

KEY FIGURES FOR THE RETAIL GERMANY DIVISION

EUR million 2024 2023 +/—-
Insurance revenue 3,619 3,558 +1.7%
Insurance service result 402 360 +11.6%
Net insurance financial and
investment result
before currency effects -5 120 -104.2%
of which investment result 2,861 2,279 +25.6%
of which net insurance
financial result
before currency effects —2,867 —2,158 —-32.8%
Operating profit/loss (EBIT) 262 259 +0.9%

MANAGEMENT METRICS FOR THE RETAIL GERMANY DIVISION

Combined management report

Insurance service result
In the reporting period, the insurance service result increased
compared to the prior-year period to EUR 402 (360) million.

This was primarily due to fewer claims resulting from frequency loss-
esin motor insurance as well as large losses and natural catastrophes.
In life insurance, too, an increase in pension scheme insurance
contributed to the strong result.

In property/casualty insurance, the combined ratio (net) improved
by 1.0 percentage points from 97.5% to 96.6%.

Net insurance financial and investment result

(before currency effects)

The net insurance financial and investment result decreased to
EUR -5 (120) million due to higher investment expenses.

Operating profit

Despite a decline in the net insurance financial and investment result
and an improved currency and other result, operating profit (EBIT)
remained at the previous year’s level.

Comparison of actual business performance
with the 2024 forecast

MANAGEMENT METRICS FOR THE RETAIL GERMANY DIVISION

Forecast for

2024 from the
2023 Annual
% 2024 2023 - % 2024 Report
Growth of insurance revenue 1.7 4.3 —2.6ppts  Growth of insurance revenue® 1.7 stable
New business value (net, Life New business value (net, Life Insurance only) 316 >300
Insurance only) in EUR million 316 338 —6.8%
- - Combined ratio (net/gross, Property/Casualty
Combined ratio (net/gross, Insurance only) 96.6 <98
Property/Casualty Insurance only) 96.6 97.5 —1.0ppts
Return on equity 10.8 >10
Return on equity 10.8 11.0 —0.2ppts

Insurance revenue

In the Retail Germany segment, insurance revenue increased by 1.7%
to EUR 3,619 (3,558) million. In this context, increases were achieved
in both life insurance and property/casualty insurance. The increase
particularly relates to the corporate customers/liberal professions
and motor lines of business, as well as pension products in life
insurance.

* In the forecast from the 2023 annual report, the growth of insurance revenue was forecast
to be ,stable” separately for property/casualty and life insurance.

The positive trend in insurance revenue in both the property/casualty
and life insurance business slightly exceeded our expectations.

The line-specific KPI of the combined ratio (net/gross) remained
below the forecast level of 96.6%, due in part to a lower large loss
burden from frequency losses in motor and from large losses and
natural catastrophes.

Thanks to stable Group net income of EUR 163 (161) million, the Divi-
sion exceeded the forecast return on equity.



Overview of key figures

RETAIL GERMANY DIVISION BY LINE OF BUSINESS AT A GLANCE

EUR million 2024 2,023 +/-

Insurance revenue 3,619 3,558 1.7%
Property/Casualty 1,799 1,764 2.0%
Life 1,819 1,793 1.4%

Insurance service result 402 360 11.6%
Property/Casualty 62 43 41.7%
Life 340 317 7.4%

Net insurance financial and

investment result before currency

effects -5 120 -104.2%
Property/Casualty 75 77 —3.0%
Life -78 43 —282.1%
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Reinsurance
Property/Casualty Reinsurance

Insurance revenue up 11.1% adjusted for currency effects
Contractual service margin (CSM) from new business totalled
EUR 2.7 billion

= Trend towards rate increases in treaty renewal rounds continued
in 2024

= Large loss expenditure within expected budget despite high loss
claims frequency
Combined ratio (net/net) of 86.6%
Operating profit rose to EUR 2,413 million

KEY FIGURES FOR THE REINSURANCE DIVISION — PROPERTY/CASUALTY
REINSURANCE SEGMENT

EUR million 2024 2023 +/—
Insurance revenue 18,665 16,824 +10.9%
Insurance service result 2,136 848 +151.7%

Net insurance financial and
investment result
before currency effects 697 483 +44.3%

of which investment result 1,642 1,205 +36.2%

of which netinsurance
financial result
before currency effects —945 ~722 -30.8%

Operating profit/loss (EBIT) 2,413 1,127 +114.2%

MANAGEMENT METRICS FOR THE
PROPERTY/CASUALTY REINSURANCE SEGMENT

% 2024 2023 +/-

Combined ratio (net/net) 86.6 94.0 —7.5ppts

Business performance

In the 2024 financial year, the global markets for property and
casualty reinsurance were characterised by a large number of weath-
er-related natural catastrophes that resulted in losses for the entire
industry.

In the treaty renewals during the year, prices and terms improved in
some areas and stabilised at a high level in others. At the same time,
demand for high-quality reinsurance cover began to rise. In summa-
ry, we were satisfied with the renewals. We traditionally report price
changes on a risk-adjusted basis, i.e. inflation rates and model adjust-
ments are already factored into the price developments we report.

In the nat cat business, we continued to pursue a profit-oriented un-
derwriting policy in what remained an attractive market environ-
ment.

Insurance revenue

Thanks to an underwriting approach that focuses on quality, the con-
tractual service margin (CSM) from new business rose significantly
by 15.4% to EUR 2,733 (2,368) million. The net loss component from
new business totalled EUR 42 (40) million.
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Insurance revenue (gross) in the Property/Casualty Reinsurance
segment increased by 10.9% to EUR 18.7 (16.8) billion. At constant ex-
change rates, growth would have amounted to 11.1%

The 2024 financial year was characterised by a high frequency of
medium-scale catastrophe losses. Net losses from large losses to-
talled EUR 1,629 (1,621) million in the financial year. This puts them
within the expected budget for 2024 of EUR 1,825 million. We classify
large losses as events for which we expect to pay out over EUR 10 mil-
lion in gross claims and claims expenses.

Insurance service result

The largest net single losses for Hannover Re were Hurricane Milton
at EUR 230 million, followed by the flooding caused by heavy rainfall
in parts of Central and Eastern Europe at EUR 194 million. Damage
caused by flooding following heavy rainfall in Dubai and other parts
of the United Arab Emirates cost EUR 138 million, while unrest in the
French overseas territory of New Caledonia cost EUR 117 million. The
net loss from Hurricane Helene amounted to EUR 116 million. Claims
payments relating to the collapsed bridge in Baltimore totalled
EUR 103 million. In addition, we have significantly increased our pro-
visions forlosses related to Russia’s war of aggression against Ukraine.

The insurance service result (net) rose significantly to EUR 2,136 (848)
million. The combined ratio improved from 94.0% to 86.6% for two
main reasons: firstly, the profitability of the business continued to
improve and, secondly, the loss reserves were built up to an unusually
high level in the prior-year period, which then normalised in the
financial year. The insurance financial result, adjusted for currency
effects, amounted to EUR =945 (—722) million.

Net insurance financial and investment result

(before currency effects)

Investment income in the Property/Casualty Reinsurance segment
totalled EUR 1,642 (1,205) million. This increase was mainly influ-
enced by the rise in ordinary investment income. In light of the rise
in interest rates, income from fixed-interest securities increased
again. In addition, income from the portfolio of inflation-linked
bonds and alternative investments contributed to the result.

Operating profit and net investment income

Operating profit (EBIT) rose to EUR 2,413 (1,127) million due to the
significant improvement in the insurance service result and higher
investment income.

Comparison of actual business performance with the
2024 forecast

MANAGEMENT METRICS FOR THE
PROPERTY/CASUALTY REINSURANCE SEGMENT

Forecast for

2024 from the

2023 Annual

% 2024 Report
Combined ratio (net/net) 86.6 <89

Combined management report

The combined ratio in the Property/Casualty Reinsurance segment
was 86.6%, which was below the targeted forecast of less than 89%.

Life/Health Reinsurance

= [nsurance revenue (gross) adjusted for currency effects rose by
0.6% to EUR 7,715 million

= Contractual service margin (CSM) from new business totalled
EUR 317 million

= Net contractual service margin (CSM) grew by 9.5% to
EUR 6.5 billion

m  Continued high customer demand for longevity cover and
financial solutions

= Operating profit rose by 7.2% to EUR 926 million

KEY FIGURES FOR THE REINSURANCE DIVISION —
LIFE/HEALTH REINSURANCE SEGMENT

EUR million 2024 2023 +/—
Insurance revenue 7,715 7,633 +1.1%
Insurance service result 883 810 +9.0%
Net insurance financial and
investment result
before currency effects 226 258 -12.4%
of which investment result 396 416 —4.8%
of which net insurance
financial result
before currency effects -170 —-158 ~7.7%
Operating profit/loss (EBIT) 926 864 +7.2%

MANAGEMENT METRICS FOR THE LIFE/HEALTH REINSURANCE SEGMENT

EUR million 2024 2023 +/-

Insurance service result 883 810 +9.0%

Business performance

All areas of Life/Health Reinsurance enjoyed consistently high cus-
tomer demand in 2024. Our business was again shaped by the trend
of stiff competition on global life/health reinsurance markets in the
reporting period.

The contractual service margin (CSM) from new business fell to
EUR 317 (359) million. The net loss component (LC) from new busi-
ness was EUR 6 (14) million. In addition, policy renewals and changes
to existing business increased the net contractual service margin
(CSM) to EUR 6,517 (5,950) million.

Insurance revenue

Insurance revenue in the Life/Health Reinsurance segment came to
EUR 7.7 (7.6) billion; adjusted for currency effects, reinsurance reve-
nue would have grown by 0.6%.

Insurance service result

The insurance service result improved by 9.0% to EUR 883 (810) mil-
lion, thereby surpassing our target for the Life/Health Reinsurance
segment of more than EUR 850 million.



Net insurance financial and investment result

(before currency effects)

The insurance financial result (net) before currency effects, which
reflects the reversal of discounting recognised in prior years, fell to
EUR -170 (-158) million.

Net investment income in the Life/Health Reinsurance segment
decreased by 4.8% to EUR 396 (416) million.

Operating profit
Operating profit (EBIT) rose by 7.2% to EUR 926 (864) million.

Comparison of actual business performance
with the 2024 forecast

MANAGEMENT METRICS FOR THE LIFE/HEALTH REINSURANCE SEGMENT

Forecast for

2024 from the

2023 Annual

EUR million 2024 Report
Insurance service result 883 >850

At EUR 883 million, the insurance service result in the reporting
period was well above the forecast range.

Reinsurance Division as a whole

MANAGEMENT METRICS FOR THE REINSURANCE DIVISION AS A WHOLE

% 2024 2023 +/—
Growth of insurance revenue

(adjusted for currency effects) 7.8 4.9 +2.9 ppts
Return on equity 217 194 +2.3 ppts

Insurance revenue (adjusted for currency effects) grew by 7.8%.
Return on equity rose by 2.3 percentage points to 21.7% (19.4%).

Comparison of actual business performance
with the 2024 forecast

MANAGEMENT METRICS FOR THE REINSURANCE DIVISION AS A WHOLE

Forecast for

2024 from the

2023 Annual

% 2024 Report
Growth of insurance revenue

(adjusted for currency effects) 7.8 >5

Return on equity 217 ~19

At 7.8%, growth in insurance revenue in the Reinsurance Division was
above the forecast for 2024. The return on equity was 21.7%, which
was also well above the forecast.
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Group Operations

= [nsurance revenue from intragroup acquisitions grew to
EUR 1,123 (965) million
Insurance service result improved to EUR 32 (27) million
Investments for own risk in the Group up 6.6% to
EUR 144.3 billion

The Group’s reinsurance specialists

Insurance revenue from intragroup takeovers in the Group Opera-
tions segment amounted to EUR 1,123 (965) million in 2024 and
resulted from reinsurance cessions in the Corporate & Specialty,
Retail International and Retail Germany Divisions. The insurance ser-
vice result in the Group Operations segment improved to EUR 32 (27)
million. In the 2024 financial year, the segment’s share of large losses
was EUR 52 million, which was within the segment’s share of the large
loss budget of EUR 70 million. The largest single losses were the
flooding in Eastern Europe, costing EUR 16 million, and the flood in
Brazil, costing EUR 11 million.

The Group’s investment specialists

In cooperation with its subsidiary Ampega Investment GmbH,
Ampega Asset Management GmbH is chiefly responsible for han-
dling the management and administration of the Group companies’
investments and provides related services such as investment
accounting and reporting. The Group’s investments for own risk in-
creased to EUR 144.3 (135.4) billion compared to the previous year,
with all divisions seeing an upturn. The Ampega companies account-
ed for a total of EUR 73 (57) million of the segment’s operating profit
in the 2024 financial year.

As an investment company, Ampega Investment GmbH manages re-
tail and special funds and provides financial portfolio management
services for institutional clients. It focuses on portfolio management
and investment administration. The total value of assets managed by
Ampega Investment GmbH rose by 11.8% to EUR 52.6 (47.1) billion
compared to the figure at the beginning of the year. At EUR 11.6 (13.1)
billion, slightly less than one quarter of the total portfolio value is
managed on behalf of Group companies using special funds and
direct investment mandates. Of the remainder, EUR 29.9 (24.0) bil-
lion was attributable to institutional third-party clients and EUR 11.2
(10.0) billion to the retail business. The latter is offered not only
through the Group's own distribution channels and products such as
unit-linked life insurance, but also via external asset managers and
banks.

Operating profit

Operating profit in the Group Operations segment decreased to
EUR -169 (26) million in the 2024 financial year and includes expens-
es for payments under indemnification declarations to life insurance
companies in the Group in connection with expenses from contested
additional tax assessments in connection with investment risks.
Group net income attributable to shareholders of Talanx AG for this
segment amounted to EUR —318 (-87) million after taxes and financ-
ing costs in the reporting period.
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Assets, liabilities and financial position
Assets and liabilities

= Total assets up EUR 11.9 billion to EUR 180.4 billion
® Investments account for 88% of total assets

Combined management report

ASSET STRUCTURE

EUR million 2024 20231
Intangible assets 2,285 1% 2,393 1%
Insurance contracts assets 1,618 1% 1,049 1%
Reinsurance contracts assets 7,721 4% 7,074 4%
Investments for own risk 144,302 80% 135,390 80%
Investments for the benefit of life insurance policyholders who bear the investment risk 14,138 8% 12,478 7%
Cash at banks, cheques and cash-in-hand 5,167 3% 5,102 3%
Deferred tax assets 1,206 1% 1,358 1%
Other assets 3,924 2% 3,660 2%
Non-current assets and assets of disposal groups classified as held for sale 57 0% 20 0%
Total assets 180,419 100% 168,525 100%

* Adjusted in accordance with IAS 8, see also the “Accounting policies” section of the Notes.
Significant changes in the asset structure

The EUR 11.9 billion increase in our total assets to EUR 180.4 billion is
primarily attributable to the increase in investments for own risk (up
EUR +8.9 billion) and the increase in investments for the account and
risk of life insurance policyholders (up EUR +1.7 billion).

Intangible assets of EUR 2,285 (2,393) million include capitalised
goodwill of EUR 1,592 (1,611) million and other intangible assets of
EUR 693 (782) million.

“Liabilities from insurance contracts issued” rose in line with the in-
crease in “Investments for the account and risk of life insurance poli-
cyholders”, which include investments for unit-linked insurance
products. In the case of these life insurance products, for which the
policyholders themselves bear the investment risk, the technical lia-
bilities reflect the fair values of the corresponding investments.

In the item Non-current assets and assets of disposal groups classi-
fied as held for sale, we recognised EUR 57 million as at the end of the
reporting period, of which EUR 14 million is attributable to the
planned disposal of an insurance portfolio in the Corporate &
Specialty segment and EUR 42 million to the planned disposal of real
estate holdings in the Reinsurance and Retail Germany Divisions.

Asset management and objectives

Geopolitical tensions in the Middle East, political uncertainty due to
new elections and restrictive monetary policies characterised the
global economic situation in 2024. At +3.2%, global economic growth
was slightly below the average since 2000.

The prospects of interest rate cuts, a stable economic environment in
the United States and positive earnings trends drove the stock mar-
kets to new records in 2024. The S&P 500 closed the year up 23.3% (in
USD), marking the second consecutive year of gains in excess of 20%.
The US stock market particularly benefited from the strong perfor-
mance of major technology companies. The yield on 10-year German
government bonds rose from 2.02% to 2.37% overall over the course
of 2024. At the end of the year, the euro was trading at USD 1.04,
having risen to USD 1.12 in August.



Changes in investments

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO
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Our investment activities are bounded by the Group’s internal risk
model and the individual companies’ risk budgets. In accordance
with our asset/liability management guidelines and the individual
companies’ risk-bearing capacity, we continued to optimise and im-

EUR million prove the portfolios as part of individual company strategies.
160,000 158,441 The equity allocation ratio after derivatives (equity ratio of listed
147,868 Investments for the s o o : :
I 14138 account and risk of securities) was 0.8% (1.2%) at the end of the reporting period.
140,000 12,478 life insurance policy-
holders
INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO
120,000
%
100,000
8/7 a/s
Funds classified as at fair value through Investment property
80,000 profit or loss
Investments for
60,000 own risk 1/1 ‘ o?h/eGr
Equity instruments ‘
135,390 144,302 \\
40,000
20,000
83/81
Debt instruments
2023 2024

The portfolio of investments for own risk rose significantly by around
6.6% to EUR 144.3 (135.4) billion at the end of 2024. Above all, this was
thanks to the positive effects of inflows from operating activities, fall-
ing interest rates for euro investments at the medium and longer end
and lower risk premiums on corporate bonds. Furthermore, the ac-
quisition of the other Liberty Mutual companies in Chile, Colombia
and Ecuador led to an increase in investments (EUR +523 million).

Following the dissolution of Joint HR MR Private Equity GmbH dur-
ing the financial year and the resulting disposal of the joint venture
(EUR —2.0 billion), the fund investments that had been contributed to
the joint venture in the past were transferred back to the units to be
consolidated, with the result that the portfolio of investment funds
recognised at fair value through profit or loss (primarily private equi-
ty investments) therefore increased significantly by EUR 3.1 billion to
EUR 12.0 (8.9) billion.

Investments for the account and risk of life insurance policyholders
rose to EUR 14.1 (12.5) billion.

Debt instruments were again the most significant asset class in the
past financial year. Reinvestments were mostly made in this asset
class, taking the existing investment structure into account. The as-
set class contributed EUR 4.1 (3.5) billion to ordinary earnings, with
the figure being almost totally reinvested in the reporting period.

Abroad-based system designed to limit accumulation risk resulted in
a balanced mix of investments.

2024/2023
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BREAKDOWN OF ASSETS FOR OWN RISK BY ASSET CLASS

Combined management report

EUR million 2024 2,023
Investment property 6,166 4% 6,230 5%
Shares in affiliated companies and participating interests 683 0% 1,105 1%
Shares in associates and joint ventures 386 0% 2,249 2%
Financial instruments measured at cost 982 1% 954 1%
Financial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Debt instruments 117,007 81% 107,687 80%
Equity instruments 1,167 1% 1,522 1%
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Debt instruments 1,328 1% 1,429 1%
Equity instruments 265 0% 322 0%
Derivatives (assets) 364 0% 415 0%
Funds classified as at fair value through profit or loss 12,033 8% 8,906 7%
Short-term investments 1,413 1% 2,233 2%
Investments related to investment contracts 2,174 2% 1971 1%
infrastructure investments (other investments) 334 0% 366 0%
Investments for own risk 144,302 100% 135,390 100%
Derivatives (liabilities) —245 10% —276 12%
Liabilities related to investment contracts -2,188 90% -1,980 88%
Liabilities related to Investments -2,434 100% -2,256 100%

Debt instruments

The portfolio of debt instruments rose by EUR 9.2 billion in 2024 to
EUR 119.3 (110.1) billion as at the end of the reporting period. At 83%
(81%) of total investments, this asset class represents the most signif-
icant share of our investments for own risk by volume. Debt instru-
ments are divided into the “Financial instruments at amortised cost”,
“Financial instruments measured at fair value through other com-
prehensive income” and “Financial instruments measured at fair
value through profit or loss” categories. In accordance with the busi-
ness model, the Group holds only a small portfolio of financial in-
struments measured at amortised cost.

Financial instruments measured at fair value through OCI accounted
for 98% (98%) of the total portfolio of debt instruments and increased
by EUR 9.3 billion to EUR 117.0 (107.7) billion. Government bonds,
corporate bonds, German covered bonds (Pfandbriefe) and other
similar bonds accounted for the majority of these investments. Valu-
ation reserves recognised in other comprehensive income - i.e. net
unrealised gains and losses — amounted to EUR —10.3 (-10.9) billion.
Although the European Central Bank and the US Federal Reserve
began to ease monetary policy last year in response to inflationary
developments, interest rates at the end of the reporting period were
still somewhat higher than at the beginning.

Debt instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss
primarily consisted of corporate bonds. Total holdings in debt instru-
ments in this category amounted to EUR 1.3 (1.4) billion as at the end
of the year, or 1% (1%) of total holdings in the debt instrument asset
class.

Investments made in debt instruments continued to focus on highly
rated government bonds or securities from issuers with a similar
credit quality as at the reporting date. Holdings of AAA-rated debt
instruments amounted to EUR 38.8 (34.5) billion as at the reporting
date.
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The Talanx Group pursues a comparatively conservative investment
policy. As a result, 77% (76%) of debt instruments have at least an A
rating. The Group has only a small portfolio of investments in gov-
ernment bonds from countries with a rating worse than A—. On a fair
value basis, this portfolio amounts to EUR 6.1 (5.7) billion and there-
fore corresponds to a share of 4.2% (4.2%) of investments for own risk.

Equities and equity funds

As part of diversification, the Talanx Group also invests in equities. As
at the end of the reporting period, the value of the equities portfolio
declined to roughly EUR 1.1 (1.6) billion. The liquidity from this item
was invested in debt instruments in line with our (conservative) in-
vestment policy.

The share of equities measured at fair value through OCI with a value
of EUR 1,040 (1,519) billion saw a EUR 16 million decrease in net valu-
ation reserves to EUR 172 (188) million. The only slight decline was
initially due to a significant reduction in the size of the equity portfo-
lio in the reporting period. The recovery of the stock markets towards
the end of the year led to a significant increase in the market value of
the remaining portfolio, which partially offset the decline in reserves
caused by the reduction in the portfolio. These valuation reserves are
recognised in equity and cannot be subsequently recycled to the
statement of income. In the reporting period, unrealised gains of
EUR 109 million (unrealised losses: EUR —11 million) were attributable
to disposals of capital investments in this category.
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Real estate including shares in real estate funds

The investment property portfolio totalled EUR 6.2 (6.2) billion as at
the reporting date. An additional EUR 1.8 (1.8) billion is held in real
estate funds, which are reported under financial instruments as
“Funds classified as at fair value through profit or loss”.

Depreciation of EUR 66 (62) million was recognised on investment
property in the reporting period. We have recognised impairment
losses of EUR 44 (79) million on selected properties. The net changes
in the fair values of investment property measured at fair value
amounted to EUR -198 (-255) million in the reporting period.

The 2024 financial year started with a great deal of optimism, which
was evident at the beginning of the year from a noticeable upturn in
demand. This positive situation deteriorated slightly, which is why
the originally forecast transaction volume of EUR 40 billion within
Germany was ultimately short by approximately 12.5%, falling to EUR
35 billion by the end of the year. Nevertheless, this figure was slightly
higher than in 2023 reporting period. The continued low level of
liquidity in the market presented challenges for many stakeholders.
Notwithstanding the above, the first signs of a recovery in the invest-
ment market are emerging, with a stabilised purchase price situation,
a sufficient risk premium and a willingness to take on debt. This is
leading to stabilised returns overall. Demand remains focused on the
logistics, residential and alternative use asset classes, while large
office and portfolio transactions in the core area are lacking. Due to
the disparity between supply and demand, the residential asset class
attracted the most investment in 2024. The trend towards high-
quality office space in prime locations is continuing, as evidenced, in
particular, by rising prime rents. In the retail property market, struc-
tural problems were overcome and the transaction volume rose
slightly. Demand for logistics properties remained strong despite a
slowdown in demand for rental space due to the overall economic
situation in Germany.

Transaction activity in the major global property markets slowly
picked up again (+37% year on year as of Q4 2024), although it re-
mains well below the peak levels of 2022. For this reason, the Group
again had to write down the value of some assets in its indirect real
estate portfolio in the past financial year. This portfolio consists of
over 100 property funds. It is geared towards the long term and is
aimed at future capital income and capital appreciation. It is globally
diversified with a focus on the regions of Europe, North America and
Asia, of which Europe accounts for the majority of the allocation. Re-
gional and sectoral diversification is intended to achieve a defensive
and risk-moderate orientation of the portfolio while at the same time
making a positive contribution to performance.
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Infrastructure investments

Infrastructure projects are a key component of our investments over-
all. The Talanx Group currently has around EUR 1.8 (1.6) billion invest-
ed in direct and indirect infrastructure projects.

Infrastructure investments have proven to be extremely resilient to
market movements caused by interest rate changes, energy price dis-
tortions and inflation and were able to continue this positive trend in
the first half of 2024. This is primarily due to the fact that these assets
address the basic needs of the population and therefore exhibit a less
elastic demand. In addition, many projects generate secure income
through regulatory measures, e.g. feed-in tariffs for renewable ener-
gies. This contributes to stable performance and reduces the risk for
investors.

At the same time, infrastructure projects fit in quite well with the
long-term investment horizon of an insurance company. In this area,
we invest directly in selected projects via equity and debt investments.
Our expertise enables us to generate illiquidity, complexity and dura-
tion premiums while at the same time increasing the diversification
of our investments. These carefully selected projects offer attractive
returns with an acceptable level of risk. Our diversified infrastructure
portfolio currently includes equity and debt financing and invest-
ments in wind and solar parks, power grids, utilities, transport pro-
jects, data centres, geothermal energy, critical communications infra-
structure, fibre-optic providers and public-private partnership (PPP)
projects in Germany and other European countries. Infrastructure
projects are a key component of our investments overall.

In addition to direct infrastructure projects totalling EUR 0.3 (0.4) bil-
lion, we also invest in infrastructure through funds. The Talanx
Group’s indirect infrastructure portfolio amounts to EUR 1.4 (1.2) bil-
lion and is geared toward long-term investment income and capital
appreciation. It consists of a double-digit number of globally diversi-
fied infrastructure funds, with a focus on Europe, North America and
Asia. The funds invest in various asset types in the infrastructure sec-
tor, with sustainable energies playing a special role. Through diversi-
fication at regional and sectoral level, the portfolio aims for a defen-
sive and risk-moderate orientation with a positive contribution to
performance.

The indirect infrastructure portfolio also continued to prove resilient
and recorded an increase in market value in 2024.

Combined management report

Other alternative investments

The Talanx Group has a broadly diversified private equity portfolio
with a long-term focus. The portfolio is characterised by exclusive
market access and has been carefully built up and continuously re-
fined over decades. It has investments across almost all sectors, with
afocus on technology, consumer goods, industry and healthcare. The
investments are broadly diversified, with a majority in buyout funds.
The Talanx Group invests worldwide, focussing on the United States,
Europe and Asia. Thanks to this investment strategy, the private equi-
ty portfolio generates a steady stream of investment income for the
Group. After the private equity portfolio experienced a slight consol-
idation in the previous year, with continued moderate but still de-
clining returns, returns increased again in the 2024 financial year and
are roughly in line with the 2022 level. The exit environment has im-
proved significantly over the last few quarters since the fourth quar-
ter of 2023. The Asian market remains an exception in this regard,
where exit activities continue to prove difficult. By contrast, the lower
interest rate level has a positive effect on the expected total return on
new investments. Further performance will depend on how interest
rates and the prices of publicly traded companies develop. In the
medium to long term, we see further potential for value appreciation
in the private equity portfolio.

Investment result

CHANGES IN NET INVESTMENT INCOME

EUR million 2024 2,023
Ordinary investment income 5,513 4,788
of which current income from interest 4,074 3,531
of which attributable to profit/loss from
shares in associates and joint ventures for
using the equity method 47 32
of which current income from
investment funds 452 328
of which income from real estate 458 429
of which income from investment contracts 311 240
Realised net gains on disposal of investments -340 —573
Gain/losses from fair value changes -117 -166
Expenses from investment contracts —311 —244
Depreciation on and impairment losses/reversals
of impairment losses on investments -141 -192
Other investment expenses —724 —378
Net investment income for own risk 3,880 3,235
Net investment income for the account and risk
of life insurance policyholders 1,893 1,414
Net investment income 5,772 4,649

The The net investment income for own risk amounted to
EUR 3,880 (3,235) million in the past financial year and was thus high-
er than the figure in the prior year. The annualised return on invest-
ment for investments for own risk increased to 2.8% (2.5%).



Current income from interest increased sharply by EUR 543 million
on the prior year to EUR 4,074 (3,531) million. As well as real portfolio
growth for our debt instruments, this also reflects higher income
from our short-term investments. The lower amortisation result
from inflation- linked bonds, which was EUR 212 (245) million in the
reporting period, was more than compensated by higher interest in-
come. Investment fund income also increased by EUR 125 million
year on year to EUR 452 (328) million. This was largely due to the
dissolution of Joint HR MR Private Equity GmbH and the associated
retransfer of fund units in consolidated companies.

Total realised net gains on the disposal of investments were higher
than the prior-year figure, at EUR —340 (-573) million. This was due to
active portfolio shifts in all segments, in part to profit from higher
interest rates in the medium term.

The result of changes in fair value was negative at EUR —117 (-166)
million at the end of the reporting period, but improved by EUR 49
million compared to the previous year. Particularly in comparison to
the previous year, positive changes in market values were seen in our
debt instruments and infrastructure investments held via funds.
Similarly, the negative changes in the market value of directly held
properties were less pronounced than in the previous year. However,
offsetting effects arose from changes in the fair value of our deriva-
tive financial instruments and of our equity instruments held direct-
ly in the portfolio and recognised at fair value through profit or loss.

Total depreciation and amortisation in the reporting period came to
EUR 141 (192) million. Of this total, EUR 98 (94) million was attributa-
ble to straight-line depreciation, of which EUR 66 (62) million was on
directly held real estate and EUR 32 (32) million on infrastructure
investments.

In addition to this straight-line depreciation, we recognised impair-
ment losses of EUR 44 (79) million on real estate (see above).

The addition to provisions for expected credit losses (ECLs) to be
recognised in accordance with IFRS 9 declined by EUR 21 million to
EUR -3 (-24) million through profit or loss.

Other investment expenses increased by EUR 346 million to EUR 724
(—378) million. This increase was primarily due to expenses of EUR 326
million for the payment of challenged additional tax assessments in
connection with investment-related risks.

Net income from investments for the account and risk of life insur-
ance policyholders, which is attributable exclusively to policyhold-
ers, improved by EUR 478 million to EUR 1,893 (1,414) million thanks
to positive capital market developments. The offsetting item can be
found under net insurance financial result with the inverse sign.
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Net insurance financial and investment result before
currency effects

As well as the EUR 645 million increase in net investment income
from investments for own risk to EUR 3,880 (3,235) million, income
from unit-linked insurance contracts attributable to policyholders
also improved by EUR 478 million. Total net investment income thus
rose to EUR 5,772 (+4,649) million. By contrast, the net insurance
financial result before currency effects decreased by EUR 975 million
to EUR —4,494 (-3,519) million. This decline was due to the increased
expense of EUR 308 million from the interest accrued on insurance
obligations (EUR —1,597 million; 31 December 2023: EUR —1,289 mil-
lion) and the EUR 666 million higher policyholder participation in
the positive investment income, including the result from unit-
linked life insurance (EUR -2,897 million; 31 December 2023:
EUR -2,230 million).

Overall, the net insurance financial and investment result before cur-
rency effects thus increased by EUR 148 million to EUR 1,278 (1,130)
million.

Further information can be found in Note 28 Net investment income
and Note 27 Net insurance financial result in the Notes to the consol-
idated statement of income.
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NET INSURANCE FINANCIAL AND INVESTMENT RESULT BEFORE CURRENCY EFFECTS

EUR million

CORPORATE & RETAIL PROPERTY/CASUALTY LIFE/HEALTH
SPECIALTY INTERNATIONAL RETAIL GERMANY?2 REINSURANCE REINSURANCE GROUP OPERATIONS* CONSOLIDATION
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* Itis primarily the investment expenses of Ampega companies that are recognised in the Group Operations segment.
* The two segments Retail Germany — Property/Casualty and Retail Germany — Life were combined into a single Retail Germany segment for the purpose of
standardised control based on the resolution of the Board of Management dated 7 October 2024.

Currency effects Our investments for own risk comprise the following currencies:

Given the international nature of the insurers in the Group, whichis ~ INVESTMENTS
a result of our business model, there are currency-related interde-

. . R . . s 9
pendencies between our assets, liabilities and financial position. *

) ) ) . 3/3 9/10
As a general rule, our international insurers receive payments and  pin Others

pay claims in their respective national currencies. This means that

assets are also held in foreign currencies (currency matching). Please 3/3

see the disclosures in our risk report for further details. For the pur- ~ GBP

poses of the consolidated financial statements, the exchange rates

for key currencies are presented in the “Summary of significant ac- Sgézo

counting policies — Exchange differences on translating foreign oper-

ations” section of the Notes. 56/60
3/3 EUR
AUD { /

With a view to matching currencies, investments in US dollars ac-
count for the bulk of the foreign currency portfolio within the Talanx
Group at 26% (20%), and this percentage is growing. In addition, larg-
er positions are held in British pound sterling, Polish zloty and Aus-
tralian dollars, which together account for 9% (9%) of all investments.
The total share of investments for own risk in foreign currencies was
44% (40%) as at the end of the reporting period.

2024/2023



Financial position

Capital structure analysis

= Equity was up by EUR +1.7 billion on the prior year at
EUR 18.5 billion

= [nsurance contract liabilities rose by EUR 9.1 billion to
EUR 139.3 billion

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
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EUR million 2024 20231
Equity 18,495 10% 16,793 10%
Subordinated liabilities 4,487 2% 5,262 3%
Insurance contract liabilities 139,315 77% 130,264 77%
Reinsurance contract liabilities 714 0% 737 0%
Other provisions 4,354 2% 3,573 2%
Liabilities 11,017 6% 9,600 6%
Deferred tax liabilities 2,014 1% 2,271 1%
Liabilities included in disposal groups classified as held for sale 23 0% 25 0%
Total equity and liabilities 180,419 100% 168,525 100%

* Adjusted in accordance with IAS 8, see also the “Accounting policies” section of the Notes.

Significant changes in the capital structure

Overall, net technical provisions (i.e. the balance of assets and liabili-
ties from insurance/reinsurance contracts) rose by 6.4% or EUR 7.8
billion year on year to EUR 130.7 (122.9) billion. This increase related to
the liability for incurred claims (EUR +5.2 billion) and the liability for
remaining coverage (EUR +2.6 billion). The increase in the liability for
incurred claims essentially results from the Property/Casualty Rein-
surance and Corporate & Specialty segments, while the increase in
the liability for remaining coverage essentially results from the Retail
Germany and Life/Health Reinsurance segments. The technical pro-
visions shown are comfortably covered by our investments.

The Group’s contractual net service margin rose by EUR 0.7 billion to
EUR 114 (107) billion and the overall net risk adjustment by EUR 0.1
billion to EUR 5.3 (5.1) billion. A total of EUR 8.2 (7.7) billion of the con-
tractual service margin was attributable to the Reinsurance Division
and EUR 2.9 (2.6) billion to the Retail Germany Division.

Liabilities included in disposal groups classified as held for sale
amounted to EUR 23 million at the end of the reporting period, with
EUR 22 million of this amount being attributable to liabilities in an
insurance portfolio in the Corporate & Specialty segment.

Off-balance-sheet transactions

Information on contingent liabilities can be found in the “Other dis-
closures — contingent liabilities and other financial commitments”
section of the Notes.

Asset/liability management (ALM)

The structure of our technical provisions and other liabilities is at the
heart of the Group’s investment strategy. The focus here is on asset/
liability management — as far as possible, investment-market in-
duced changes in the value of our investments should match the
changes in our technical liabilities and should meet our liability-side
requirements. This keeps our exposures stable in the face of capital
market volatility.

73



74

Talanx Group ] Annual Report2024 W

In line with this, we mirror key features of our liabilities such as their
maturity, currency structure and sensitivity to inflation, by investing
where possible in assets that behave in a similar way. For further
information, please also see our disclosures in the risk report on page
198 ff.

The effective duration of the Talanx Group’s portfolio of debt instru-
ments is 6.4 (6.9) as at the end of the reporting period. Effective dura-
tion is a measure of the interest rate sensitivity of the present value
of assets/ liabilities that takes the options into account. The larger the
value, the greater the interest rate sensitivity is. Within the individual
segments, duration is managed in line with underwriting business
requirements, as described above. For example, the effective dura-
tion of the investments in the Retail Germany Division at 10.8 (11.3)
years is relatively long compared with that of the Corporate &
Specialty Division at 4.2 (4.0) years. This reflects the particular length
of the capital commitment period in the case of life insurance prod-
ucts. The insurance providers and Ampega Asset Management
GmbH liaise regularly to coordinate asset-side duration and liability-
side requirements.

We also use derivative financial instruments to manage our assets as
effectively as possible. For further information, please see Note 14 in
the Notes to the consolidated balance sheet.

Capital management process

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT PROCESS

Combined management report

ENSURE TRANSPARENCY OF

ACTUAL CAPITALISATION LEVELS

REQUIREMENTS

OPTIMISE
BN DETERMINE CAPITAL [N - 0 o
REQUIREMENTS

IMPLEMENT
Bed CAPITALISATION
MEASURES

OPTIMISE
— CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Effective, efficient capital management is a core component of the
Group’s integrated management tools for the optimisation of capital
employed. In doing so, we differentiate between the HDI Group’s reg-
ulatory perspective and the Talanx Group’s economic perspective.
We distinguish between the following capital concepts:

= Basic own funds
= Solvency capital required

The term “basic own funds” refers to the economic capital available
in a business unit. These funds represent the surplus of assets over
liabilities in the solvency balance sheet. They differ from equity un-
der the IFRSs (adjusted for intangible assets) in that they disclose un-
realised gains and losses on assets or liabilities after taxes, hybrid
capital and surplus funds. For regulatory purposes, the HDI Group
uses the concept of “eligible own funds”. In particular, these differ
from the Talanx Group’s basic own funds in that they include
HDI V.a.G/s own funds and deduct the basic own funds in excess of
the solvency capital required that are attributable to non-controlling
interests (“haircut”).

Solvency capital required is the amount of capital needed to operate
the insurance business. It is calculated for supervisory purposes
(Solvency 2) using a confidence level of 99.5% for a one-year period.
In the case of the HDI Group, the capital required for this purpose is
determined using the approved internal capital model. The Talanx
Group's solvency capital required differs from that of the HDI Group
in that it accounts for pension plans differently and excludes
HDI V.a.G. on account of the different consolidated group.

The ratio of basic own funds to solvency capital required is an indica-
tor of capital adequacy. The confidence level applied under the Talanx
Group’s risk strategy exceeds the level required by supervisory law
(confidence level of 99.5%, 200-year shock).



The target corridor without transitional measures defined for the
HDI Group’s Solvency 2 ratio for supervisory law purposes is between
150% and 200%. The Talanx Group’s minimum capital adequacy
target from an economic perspective is 200%.

Talanx’s primary capital management objective is to protect its finan-
cial strength and enhance its capital efficiency. In line with this, the
Talanx Group systematically allocates capital in accordance with risk/
return considerations and its target portfolio, above and beyond
meeting its statutory and, as a secondary consideration, rating agen-
cies’ capital requirements (Standard & Poor’s capital model require-
ments for an “AA” rating). Unneeded capital or liquidity is transferred
to the holding company wherever possible. For example, if individual
companies are significantly overcapitalised, capital management
aims to systematically reduce the free excess capital and reinvest it
more efficiently elsewhere within the Group. Our stated aim is to use
our capital as efficiently as possible while at the same time ensuring
excellent capital adequacy levels.

By optimising the Group’s capital structure, our capital management
activities safeguard our capital resources, both from a ratings stand-
point and from a solvency and economic perspective. Furthermore,
they ensure that sustainable dividends are generated for sharehold-
ers, in keeping with Talanx’s strategy. Going forward, our capital
structure must continue to let us respond to organic and external
growth opportunities at both Group and division level, and to offer
the certainty that volatility on the capital markets and in the insur-
ance business can be absorbed without undershooting our target
confidence level. Talanx’s efficient management of its capital re-
sources is a strong signal to existing and potential investors that it
uses the capital made available to it responsibly. Talanx AG monitors
its subsidiaries’ capital resources with the utmost diligence as part of
its Group-wide capital management activities.

Another core objective is the judicious substitution of equity surro-
gates such as hybrid capital for equity, which has a positive impact on
the Group’s capital structure.
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Equity
Equity ratio and return on equity
The equity ratio, defined as the ratio of total equity to total assets,

and the return on equity changed as follows:

CHANGES IN THE EQUITY RATIO

EUR million 2024 20231
Total equity 18,495 16,793

of which non-controlling interests 6,834 6,347
Total assets 180,419 168,525
Equity ratio 10.3% 10.0%

* Adjusted in accordance with IAS 8, see the “Accounting policies” section of the Notes.

RETURN ON EQUITY

EUR million 2024 2023
Group net income! 1,977 1,581
Return on equity? 17.9% 16.6%

* Net income excluding non-controlling interests.
2 Ratio of net income excluding non-controlling interests to average equity excluding
non-controlling interests.

Changes in equity
Equity rose by EUR 1,702 million — up 10% — to EUR 18,495 (16,793)
million as at the end of the reporting period.

Group equity (equity excluding non-controlling interests) rose by
EUR 1,214 million to EUR 11,661 (10,447) million at the end of the re-
porting period compared to 31 December 2023. This increase was par-
tially due to net income, EUR 1,977 (1,581) million of which is attributa-
ble to our shareholders and which was allocated in full to retained
earnings. It was offset by the EUR 607 (507) million dividend payment
to the shareholders of Talanx AG in May of the reporting period. In
addition, accumulated other comprehensive income (other reserves)
increased by EUR—-88 million to EUR-699 million in comparison to 31
December 2023. The change in other reserves essentially reflects the
positive change in unrealised gains on investments (EUR +389 mil-
lion) and the opposite effect from the change in insurance finance in-
come/expenses from insurance contracts issued (EUR —482 million).

Non-controlling interests increased by EUR 487 million (7.7%) to
EUR 6,834 million. Net income attributable to non-controlling inter-
ests in the reporting period amounted to EUR 1,307 (964) million. The
dividend payment to non-Group shareholders of EUR 530 (432) mil-
lion mainly related to the Hannover Re Group. In addition, the antic-
ipated acquisition of the shares held by Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance,
Tokyo, Japan, in Towarzystwo Ubezpieczen i Reasekuracji Warta S.A.,
Warsaw, Poland, and Towarzystwo Ubezpieczen Europa S. A, Wroctaw,
Poland, reduced the share of non-controlling interests in equity by
EUR 440 million.
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EQUITY BY DIVISION INCLUDING NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Combined management report

EQUITY AND UNRECOGNISED VALUATION RESERVES

EUR million 31.12.2024 31.12.2023  EURMbillion 2024 2,023
Division Group equity 185 16.8
Corporate & Specialty 3,021 2,664  Unrecognised valuation reserves before taxes and
; . non-controlling interests 0.8 0.9
of which non-controlling interests — —
Retail Int ti | 3,132 3,211 s s 73s . .
ctarinernationa Liquidity and financing
of which non-controlling interests 38 422
Retail Germany 1,587 1,527  Talanx AG's cash inflows are primarily derived from dividends and
of which non-controlling interests 31 65  profit and loss transfers from subsidiaries, as well as from equity and
Reinsurance 12,631 10981 debt raised on the capital market. When coordinating capital require-
- — ments for the Talanx Group and the individual divisions, one of
of which non-controlling interests 6,845 5,982 K . . , A,
Talanx AG’s core tasks is to optimise the Group’s access to liquidity
Group Operations —L767 ~1419 while minimising financing costs. Regular liquidity planning and an
of which non-controlling interests - — investment strategy aligned with liquidity requirements ensured
Consolidation ~109 169 that the Group was able to meet its payment obligations at all times.
of which non-controlling interests g1 _1o» Moreover, a number of current account arrangements provide relia-
- ble access to internal Group funds, further enhancing the financial
Total equity 18,495 16,793 o
flexibility of both Talanx AG and the Talanx Group.
Group equity 11,661 10,447
Non-controlling interests 6,834 6,347 On 2 May 2024, Talanx AG concluded an agreement with a bank syn-

The negative figure reported by the Group Operations segment re-
flects Talanx AG’s leverage. As the Group holding company, Talanx AG
is responsible for Group financing in the area of primary insurance
and for the companies in the Group Operations segment. In addition
to increasing the holding company function, acquiring the reinsur-
ance license in 2019 also expanded underwriting business, although
the volume of this is not currently enough to offset the financing ef-
fects. The associated liabilities mainly relate to two subordinated
bonds totalling EUR 1,247 (1,996) million, provisions for pensions of
EUR 827 (876) million, notes payable of EUR 2,485 (1,746) million, lia-
bilities from insurance contracts issued of EUR 1,295 (1,135) million
and provisions for taxes of EUR 152 (78) million. These liabilities are
matched on Talanx AG’s balance sheet by liquid assets, assets from
reinsurance contracts held, tax refund claims and, above all, the car-
rying amounts of its interests in its subsidiaries, which are eliminat-
ed against the proportionate equity for the latter in the consolidated
financial statements.

Changes in unrecognised valuation reserves

The unrecognised valuation reserves shown in the following table
have not been adjusted for technical liabilities. At EUR 0.6 (0.6) bil-
lion, valuation reserves are essentially attributable to investment
property measured at amortised cost. Please refer to the information
under “Notes to the consolidated balance sheet” concerning “Invest-

” o«

ment property”, “Financial instruments measured at cost”, “Fair value

hierarchy - financial instruments”, “Other assets”, “Subordinated lia-
bilities” and “Notes payable and loans”.

dicate for a revolving credit facility with a value of EUR 250 million.
The term of this agreement is five years plus the option to extend this
twice for a further year. These had not been drawn down as at the end
of the reporting period.

On 15 April 2024, Talanx AG issued a senior unsecured bond with a
value of EUR 750 million as part of a private placement. The bond’s
sole subscriber was HDI V.a.G. The issued bond is listed on the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange, matures on 23 July 2026, has a fixed
coupon of 2.5% per annum and was issued at a price of 97.798%.

On 18 September 2023, Talanx AG drew down a EUR 750 million cred-
it line in the form of a subordinated bond under the master agree-
ment concluded with HDI'V.a.G. in 2021. This credit line was repaid in
full as at the end of the reporting period. These had not been drawn
down as at the end of the reporting period.

The subordinated loan from HDI Assicurazioni S. p. A. with a nominal
value of EUR 27 million and an interest rate of 5.5% was repaid in full
during the financial year.

In addition to the funds resulting from the changes in equity de-
scribed above and borrowing, we can also use our assets to cover pro-
visions and liabilities. Various credit institutions have furnished us
with guarantees in the form of letters of credit as surety for our tech-
nical liabilities. Further information on our liquidity management
can be found in the “Liquidity risk” section of the risk report.



Debt analysis

Our subordinated bonds and other debt instruments are used to sup-
plement our equity so as to optimise our cost of capital, and help to
maintain adequate liquidity at all times. The following table provides
an overview of the amortised costs of our borrowings.

CHANGES IN DEBT

EUR million 2024 2,023
Subordinated bonds issued by Talanx AG 1,247 1,996
Subordinated bond issued by Hannover Riick SE 3,183 3,180
Subordinated loans taken out by

HDI Assicurazioni S.p. A. 45 73
Subordinated loans HDI Global SE 13 13
Notes payable issued by Talanx AG 2,485 1,746
Notes payable issued by Hannover Riick SE 748 747
Mortgage loans taken out by HR GLL Central

Europe GmbH & Co. KG 180 206
Mortgage loans taken out by Hannover Re Real

Estate Holdings, Inc. 188 206
Loans from infrastructure investments 28 54
Mortgage loans taken out by Real Estate Asia

Select Fund Limited 214 217
KOP4 GmbH & Co. KG mortgage loans 39 44
Hannover Riick SE loans — 138
E+S Riickversicherung AG loans — 31
Other — 6
Total 8,370 8,657

Further information on borrowing and changes to it can be found in
Note 17 and Note 22 of the “Notes to the consolidated balance sheet”.
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Analysis of the consolidated cash flow statement

The Group’s cash flow is largely determined by its business model,
which is typical for a primary insurance and reinsurance under-
taking. We generally receive premiums in advance for risks we have
taken on and only make payments later on in the event of a claim.
Funds are parked in interest-bearing investments until they are need-
ed so as to earn regular income. We therefore do not regard the cash
flow statement as a substitute for liquidity planning or financial
planning, and nor do we use it as a management tool.

CASH FLOW SUMMARY

EUR million 2024 2,023
Cash flows from operating activities 8,431 8,095
Cash flows from investing activities —6,794 —5,029
Cash flows from financing activities —1,584 —1,485
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 53 1,582

Cash flows from operating activities are characterised chiefly by
changes in cash flow from the insurance business and investment
income, such as interest and dividends received. The increase reflects
good operating business performance.

Cash outflow from investing activities was determined primarily by
the purchase of financial instruments and cash inflow from the sale
and maturity of financial instruments - in accordance with the com-
pany’s investment policy, with particular emphasis on matching the
currencies and maturities of technical liabilities.

Cash flows from financing activities were impacted primarily by divi-
dend payments for the last financial year, interest paid on borrow-
ings and the balance from taking up and repaying non-current liabil-
ities, primarily bonds, in the reporting period.

Cash and cash equivalents, which include cash at banks, cheques and
cash-in-hand, and which also represent the total cash flows from
operating activities, investing activities and financing activities, in-
creased by EUR 0.1 billion overall year on year to EUR 5.2 (5.1) billion.
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Group ratings

The Talanx Group and its companies again received very good ratings
from international rating agencies Standard & Poor’s (S&P) and AM
Best in the reporting year. Generally, a distinction must be made be-
tween insurer financial strength ratings and issuer credit or counter-
party credit ratings. The former primarily assess a company'’s ability
to meet obligations to policyholders, while the latter rate its general
credit quality.

Insurer Financial strength ratings

At the end of the reporting period, AM Best confirmed the Primary
Insurance Group’s financial strength rating, at A+ (“superior”). The
systematic progress that the Group has made in recent years in terms
of its increasingly diversified earnings power and risk management
culture was cited as a key factor in this regard. The outlook is still rat-
ed “stable”. AM Best has also reaffirmed the Hannover Re subgroup’s
A+ (“superior”) financial strength rating and stable outlook. The
rating agency justified the continuing very high rating on the
grounds of its healthy earnings situation and excellent capitalisation.

S&P also left the ratings of the subgroups Talanx Primary Insurance
Group and Hannover Re unchanged relative to the previous year,
along with the “stable” outlook. The financial strength rating for the
Primary Insurance Group and its core companies was confirmed at
A+, with S&P attesting to the Talanx Primary Insurance Group's par-
ticularly strong financial risk profile. S&P also confirmed Hannover
Re’s rating of AA- an extremely strong assessment compared to
competitors. The S&P financial strength ratings for the individual
subsidiaries also remained stable in the reporting period, and were
therefore unchanged. After the end of the reporting period, S&P up-
graded the financial strength rating of the Talanx Primary Insurance
Group by one level from A+ to AA- on 5 February 2025. The rating
agency justified its decision by citing, in particular, the increasing di-
versification of earnings across business classes and regions. The out-
look remains stable. The Group’s financial strength ratings are now as
follows:

FINANCIAL STRENGTH RATINGS FOR THE GROUP AND ITS SUBGROUPS

Standard & Poor’s AM Best
Rating Outlook Rating Outlook
Talanx Group* — — A+ Stable
Talanx Primary
Insurance Group? AA- Stable — —
Hannover Re
subgroup? AA— Stable A+ Stable

* Definition used by AM Best: “HDI V.a.G. and its rated insurance subsidiaries”.

2 Subgroup of primary insurers including HDI V.a.G.; definition: “Talanx Primary Insurance
Group”. Corresponds to the Corporate & Specialty, Retail Germany and Retail International
Divisions, including Talanx AG.

* Hannover Riick SE and its major core companies; corresponds to the
Talanx Group's Reinsurance Division.
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Issuer credit ratings

AM Best also confirmed Talanx AG’s issuer credit rating at the end of
the reporting period. Talanx AG’s issuer credit rating thus remains
aa— with a “stable” outlook. Similarly, S&P left Talanx AG's issuer
credit rating unchanged at A+, outlook “stable”, in the reporting
period; in the context of the upgrade of the financial strength rating,
this was also raised to AA-with a stable outlook on 5 February 2025.
This means that the rating agencies still consider Talanx AG’s credit
quality to be good (S&P) or excellent (AM Best).

ISSUER CREDIT RATINGS

Standard & Poor’s AM Best

Rating Outlook Rating Outlook

Talanx AG AA- Stable aa— Stable
Hannover Riick SE AA- Stable aa Stable

In addition, there are various issuer ratings for bonds issued and/or
guaranteed by Talanx AG. These ratings and all other issuer ratings
for the bonds and loans issued by Group companies are listed in the
Notes to the consolidated financial statements in Note 17 Subordinat-
ed liabilities and Note 22 Notes payable and loans.

The financial strength ratings for our primary insurance subsidiaries
can be found on Talanx AG'’s website, while detailed information
about the ratings for Hannover Re and its subsidiaries is on Hannover
Riick SE’s website (www.hannover-re.com).



Talanx AG (condensed version in
accordance with the HGB)

The annual financial statements and the management report for
financial year 2024, in the version in force as at the reporting date,
were prepared in accordance with the provisions of the German
Commercial Code (HGB), the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG),
the German Insurance Supervision Act (VAG) and the German Regu-
lation on the Accounting of Insurance Undertakings (RechVersV).

Talanx AG —as a listed financial and management holding company —
is responsible for managing the Group’s subsidiaries. The Talanx
statement of income is thus also shaped by income and expenses in
connection with its affiliated companies and long-term equity in-
vestments. In addition, Talanx AG essentially underwrites property/
casualty risks from Group companies as a reinsurer.

Net income for the financial year in accordance with HGB is a key
management metric for Talanx AG as the distributable dividends are
measured in accordance with net income for the financial year under
HGB.

Financial performance

STATEMENT OF INCOME (HGB)

EUR million 2024 2023
Technical account

Net income before equalisation reserve -0 -33
Change in equalisation reserve and

similar reserves —48 -30
Underwriting result for own account -49 -63
Non-technical reserve

Income from investments 1,441 1,029
Investment expenses 2 45
Other income 45 45
Other expenses 504 213
Non-underwriting result 980 817
Result from ordinary activities 932 754
Taxes 92 11
Net income for the financial year 840 743

The underwriting result before the equalisation reserve came to
EUR -0 (—33) million in the reporting year. After a high level of losses
in 2023, Talanx AG recorded significantly lower large losses in the
reporting period. The largest loss events included flood damage in
Eastern Europe at EUR 16 million and flooding in Brazil at
EUR 11 million.
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Performance in lines of business

INSURANCE BUSINESS AS A WHOLE

2024 2023
EUR million Gross Net Gross Net
Written premiums 1,447 341 1,618 457
Premiums earned 1,426 328 1,578 424
Expenses on
insurance claims 921 295 1,069 346
Expenses for
insurance
operations 248 28 357 108
Underwriting result
for own account 196 —49 112 —63
%
Expense ratio 64.6 90.0 67.7 815
Cost ratio 174 8.6 226 254
Combined ratio 82.0 98.6 90.4 106.9
GROSS PREMIUMS BY LINE OF BUSINESS

2024 2023

EUR million % EUR million %

All risk insurance 646 44.7 618 38.2
Engineering
insurance 194 134 291 18.0
Other insurance 154 10.7 207 12.8
Liability insurance 122 8.5 161 9.9
Fire insurance 179 124 149 9.2
Motor vehicle
insurance 97 6.7 104 6.4
Casualty insurance 3 0.2 56 34
Marine and
aviation insurance 51 35 32 2.0
Total 1,447 100.0 1,618 100.0

All-risk insurance

Gross premium income for all-risk insurance came to EUR 646 (618)
million, representing 44.7% (38.2%) of total premiums. As well as
higher participation in contracts, the year-on-year rise resulted from
price increases in reinsurance contracts in what continued to be a
tough reinsurance market. The gross loss ratio fell to 18.5% (40.8%)
due to a reduction in the level of claims and a positive run-off result.
The gross underwriting result was EUR 339 (226) million. The positive
gross underwriting result in this line was shaped by the lack of rele-
vant large losses.

79



80

Talanx Group ] Annual Report2024 W

Engineering insurance

A total of 13.4% (18.0%) or EUR 194 (291) million of gross premiums
can be attributed to engineering insurance. This reduction in premi-
ums was triggered by a significant year-on-year decline in the follow-
up premium. The engineering insurance line reported an improved
claims situation compared to the previous year, which led to a reduc-
tion in the gross underwriting loss to EUR —21 (-68) million. The gross
loss ratio was 86.1% (99.1%).

Other insurance

Other insurance mainly comprises the other non-life insurance and
other property insurance lines, which include the comprehensive
householders, storm and legal protection classes. At EUR 154 (207)
million, other insurance accounted for 10.7% (12.8%) of gross premi-
ums. Due to several flood losses, the gross loss ratio declined signifi-
cantly t0 132.0% (75.9%), and the gross underwriting result amounted
to EUR —92 (—9) million.

Liability insurance

The share of gross premiums generated by liability insurance was
8.5% (9.9%). Gross premium income fell by 24.2% from EUR 161 mil-
lion in 2023 to EUR 122 million in the reporting period. In the previ-
ous year, a renewal premium had significantly increased gross premi-
um income, but there was no such effect in the reporting period. The
gross loss ratio rose to 103.1% (73.9%) in 2024 due to additional re-
serves and led to a gross underwriting result of EUR 3 (30) million.

Fire insurance

Gross premiums for fire insurance totalled EUR 179 (149) million,
which corresponded to a share of 12.4% (9.2%). The rise in gross pre-
miums compared to the prior year essentially reflects an increase in
the share of gross business attributable to long-term equity invest-
ments. The gross loss ratio was 98.5% (106.1%), while the gross under-
writing result totalled EUR —26 (~38) million.

Motor insurance

Gross premiums for motor insurance totalled EUR 97 (104) million,
which corresponded to a share of 6.7% (6.4%). The gross loss ratio in-
creased to 92.9% (81.9%), with a gross underwriting result of EUR —23
(—10) million.
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Non-insurance business

The balance of income and expenses from investments increased to
EUR 1,439 (984) million. Net income from long-term equity invest-
ments included in this, resulting from income from long-term equity
investments and income from profit and loss transfers from our
subsidiaries, rose to EUR 1,342 (945) million in the financial year.
HDI Global SE reported a profit transfer of EUR 412 (128) million,
HDIInternational AG of EUR161 (165) millionand HDI Deutschland AG
of EUR 233 (214) million. Furthermore, higher income was generated
from other investments, in particular interest income from loans to
affiliates.

The balance of other income and expenses in the reporting period
amounted to EUR —459 (-167) million and included indemnities for
expenses from additional tax assessment notices in the amount of
EUR 247 (-) million against life insurance companies in the Group in
connection with risks from capital investments.

Net income for the financial year rose year-on-year to EUR 840 (743)
million. After adding in the retained profit brought forward of
EUR 794 (658) million, the distributable profit amounted to EUR 1,634
(1,401) million. The proposal for the appropriation of the distributable
profit can be found in the Notes to the Group Annual Report.

Assets and liabilities

BALANCE SHEET STRUCTURE — ASSETS (HGB)

EUR million 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Investments in affiliated companies and other

long-term equity investments 10,443 9,831
Other investments 854 840
Funds withheld by ceding companies from

business ceded for reinsurance 30 45
Receivables 1,698 1,461
Other assets 372 553
Total assets 13,398 12,730

As in previous years, Talanx AG’s balance sheet is shaped predomi-
nantly by its role as a holding company and, on the assets side, large-
ly by its long-term equity investments in its subsidiaries, which are
denominated in euros. The reinsurance business was also reflected in
individual balance sheet items. Total assets rose by 5.2% to EUR 13,398
(12,730) million. Investments in affiliated companies and long-term
equity investments increased to EUR 10,443 (9,831) million, in par-
ticular due to increased shares in affiliated companies. The funds
came from a reduction in short-term overnight money and term de-
posits as well as current account balances at banks, among other
things. Other investments increased slightly to EUR 854 (840) million,
as investments in fixed-interest securities and bearer bonds were in-
creased in return for the reduction in short-term overnight and fixed-
term deposits. Receivables increased to EUR 1,698 (1,461) million, in
particular due to higher receivables from profit and loss transfer
agreements with subsidiaries. Other assets in the reporting period in-
cluded lower current account balances with credit institutions.



BALANCE SHEET STRUCTURE — EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (HGB)

EUR million 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Equity 6,567 6,334
Subordinated liabilities 1,250 2,000
Technical provisions 1,129 852
Other provisions 1,201 1,140
Other liabilities 3,251 2,404
Total equity and liabilities 13,398 12,730

Talanx AG’s capital structure and the composition of its liabilities pri-
marily reflect its role as a holding company, a role which has been
expanded to include the reinsurance business assumed in 2019.
Equity amounted to EUR 6,567 (6,334) million. The increase of
EUR 233 million resulted from the increase in distributable profit.

Subordinated liabilities decreased to EUR 1,250 (2,000) million due to
the repayment of a credit line to HDI Haftpflichtverband der
Deutschen Industrie V.a.G.

Technical provisions increased to EUR 1,129 (852) million in the finan-
cial year, primarily due to the higher level of the loss and loss adjust-
ment expense reserve. Other provisions were on par with the prior
year at EUR 1,201 (1,140) million.

The increase in other liabilities to EUR 3,251 (2,404) million resulted
primarily from a bond issued in April 2024 with a total value of
EUR 750 million.

Financial position

Liquidity planning — which is performed by the Accounting depart-
ment at least once a month - ensures that Talanx AG can meet its
payment obligations at all times. This is flanked by an investment
strategy that is aligned with liquidity requirements.

Talanx AG’s main inflows of funds come from profit and loss transfer
agreements with affiliated companies, income from participating in-
terests, underwriting premium income and interest income from
loans. The Group Controlling & Finance and Cash Management de-
partments liaise regularly on expected liquidity flows during liquidi-
ty planning. The Company mainly uses its funds to make interest and
principal repayments on liabilities, to pay dividends and for under-
writing payments. Additionally, activities associated with acquiring
or selling companies can lead to short-term inflows and outflows of
liquidity.

On the basis of a cooperation agreement concluded with HDI Haft-
pflichtverband der Deutschen Industrie V.a.G. in 2021, Talanx AG is
able to sell to this entity subordinated bonds with a maturity of five
years and a total value of up to EUR 750 million on a revolving basis.
This right to sell was exercised in 2024 until mid-April. The full
amount of EUR 750 million was utilised in order to acquire Liberty
Mutual Insurance, Inc.
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Furthermore, Talanx AG had already secured a financing package
with a total value of EUR 1,250 million in 2022. The bonds with identi-
cal conditions comprise one senior unsecured bond with a value of
EUR 500 million, rated A+ by the rating agency Standard & Poor’s. It
was widely sold to institutional investors from Germany and abroad.
On the other hand, HDI Haftpflichtverband der Deutschen Industrie
V.a.G. simultaneously issued a bond with a total value of EUR 750
million. The two bonds denominated in euros mature on 25 October
2029. In May 2024, the Company also took out a credit line with a
banking syndicate with a nominal value of EUR 250 million. This line
of credit remained unused in 2024.

The Company focuses on long-term reliability and capital strength
when selecting lenders. Ampega Asset Management GmbH is re-
sponsible for ongoing monitoring of lenders’ capital strength.

Targets in accordance with sections 76(4) and
111(5) of the AktG

With regard to targets for the proportion of women on the Board of
Management and in the next two management levels below
Talanx AG'’s Board of Management in accordance with sections 76(4)
and 111(5) AktG, please see our comments in the Corporate Govern-
ance Statement in accordance with sections 289f and 315d HGB in the
Corporate governance section of this report.

Remuneration report

The principles and structure of remuneration for the Talanx AG
Board of Management and Supervisory Board are described in the
remuneration report. The remuneration report provides informa-
tion about individual remuneration for members of Talanx AG’s
Board of Management and Supervisory Board for their work for the
Talanx Group in the financial year 2024. In addition to remuneration
components relating to work for Talanx AG, the amounts shown also
include remuneration for work performed for the companies consol-
idated in the Talanx Group.

Risk report

Talanx AG as a single entity is largely characterised by its features as
a listed company, as a holding company and as an internal reinsur-
ance company. It centralises the reinsurance needs of the primary
insurers at holding company level in order to be able to utilise group-
wide diversification effects. In this context, it directly or indirectly
writes both proportional and non-proportional reinsurance treaty
business of the primary insurance companies of the Talanx Group.
As the holding company of a Group offering primary and reinsurance
and financial services, Talanx AG’s business performance is subject to
the same risks as that of the Talanx Group. Talanx AG’s earnings, and
hence its risk, are mainly determined by its income from long-term
equity investments and by profit and loss transfers from the individ-
ual companies. Talanx AG shares the risk associated with its long-
term equity investments and subsidiaries firstly in proportion to its
long-term equity interests in them and secondly via intragroup rein-
surance. The risks to which the subsidiaries and Talanx AG itself are
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exposed are influenced, in particular, by the increased macroeco-
nomic uncertainty and associated medium-term stability risks in the
financial system.

Global inflationary pressure continued to ease over the past year,
without inflation rates returning to their pre-COVID 19 levels. In the
eurozone, the inflation rate stood at 2.5% in the middle of last year.
However, the sharp decline of around eight percentage points from
the 2022 high gave the ECB enough confidence to initiate a cycle of
interest rate cuts from June onwards in the face of weak economic
growth in the eurozone.

A downside risk is that a resurgence in inflation could prompt central
banks to end their interest-rate cut cycles and consider raising base
rates again in the course of 2025. The question of the sustainability of
the debt, which has grown considerably in recent years, is not only
likely to come up in the United States this year. In Europe, possible
additional fiscal support in response to US policy would pose an up-
side risk to our growth outlook. In addition, a number of structural
risks remain, including climate change, the stability of the Chinese
economy and demographic change. Another key downside risk to the
global economic outlook is the future trade policy of the United
States and the associated countermeasures and diversion effects that
could arise in the international exchange of goods. Potential risks
also exist in the face of unpredictable US politics, not to mention var-
ious geopolitical flashpoints (including Greenland, Israel, Ukraine
and China/Taiwan). At the same time, these conflicts also harbour
significant upside risks if lasting solutions can be found. To add to
this, however, many countries (including France and Germany) are
facing (potentially) more unstable coalition governments.

In Latin America, such as Brazil, Chile, Mexico and Colombia, we are
experiencing increasing frequency and severity of natural disasters;
we are also experiencing pressure on prices in the area of property
and motor vehicle insurance as well as more restrictive reinsurance
conditions. Regulatory uncertainties also pose a significant chal-
lenge. The resulting risks are continuously monitored and we take
appropriate measures to respond to them where necessary.

Potential breaches of sanctions in the context of dynamic develop-
ments pose fundamental risk potential. Appropriate risk mitigation
measures are being taken, such as continuously monitoring sanc-
tions lists and sharing relevant information with relevant operating
areas.

As an intragroup reinsurer, we work in close collaboration with the
Talanx Group primary insurers. This ensures that we closely monitor
the overall risk situation and ensure optimal collections from retro-
cessionaires. Counterparty risk is strictly monitored with regard to
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the selection of retrocessionaires. Existing business relations with
reinsurers are also regularly assessed in terms of the counterparty
risk in accordance with Group-wide guidelines. We are also in direct,
permanent contact with our reinsurance partners and reinsurance
brokers that operate on the market in order to assess the overall mar-
ket situation and allow us to take action at an early stage if needed.

Talanx AG recognised a loss ratio of 90.0% (81.5%) in financial year
2024 as a reinsurer, with the loss ratio for the financial year coming to
64.0% (51.7%). A net run-off result of EUR -85 (—127) million was recog-
nised. The run-off ratio was 12.6% (27.4%).

Receivables comprise a number of individual receivables from vari-
ous market participants, most of which have been outstanding for
less than 9o days. We do not currently expect to recognise any write-
downs on individual receivables.

SCENARIOS FOR FAIR VALUE CHANGES IN SECURITIES

EUR million 2024 2023
Change in portfolio on a fair value basis
Equities and other variable-yield securities
Equity prices —20% -1 -1
Fixed-income securities and other loans
Increase in yield +100 basis points =23 -16
Decrease in yield =100 basis points +25 +17

Talanx AG predominantly holds securities rated A or better, with only
a relatively small number rated lower than A.

SECURITIES BY RATING CLASS

%

58/52

A

6/5

< BBB, unrated

20/4 3/2

AAA . BBB+
14/37

AA
2024 /2023



Report on expected developments and on
opportunities

Talanx AG is closely intertwined with the Group companies and plays
a correspondingly large role in the Group, and so the statements
made in the Group forecast and report on opportunities also reflect
expectations for the parent company Talanx AG. In 2025, we expect to
see a significant increase in net income for Talanx AG, in part due to
income from long-term equity investments.

Report on relations with affiliated companies

In the report on relations with affiliated companies that the Board of
Management is required to prepare in accordance with section 312 of
the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG), the Board declared that
Talanx AG received appropriate consideration for each and every
transaction with an affiliated company according to the circumstanc-
es known at the time the transactions were conducted. No measures
subject to reporting obligations were undertaken in the year under
review.
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Overall assessment of the
economic position

Talanx AG’s management believes that business performance was
outstanding in the reporting period, particularly considering the
complex macroeconomic and conditions in the industry, and despite
the many global challenges. Our success is based, among other
things, on the systematic implementation of our ambitious Group
strategy and the divisional strategies contained therein, on our con-
tinued global diversification and on a performance-driven culture
based on trust. Group net income stood at almost EUR 2 billion, with
growth in insurance revenue in the low double digits. The Group
return on equity exceeded our guidance for the reporting period, as
did return on equity in all of the Group’s divisions.

The Group remains financially robust and its solvency ratio contin-
ues to be well above the level required by law and on the upper end of
our target range. The Board of Management assessed the Group’s
economic situation as unchanged and sound as at the preparation
date of the management report. The Group adjusted to the effects of
the macroeconomic and geopolitical environment; there were no
material impacts to the Group’s assets, liabilities, financial position
and financial performance. We believe that our targets for 2025 as a
whole are achievable.
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Preface to the sustainability statement,

that also fulfils the requirements for the group non-financial statement

prepared in accordance with sections 315b to 315¢ HGB"

Dear ladies and gentlemen,

Talanx considers both sustainability and due and proper compli-
ance with reporting obligations to be important. Sustainability is
important because of our business purpose. This is particularly clear
in relation to climate change. As an insurer, we are confronted with
constantly rising claims expenses from extreme weather events and
forest fires due to global warming. This topic is highly relevant to us
from an economic perspective, which is one reason why Talanx has
made sustainability a core element of its Group strategy. We have
formulated strategic ambitions for our global business in the areas
of investment, underwriting and own operations, and we intend to
be measured against them. To date we have always met our sustain-
ability ambitions, and in many cases we actually exceeded them. We
aim to do this going forward, too.

This sustainability statement for the 2024 reporting year is the first
that Talanx Group has prepared under the Corporate Sustainability
Reporting Directive (CSRD) and the European Sustainability Report-
ing Standards (ESRS) that build on it. In addition to meeting these
requirements, it also complies with the EU Taxonomy. The Talanx
Group has validated the interpretative decisions it has made in this
reporting to the best of its knowledge and belief by performing its
own assessments, consulting external experts, and engaging in dia-
logue within industry associations. However, even though all due
care has been taken, no assurance can be given that opinions on how
to interpret the ESRS will not change. In contrast to the IFRS, the
ESRS are not a reporting framework with a long, proven track record.
As is normally the case with new reporting standards — especially
where these have not been validated in field tests — initial applica-
tion reveals potential areas for improvement in the future.

* This chapter comprises unaudited information.

The Talanx Group is working to ensure the continued development
of the ESRS in its role as a member of the German Insurance Associ-
ation (GDV) and of the European Insurance CFO Forum. Particularly
important for us are facilitating the use of management mecha-
nisms, international comparability of reporting and ensuring that
the effort involved in reporting is proportionate to the benefits
gained. In line with this, we see opportunities to improve reporting
going forward in the following three areas:

Development area 1: Facilitating the use of management mecha-
nisms by ensuring clear attributability

When assessing the influence that an undertaking has on climate
change, it is necessary to measure the carbon emissions caused by
the reporting entity. Emissions data in which these emissions are
supplemented by emissions caused by the undertaking’s business
partners are more difficult to interpret. On the one hand, this ap-
proach ignores the ability of the reporting entity to influence these
emissions in practice, while on the other it accepts multiple counting
(Scope 3 emissions).

For Talanx as a provider of financial services, more than 99% of the
total emissions that it reports come from attributed emissions that it
has not caused itself. The Group’s ability to influence these emissions
is limited and at best indirect. This topic does not merely affect
Talanx as an undertaking with a reporting obligation. We would also
welcome a focus in our business partners’ reporting on the emissions
that they themselves cause in our capacity as an investor and under-
writer of risks. Such a focus is aligned with areas of responsibility, en-
ables meaningful comparison and can be better integrated in deci-
sion-making processes. Enhancing the ESRS in this direction would
be desirable.



Development area 2: International integration of the ESRS

The Talanx Group operates in more than 175 countries. Thanks to our
business, we know that sustainability matters are accorded very dif-
ferent weightings and assessments in different jurisdictions and cul-
tures. We normally align our sustainability considerations with local
acceptance of our business activity. The reporting structure pre-
scribed by the ESRS can only reflect this in part. It was largely deter-
mined by European decision-makers. In the case of global topics such
as climate change it would be helpful for the acceptance of the reports
prepared on this if, for example, the scope of measurement, the
methodology and the presentation of the results were agreed inter-
nationally rather than merely at European level. To this extent we
support the ISSB’s efforts to establish such a reporting standard and
would welcome the European Union adopting this.

Development area 3: Focusing reports on core

management-related topics

The structure of the ESRS requires us to explain in a number of places
that, in the “Social” and “Governance” areas, Talanx complies with
the laws in the countries in which it does business, among other
things. This goes without saying for us and should not actually need
describing. In the “Environmental” sections of the report our main
concern relates to climate change. In our opinion, enhancing the
report so that it can be used to derive additional management mech-
anisms will be decisive.

With best wishes

The Talanx AG Board of Management
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Sustainability statement,

that also fulfils the requirements for the group non-financial statement

prepared in accordance with sections 315b to 315¢ HGB

1. General information
1.1 Basis for preparation

1.1.1 General basis for preparation of
sustainability statement (BP-1)

Scope of reporting for the sustainability statement

This sustainability statement also meets the requirements of a
non-financial statement prepared in accordance with sections 315b to
315¢ of the German Commercial Code (HGB) (hereinafter referred to
as the “sustainability statement”) The scope of consolidation is basi-
cally the same as is used for the IFRS financial statements. However,
all non-material subsidiaries under the IFRS are subjected to an addi-
tional materiality test.

Certain consolidated Polish companies are listed by name in this
sustainability statement, in keeping with the national regulations
there. These are: Towarzystwo Ubezpieczen i Reasekuracji WARTAS. A,
Towarzystwo Ubezpieczenn na Zycie WARTA S.A, Towarzystwo
Ubezpieczen Europa S.A. and Towarzystwo Ubezpieczen na Zycie
Europa S.A. Making reference to this sustainability statement ex-
empts the first two Polish companies mentioned from the obliga-
tion to submit their own sustainability statement. In addition, the
Italian company HDI Assicurazioni S.p.A. exercises the Group ex-
emption option. [BP-15a, b1, bii]

As regards reporting in accordance with sections 315b to 315c in con-
junction with sections 289c¢ to 289e of the HGB, all Group companies
bar one that are required as a result of Directive 2014/95/EU to dis-
close non-financial and diversity-related information on the basis of
national laws are exempted from the obligation to submit their own
statements by reference to this sustainability statement.

The Hannover Re Group publishes its combined non-financial state-
ment in its Group management report.

The value chain underlying the sustainability statement comprises
the activities performed in the insurance business, asset manage-
ment and the Group companies’ own operations. Both upstream and
downstream activities (see SBM-1) are included. A qualitative assess-
ment of the entire value chain, including upstream and downstream
actors, was made when determining the material impacts, risks and

opportunities. Upstream and downstream activities are included in
policies, actions and targets; this is presented transparently in line
with the relevant reporting requirements. The Talanx Group has
made use of the transitional provision related to the value chain,
where relevant, when determining metrics for its upstream and
downstream activities, due to challenges regarding data availability
and data quality. [BP-15 ¢, AR 1]

Sensitive information on intellectual property, know-how or
results of innovation

The option to omit sensitive information on intellectual property,
know-how or results of innovation was not utilised for the Primary
Insurance Group in the Talanx Group’s sustainability statement,
since this information is not relevant to the report. The Hannover Re
Group has utilised this option. [BP-15 d]

1.1.2 Disclosures in relation to specific
circumstances (BP-2)

Disclosures stemming from other legislation and
pronouncements

Disclosures relating to commercial law reporting requirements

The framework used was the European Sustainability Reporting
Standards (ESRS). This results in a change compared to the previous
methodology, so as to already correspond to the increased transpar-
ency requirements set out in the regulatory framework under the
CSRD, which still has to be implemented in Germany, and hence to
ensure comparability with future reports.

Previous reports prepared under the Non-Financial Reporting Direc-
tive (NFRD) also contained reporting on other social policies. Howev-
er, the ESRS requirements do not permit voluntary reporting of
other, non-material topics. Consequently, the reporting focuses on
the own workforce (see section 3.1 “Own workforce”) and private retail
customers (see section 3.2 “Private retail customers”).

No material non-financial risks that could have severe negative im-
pacts on the Talanx Group’s business activities were identified in the
reporting year. See the risk report in the combined management re-
port for further information on sustainability risks, and particularly
climate change risks, plus a more detailed look at the risk manage-
ment system including the Talanx Group’s risk profile.



Disclosures under the Taxonomy Regulation

This sustainability statement meets the requirements of Article 8 of
the Taxonomy Regulation (see section “2.1 Disclosures pursuant to
Article 8 of Regulation (EU) 2020/852 (EU Taxonomy Regulation)”).

Time horizons
The Talanx Group uses the following time horizons as the basis for its
reporting:

= Short-term: up to one year, as for financial reporting
m  Medium-term: more than one year and up to five years
m  Long-term: more than five years

Any departures from these periods in the information that follows
have been indicated. [BP-2 9a]

Sources of estimation and outcome uncertainties

Where the metrics published in the sustainability statement contain
data related to the upstream and/or downstream value chain that are
estimated using indirect sources such as sector-average data or other
proxies, this is indicated in the relevant places. As far as possible, the
informative value of these metrics is enhanced by providing addi-
tional contextual information so as to enhance transparency.
[BP-2104a, b, c]

If the metrics published in the sustainability statement contain esti-
mations and outcome uncertainties, this is indicated in the relevant
places. As far as possible, the informative value of these metrics is
enhanced by providing additional contextual information so as to
enhance transparency. [BP-211a, b i, b ii]

Incorporation of information

The Talanx Group has identified those places in this sustainability
statement in which information is incorporated on the basis of other
legislation or generally accepted sustainability reporting standards.
[BP-2 15] In addition, the Talanx Group provides references to other
passages within the Group management report. No references to pas-
sages outside the Group management report are included. [BP-216]

1.1.3 Preliminary remarks

A number of limitations must be borne in mind when interpreting
the ESRS sustainability statement.

This report has been prepared on the basis of the requirements set
out in the sector-agnostic ESRS. The highly specific nature of the fi-
nancial services and insurance business means that certain require-
ments have to be interpreted for use in relation to these sectors. The
sustainability statement’s focus and presentation do not adequately
reflect the Talanx Group’s ambition and activities in many areas. In
particular, quantitative measurements of this ambition and of the
Group's sustainability activities are only possible in some areas.

In addition, there is still substantial uncertainty as to how to inter-
pret many ESRS requirements. In contrast to the IFRS, the ESRS are
not a reporting framework with a long, proven track record. The
Talanx Group has validated its interpretative decisions to the best of
its knowledge and belief by performing its own assessments, consult-
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ing external experts, and engaging in dialogue within industry asso-
ciations. However, even though all due care has been taken no assur-
ance can be given that opinions on how to interpret the ESRS will not
continue to change. To this extent, the statements are inherently
open to further development. Comparability and interpretability of
the data and information published in the non-financial reporting
under the CSRD will only emerge over time, and once market stand-
ards and benchmarks have emerged.

The Talanx Group operates in more than 175 countries around the
world, and a large proportion of its business relates to insured risks
outside the European Union. Application of the European regulatory
framework is obligatory (or will become so once local implementing
legislation comes into force) because the Talanx Group is domiciled
in the European Union and there are no uniform global mandatory
standards for sustainability reporting as yet. For the Talanx Group, it
is important that its economic activity is accepted not just from a
European perspective but also in the individual countries in which it
does business.

The quality and availability of the data needed for many of the re-
quirements are limited in this initial report prepared in accordance
with the ESRS, due among other things to the Talanx Group's decen-
tralised, international structure. The underlying data points are, in
many cases, datapoints that have been determined partly through
extrapolations, projections, or estimates. A best-efforts approach was
adopted in these cases, but this does not rule out future changes
being made when better-quality data become available. This applies
all the more, given that in many cases, no benchmarks, such as those
from previous years, exist. A multilevel internal quality assurance
process was defined and complied with so as to reduce the probabili-
ty of incomplete or incorrect data being published. Due to the fact
that this is its ESRS first report, the Talanx Group is still in a learning
curve. If a need for changes is identified post-publication, these will
be made in the next sustainability statement; in the case of material
discrepancies, attention will be expressly drawn to such corrections.

In addition, the ESRS-related methodologies used to determine the
ESRS metrics contained in this report still have shortcomings in
some cases. For example, it can be noted that the methodologies per-
mitted for compiling and reporting the carbon footprint — an ex-
tremely important issue — promote multiple counting of emissions
(Scope 3).

The emissions reported must be seen in the context of the fact that
the Talanx Group, as a provider of financial services, only generates a
very minor proportion of the emissions itself. More than 99% of total
emissions originate in the downstream value chain. Naturally
enough, the financial services sector’s leverage and opportunity to
influence these emissions is limited.
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The Talanx Group has disclosed the financed emissions from its in-
vestments for the first time in this sustainability statement. When
making investments as an equity provider, the Talanx Group can
sometimes intervene to influence these investments’ carbon emis-
sions. This is especially true in the case of real estate and infrastruc-
ture investments. However, the real estate sector in particular has
already been focusing on energy efficiency for many years now,
which means that the potential for additional savings is small. By
contrast, a large proportion of the investments made take the form of
debt capital. The Talanx Group’s opportunities for influencing the
emissions relating to these investments are extremely limited. What
is more, the Talanx Group’s debt portfolio largely consists of govern-
ment bonds and bonds issued by regional and local authorities, on
which no influence is exerted. Most of these public sector bonds also
cannot be substituted due to the regulatory requirements governing
the provision of financial services and funding. The GHG intensity
for the government bonds in the Talanx Group’s portfolio is twice
that for corporate bonds. This means that financed emissions from
government bonds, which represent a share of the total emissions
generated by the countries concerned, account for a large proportion
of the Talanx Group'’s reported financed emissions. The Talanx Group
does not see any possibility of directly managing these emissions.

In view of these limitations, the KPIs currently cannot be taken into
account during management, or this can only be done selectively.

The Talanx Group has presented the data, and the statements made
on their basis, to the best of its knowledge. Nevertheless, attention is
drawn to the statements on their informative value given above. No
further audits or validations of the data and figures presented in the
statement by external instances were performed. [MDR-M 77 b]

The Talanx Group welcomes enhanced transparency in sustainability
reporting. High-quality sustainability information can support deci-
sion-making at the Talanx Group in its role as a long-term, interna-
tional investor and underwriter. High-quality reporting presupposes
sensible regulatory frameworks that enable objective, verifiable com-
parisons between entities regarding their actual effect on socially rel-
evant sustainability matters. As a member of the German Insurance
Association (GDV) and the European Insurance CFO Forum, the
Talanx Group is working to enhance CSRD reporting in this spirit, and
to restrict it to matters in which the effort involved in reporting is
proportionate to the benefits gained.

Combined management report

1.2 Governance in accordance with ESRS 2

Group-wide, effective corporate governance is crucially important for
responsible business conduct aimed at creating sustainable value. It
forms the framework for managing and overseeing undertakings.
Aspects covered include their organisational structures and values,
the principles that govern how they do business and their guidelines.

1.2.1 The role of the administrative, management and
supervisory bodies (GOV-1)

Management and supervisory bodies

Talanx AG — the Talanx Group parent — is a listed company based in
Hannover. As such, it is governed by German stock corporation and
capital markets law, and by the German Co-determination Act
(MitbestG). In line with this, the Group’s three governing bodies —the
Board of Management, the Supervisory Board and the General Meet-
ing — make up its top-level management and governance structure.
These bodies” duties and powers are defined by law, by Talanx AG’s
Articles of Association and by the Rules of Procedure for the Board of
Management and the Supervisory Board.

Responsibilities and composition

The Board of Management, which consists of seven executive mem-
bers, is responsible for managing the business. [GOV-1 21 a] The
Supervisory Board appoints, oversees and advises the Board of Man-
agement. It is involved in making decisions on fundamental matters
and works together cooperatively with the Board of Management in
the Company’s interests. However, the Supervisory Board does not
have a management role, in line with Germany’s two-tier corporate
governance model, in which the management and oversight func-
tions are deliberately separated. The Supervisory Board comprises 16
non-executive members. [GOV-1 21 a] These consist of equal numbers
of shareholder and employee representatives, in line with the Mit-
bestG. [GOV-1 21 b]

Board of Management (as at 31 December 2024)
Torsten Leue (Chairman)

Jean-Jacques Henchoz

Dr Wilm Langenbach

Dr Edgar Puls

Caroline Schlienkamp

Jens Warkentin

Dr Jan Wicke

Supervisory Board (as at 31 December 2024)
Herbert Haas (Chairman)

Jutta Hammer (Deputy Chairwoman)
Angela Titzrath (Deputy Chairwoman)
Natalie Bani Ardalan

Rainer-Karl Bock-Wehr

Dr Joachim Brenk

Sebastian L. Gascard

Dr Christof Glinther

Dr Hermann Jung

Dirk Lohmann

Christoph Meister

Dr Sandra Reich

Matthias Rickel

Prof. Dr Jens Schubert

Patrick Seidel

Norbert Steiner



Diversity, skills and independence

Talanx AG follows the principle of diversity, among other things,
when making appointments to its Board of Management and Super-
visory Board. Key factors in addition to candidates’ specialist and per-
sonal qualifications (skills) include their age, gender, education and
professional experience.

Board of Management members have appropriate professional qual-
ifications, plus the knowledge and experience necessary for sound,
prudent management and for performing their respective roles, tak-
ing entity-specific risks and the nature and scope of the business op-
erations into account. This includes knowledge of the insurance and
financial markets, knowledge and understanding of the corporate
strategy and business model, knowledge of the governance system
(risk management system and internal control system), the ability to
interpret accounting and actuarial figures and to perform financial
and actuarial analyses, and knowledge and understanding of the reg-
ulatory framework. In addition, each Managing Board member has
the specific professional qualifications needed for the area for which
they have been assigned responsibility. This also encompasses exper-
tise with regard to sustainability topics, allowing the impacts, risks
and opportunities associated with the business to be assessed and
managed. The Board of Management members are individually
responsible for their regular professional development, in order to
guarantee that they continue to have the necessary professional
qualifications over the long term. [GOV-121 ¢, 23 a, b]

Torsten Leue

In his role as Chairman of the Board of Management, Torsten Leue is
responsible for coordinating all areas of responsibility and for com-
munication with the Supervisory Board. He represents the Board of
Management and the Company in dealings with the public, and espe-
cially with capital providers and investors, public authorities, associa-
tions, business organisations and the media. In addition, Torsten Leue
is responsible for the following areas: Internal Audit, Best Practice
Lab, Group Communications, Corporate Development/M&A, Govern-
ance/Corporate Office, Strategic Human Resources Management/Suc-
cession Planning, Investor Relations and Sustainability/ESG. He was
previously responsible on the Board of Management for the Group’s
Retail International business. Before joining Talanx, Torsten Leue
worked for many years for another international insurance group in a
number of positions, both in Germany and abroad. Among other
things, he was the regional manager for Central and Eastern Europe,
and chairman of the board of management of the group’s Slovakian
subsidiary; during this period he was also President of the Slovakian
Insurance Association. Torsten Leue originally trained as a certified
bank clerk, after which he studied business administration in Berlin
and Montpellier.

Jean-Jacques Henchoz

Jean-Jacques Henchoz is responsible for the Reinsurance Division. He
is also Chairman of the Board of Management of Hannover Riick SE,
where he is responsible for Group Operations and Strategy, IT and Fa-
cility Management, Human Resources Management, Corporate Com-
munications, Group Internal Audit, Group Risk Management and
Compliance. Jean-Jacques Henchoz’s successful career has featured
several executive positions in reinsurance, the life and non-life insur-
ance business and financial solutions. He also gained experience of
underwriting, and responsibility for and experience of international
business. Before obtaining an MBA from the International Institute
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for Management Development (IMD), he graduated from the Univer-
sity of Lausanne with a BA degree in political science.

Dr Wilm Langenbach

Dr Wilm Langenbach is responsible for the Retail International Divi-
sion on the Board of Management, and is also Chairman of the Board
of Management at HDI International AG. He has many years’ interna-
tional management experience in the insurance business, especially
in the core markets of Europe and Latin America, plus the Middle East
and Africa. After training as a bank clerk, he studied business admin-
istration at the WHU Koblenz and in Texas, and gained a doctorate
from the WHU.

Dr Edgar Puls

Dr Edgar Puls is the member of Talanx’s Board of Management
responsible for its Corporate & Specialty Division and for the reinsur-
ance captive. He is also Chairman of the Board of Management of
HDI Global SE. After working in a number of industrial insurance
positions at HDI Germany, Dr Puls became CEO of HDI-Gerling in
Rotterdam. After that he was appointed to the Board of Management
of HDI Global SE, where he was responsible for the Motor business
and the Europe region, and later on for Fire, Marine and Engineering
insurance. An engineering graduate, Dr Puls has a doctorate from the
Institute for Risk and Consequence Analysis at the University of
Wuppertal.

Caroline Schlienkamp

Caroline Schlienkamp is Talanx’s Labour Director and responsible for
operational Human Resources at the Group, plus the Legal/Compli-
ance, Data Protection, Group Procurement, Facility Management and
Business Organisation functions. She is also the Spokesperson of the
Board of Management of HDI AG and previously held a number of
leadership and management functions in the Group. After training as
an insurance clerk, Caroline Schlienkamp studied law and passed her
second state law exam in Dusseldorf.

Jens Warkentin

Jens Warkentin is the Board of Management member responsible for
the Retail Germany Division, IT and Brand Management. He is also
the Chairman of the Board of Management of HDI Deutschland AG,
where he was previously CFO and Labour Director. Before joining the
Talanx Group, he worked in a number of management positions for
another international insurance group, including as COO and a
member of the board of management. Jens Warkentin trained as an
insurance clerk before studying economics at Marburg University in
Germany and Millersville University in Pennsylvania, USA.

Dr Jan Wicke

Chief Financial Officer Dr Jan Wicke is responsible for the Accounting,
Collections, Controlling, Finance/Participating Interests/Real Estate,
IT Security, Investments, Risk Management, Taxes, Treasury and Re-
insurance Procurement functions. He joined Talanx after a working
in a number of management positions and board of management
functions at insurance groups and financial institutions in the fields
of finance and risk management. He was initially responsible for the
German retail insurance business before being appointed as the
Group's CFO. Dr Wicke studied business administration and obtained
a doctorate from the University of Bamberg.
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Care is taken when making appointments to the Supervisory Board
to ensure that, as a whole, its members possess the knowledge, skills
and specialist experience required to duly perform their duties. In
addition to the professional expertise in the areas of asset manage-
ment, underwriting, accounting and the internal model that is re-
quired by supervisory law, other material topics for the Company —
auditing, an international perspective, human resources, risk
management, IT/digitalisation, compliance and sustainability — are
taken into account. The Supervisory Board uses a self-assessment by
its members to draw up an overview of its existing qualifications (see
the “Qualifications of Talanx AG’s Supervisory Board members” in
the Appendix) and a development plan designed to maintain and en-
hance the necessary specialist expertise. Supervisory Board mem-
bers can use internal and external training for this, among other
things. In financial year 2024, the Supervisory Board received com-
prehensive training on the CSRD. [GOV-121 ¢, 23 a, b]

The Board of Management comprises one woman and six men.

There are two female and six male shareholder representatives on
the Supervisory Board, and two female and six male employee repre-
sentatives. As a result, the statutory gender quota of 30% pursuant to
section 96(2) of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG)' has been
met.

Percentage of female members in accordance with ESRS 2 GOV-1, 21 d

= Board of Management: 14%
m  Supervisory Board: 25%

The German Corporate Governance Code (“the Code”) states that the
Supervisory Board shall include an adequate number of independent
members among its shareholder representatives. At present, all eight
shareholder representatives on Talanx AG's Supervisory Board
(100%) are independent as defined by the criteria set out in the Code 3
Pursuant to the MitbestG, the employee representatives consist of
staff representatives and representatives of ver.di, the German union.
They are elected by the workforce in universal, fair and secret elec-
tions. [GOV-1 21 e]

Organisation and responsibilities

Corporate management
The governance structure cascades from the Board of Management
to the senior management teams.

The Board of Management members are jointly responsible for man-
aging the Company’s business. Irrespective of this, each Board of
Management member is assigned an area of responsibility under the
Rules of Procedure and the associated schedule of responsibilities,
and manages this area on their own responsibility within the frame-
work of the decisions passed by the full Board of Management. Their
responsibility also covers the impacts, risks and opportunities associ-
ated with the area concerned. In addition, the law, the Articles of
Association and the Board of Management’s Rules of Procedure

* Section 96(2) of the AktG requires figures to be rounded up or down to the next full
number of people.

? As at 31 December 2024.

* The Code’s recommendation on the independence of Supervisory Board members relates
solely to the shareholder representatives (Chapter C of the Code, “Composition of the
Supervisory Board”, section Il “Independence of Supervisory Board members”,
recommendations C.6—C.12). In line with the Code, the disclosures for GOV-1 21e relate
solely to the independence of the shareholder representatives.
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require some issues to be resolved by the full Board of Management.
These include the Company’s strategy, including its sustainability
strategy, the principles underlying the Company’s policies, and the
implementation and control of a suitable risk management and
monitoring system. [GOV-122 a, b]

The members of the Board of Management are responsible for the
sustainability-related impacts arising from business activity in their re-
spective areas of responsibility. Each Board member’s area of responsi-
bility is in charge of the impacts relating to its own operations. Impacts
relating to underwriting are the responsibility of the primary and rein-
surance divisions led by Jean-Jacques Henchoz, Dr Wilm Langenbach,
Dr Edgar Puls and Jens Warkentin. Responsibility for impacts relating to
the investment function lies with Dr Jan Wicke. [GOV-122 a, c]

The risk strategy specified by the Board of Management in line with
the business strategy expresses the basic approach to identifying and
dealing with risks and opportunities. It serves as the starting point for
Group-wide implementation of risk management, with sustainabili-
ty matters also being taken into consideration. Other bodies and
people responsible for this apart from the Board of Management and
the Supervisory Board are the Executive Risk Committee, the Chief
Risk Officer, Group Risk Management and the risk management
units in the individual divisions. Group Risk Management has been
assigned to Dr Wicke under the Board of Management’s schedule of
responsibilities. In addition, the Talanx Group has implemented a
whistleblowing system (see section 4.1.1 “Business conduct and
corporate culture”) that offers both employees and third parties the
opportunity of anonymously reporting harmful behaviour and risks.
The Board of Management is informed immediately of substantial
indications of critical matters that could potentially have significant
negative impacts on the Group or its stakeholders. [GOV-1 22 c]

The impacts and opportunities associated with sustainability activi-
ties are also analysed and their implementation is prepared in, for
example, the Responsible Investment Committee (RIC), the Respon-
sible Underwriting Committee (RUC) and the Own Operations work-
ing group. The RIC and RUC are two central decision-making bodies
that regularly monitor, and drive forward, integration of sustainabili-
ty matters with all core investment and underwriting processes, in
line with the strategy. The RIC is chaired by Board of Management
member Dr Jan Wicke. The RUC, to which all Talanx Board o